FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Comprehensive
Annual

~inancial

Report . . .

.. . for fiscal

year ended
JUNE 30, 2011







CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011







CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTORY SECTION

Letter of Transmittal

Organizational Chart

Directory of Principal Officials

GFOA Certificate of Achievement

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditors’ Report

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements:

Government-wide Financial Statements:

Exhibit 1
Exhibit 2

Statement of Net Assets

Statement of Activities

Fund Financial Statements:

Exhibit 3
Exhibit 4

Exhibit 5

Exhibit 6

Exhibit 7
Exhibit 8

Exhibit 9
Exhibit 10
Exhibit 11

Exhibit 12

Balance Sheet—Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the
Statement of Net Assets

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances—
Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Statement of Net Assets—Proprietary Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets—
Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows—Proprietary Funds
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets—Private Purpose Trust Fund

Statement of Activities—Component Units

Notes to Financial Statements

Page

i-vi

vii

Xi

1-2

3-14

19

20-21

25

26

27

28
29

30
31
32
33
34-35

37-77



CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

TABLE OF CONTENTS: (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL SECTION: (CONTINUED)

Required Supplementary Information:

Exhibit 13
Exhibit 14

Budgetary Comparison Schedule—General Fund

Schedule of Pension and OPEB Funding Progress

Other Supplementary Information:

Exhibit 15
Exhibit 16

Exhibit 17
Exhibit 18

Exhibit 19
Exhibit 20

Exhibit 21

Exhibit 22
Exhibit 23
Exhibit 24

Exhibit 25
Exhibit 26

Exhibit 27

Exhibit 28

Exhibit 29

Exhibit 30

Exhibit 31

Combining Balance Sheet—Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances—Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet—Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances—Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Balance Sheet—Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances—Nonmayjor Capital Projects Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances—Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities—Agency Funds

Revenues and Expenditures Budgetary Comparison Schedule for
Nonmajor and Other Funds with Legally Adopted Budgets

Component Unit School Board—Combining Balance Sheet

Component Unit School Board—Reconciliation of the Governmental
Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets

Component Unit School Board—Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances—Governmental Funds

Component Unit School Board—Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

Component Unit School Board—School Operating Fund—Revenues and
Expenditures Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Component Unit School Board—Special School Fund—Revenues and
Expenditures Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Component Unit School Board—School Capital ProjectsFunds—Revenues
and Expenditures Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Page

81-86
87

91

92
93

94
95

96

97
98-99
100-102

103-107
108

109

110

111

112

113

114



CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

TABLE OF CONTENTS: (CONTINUED)

STATISTICAL SECTION

Table 1
Table 2
Table 3
Table 4
Table 5
Table 6

Table 7
Table 8
Table 9
Table 10
Table 11

Table 12
Table 13
Table 14
Table 15
Table 16

Table 17
Table 18

Net Assets by Component—Last Nine Fiscal Years

Changes in Net Assets—Last Nine Fiscal Years

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds—Last Ten Fiscal Years

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds—Last Ten Fiscal Years
General Governmental Tax Revenues by Source—Last Ten Fiscal Years

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property—Last Ten
Fiscal Years

Property Tax Rates—Last Ten Fiscal Years

Principal Property Taxpayers—Current Year and the Period Nine Years Prior
Property Tax Levies and Collections—Last Ten Fiscal Years

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type—Last Ten Fiscal Years

Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and Net Bonded
Debt Per Capita—Last Ten Fiscal Years

Legal Debt Margin Information—Last Ten Fiscal Years
Pledged-Revenue Coverage—Last Ten Fiscal Years

Demographic and Economic Statistics—Last Ten Fiscal Years
Principal Employers—Current Year and the Period Nine Years Prior

Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function—Last Ten
Fiscal Years

Operating Indicators by Function—Last Ten Fiscal Years

Capital Asset Statistics by Function—Last Ten Fiscal Years

COMPLIANCE SECTION

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance with Requirements that Could Have a Direct
and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in

Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Schedule of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs

Page

117
118-120
121
122
123

124
125
126
127
128

129
130
131
132
133

134
135-136
137-138

139-140

141-142
143-145
146
147
148



This page intentionally left blank



Beverly R. Cameron
City Manager

City of Fredericksburg

P.O. Box 7447

Fredericksburg, VA 22404-7447
Telephone: 540 372-1010

Fax: 540 372-1201

October 10, 2011

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens of the City of Fredericksburg:

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish within six months of the
close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby
issue the comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia (the “City”)
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of
the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, management of the City has established a comprehensive internal control framework
that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile
sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City’s financial statements in conformity with
GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City’s
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than
absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As
management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete
and reliable in all material respects.

The City’s financial statements have been audited by Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates, a
firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011,
are free from material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a
reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City’s financial statements for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2011, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditors’
report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was part of a broader, federally
mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on
the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls
and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal
requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the City’s
separately issued Single Audit Report.



GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to compliment MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors.

City of Fredericksburg Profile

The City was incorporated as an independent city in 1782, after being initially established as a
town in 1728. In 1912, the City became one of the first cities in the nation to adopt the Council-
Manager form of government, and its current Charter was granted in 1942. The City is located at the
geographic center of the "Chesapeake Golden Crescent”; the area between Baltimore, Maryland and
Norfolk-Virginia Beach, Virginia. The City is less than an hour’s drive from the nation's and state's
capitals and serves as the commercial hub of a rapidly growing region in northern central Virginia.
The City currently has a land area of 10.4 square miles and serves a population of 24,286.

Legislative and policy-making authority are vested in the governing council, which consists of
a mayor and a six-member council. The governing council is responsible, among other things, for
passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees and the City Manager, the City
Attorney and the Clerk of Council. The City Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and
ordinances of the governing council, and for appointing the heads of the City's departments. Council
members are elected to four-year staggered terms with the mayor and two council members elected-at-
large and the other four members elected by wards.

The City provides a full range of services including police and fire protection, the construction
and maintenance of streets and infrastructure, recreational activities and cultural events, and public
education. The City also operates water, sewer, and transit systems and a parking garage. The City
has entered into agreements with Spotsylvania County to utilize county water and sewer capacity in
order to maximize these resources from a regional approach.

The City is a center for the provision of health care services to the Fredericksburg region. The
center piece of health care in the City is Mary Washington Hospital, a division of Medicorp. Mary
Washington hospital is a 437-bed, full service hospital that provides over 45 different medical
specialties. The emergency room facility at the hospital is the only Level Il Trauma Center
recognized by the Commonwealth of Virginia between Richmond and Fairfax County.

Higher education opportunities within the City are offered at the University of Mary
Washington (UMW). Founded in 1908, UMW is a state-supported, coeducational residential
university with an enrollment of approximately 4,300 undergraduate students. The university offers
over 40 different majors and programs of study as well as several different Master’s degree programs.

Economic Condition and Outlook

The dramatic national economic downturn, in conjunction with regional competition in the
form of increased retail shopping and dining opportunities in neighboring counties, has applied
tremendous pressures on City resources in recent years; however, positive trends in the local economy
have manifested themselves in the form of higher than expected revenue during fiscal year 2011.



Economic Condition and Outlook: (Continued)

A continuation of this favorable trend may enable the City to begin a slow process of re-investing in
deferred maintenance and capital spending; nevertheless, in light of the ongoing economic problems
associated with continued high unemployment, a depressed housing market, and concerns over the
ever-growing national debt, the City continues to maintain a conservative posture regarding cost
containment while closely monitoring revenues from local and governmental tax sources.

The City’s economy is based, to a large degree, on its strategic location along interstate 95
approximately halfway between Richmond, Virginia and Washington, D.C. The City enjoys two
major commercial development centers, Central Park and Celebrate Virginia South. Central Park,
which started in 1995, is the primary retail and dining component of the City and houses 2.5 million
square feet of national big-box stores, restaurants, and smaller local businesses. Celebrate Virginia
South, home to several hotels and the Fredericksburg Expo and Conference Center, holds the greatest
opportunity for economic expansion as numerous hotels and an indoor water park are planned within
the next couple years. Once online, it is anticipated these new commercial developments will provide
the City much needed revenue growth in property taxes and various local taxes.

Another opportunity for economic growth rests with the University of Mary Washington
Foundation’s Eagle Village development project. Phase | of this four-phase, mixed-use project has
been completed and includes 34,000 square feet of office space and 30,000 square feet of retail and
dining.

The City’s nationally recognized 40-block Historic District is a significant component of the
local economy. The “Old Town” District, with its historical attractions, antique shops, a variety of
charming restaurants, specialty retail shops and beautifully restore homes, is an attractive tourist
destination. Even through tough economic times, tourists continued to flock to the Fredericksburg
region. Money spent by tourists on such items as lodging, transportation, meals, entertainment, and
retail shopping grew 8.5% during 2011. Itis anticipated this trend will continue as the Fredericksburg
region begins its sesquicentennial celebration of the major Civil War battles fought in and around the
City of Fredericksburg.

Major Initiatives

During fiscal year 2011 the City continued to maintained its capacity to provide a high level of
service to its residents in the form of major capital initiatives. The following narrative highlights the
primary projects worked on during fiscal year 2011 as well as the major projects planned over the next
several years.

The engineering phase for several transportation projects began during the 2011 fiscal year.
The majority of these projects involve updating traffic signal equipment and optimizing the operation
of several traffic signals along the Route 3 and Route 1 corridors as well as the replacement of a span
wire traffic signal with a mast arm signal at the intersection of William and Sophia Streets. The
primary transportation project is the replacement of the Fall Hill Avenue bridge over the
Rappahannock Canal. This project involves increasing the bridge’s load capacity while providing a
connection point between the Rappahannock Canal bicycle and walking path with the proposed
Rappahannock River Heritage Trail.



Major Initiatives: (Continued)

Implementation of the City’s comprehensive bicycle/foot trail plan, Fredericksburg Pathways,
continued during fiscal year 2011. Fredericksburg Pathways is designed to improve the overall
transportation system in and around the Fredericksburg area by developing a network of routes for
bicycle and pedestrian traffic. These routes will reduce traffic congestion by providing non-motorized
transportation and recreation connections between neighborhoods, shopping areas, and popular
destinations. The engineering and design phase for two components of Fredericksburg Pathways, the
Virginia Central Railway Trail and the Rappahannock River Heritage Trail, was completed during the
fiscal year. Itis anticipated that the construction phase of these two trails will begin during fiscal year
2012.

The City is proposing a consolidated full service court system. The current court system,
comprised of three buildings located at various locations along Princess Anne Street, is deficient in
space, inefficient in layout, and in need of extensive renovation. Preliminary architectural studies
have identified possible downtown locations, with varying cost ranges, for a new court building which
would accommaodate the City’s desire to consolidate its court system. A timetable for the completion
of this project has not yet been established. This project will be one of the most ambitious capital
endeavors in the City’s history and additional planning will be required before construction can begin.

Budgetary Control

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City’s financial planning and control. The
objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the
annual appropriated budget approved by the City Council. City Charter requires the City Manager to
submit to the City Council an annual budget for the ensuing fiscal year at least fifteen days prior to the
end of the current fiscal year. After a required public hearing on the budget is held, the City Council
may change any item in the budget (other than debt service or items required by law). An
appropriation ordinance must be adopted by the City Council prior to June 30, or as soon thereafter as
practicable. City Council must approve all budget revisions once the appropriation ordinance has
been adopted. The annual budgets are prepared for all governmental funds, except for the Central
Park Special Tax District Fund and the Fall Hill Special Tax District Fund, and they are prepared by
fund and department (e.g., police). All appropriations lapse at year-end; however, the unexpended
funds may be reappropriated as part of the following year’s budget. Budget-to-actual comparisons are
provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for which an appropriated annual budget
has been adopted. For the General Fund, this comparison is presented in Exhibit 13. For
governmental funds, other than the General Fund, with appropriated annual budgets, this comparison
is presented in Exhibit 24.

Financial Management Policy

Beginning with fiscal year 2011, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 54, “Fund
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.” This statement provides more clearly
defined fund balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a
government’s fund balance more transparent. A description of the new fund balance classifications
can be found in Note 1 in the Notes to Basic Financial Statements section of this report.



Financial Management Policy: (Continued)

The City’s adopted Financial Management Policy establishes guidelines aimed at maintaining
the financial health of the City. The Financial Management Policy identifies the unassigned General
Fund balance as a source that will be maintained to provide the City with sufficient working capital
and a comfortable margin of safety to address emergencies and unexpected declines in revenue
without borrowing. It established a goal of maintaining a 12 percent unassigned General Fund
balance, but not less than 7 percent, of the actual General Fund revenues for the preceding fiscal year.
This policy goal has proven to be a useful resource offering increased flexibility that has assisted the
City in its efforts to direct its resources efficiently.

Long-Term Financial Planning

The City’s Capital Improvements Plan is used as a tool to project future capital and financing
needs over a five year period. The current Capital Improvements Plan calls for several major capital
projects over the next several years with the primary project being the construction of a $35,000,000
courts complex. The City plans to finance this project through the issuance of $38,700,000 in general
obligation debt during fiscal year 2012, with $3,700,000 being used towards refunding existing debt.
Planned for fiscal year 2015 is a $4,000,000 renovation of the Renwick building, which currently
houses the circuit court, a $13,000,000 school maintenance program, and a $1,000,000 bridge
replacement at Alum Springs Park. The City plans to borrow the $18,000,000 needed to finance these
projects. For fiscal year 2017 the City is planning several utility system enhancements at a cost of
$10,000,000, a new $5,000,000 fire station in Celebrate Virginia, $2,000,000 for further development
of the Riverfront Park, and $3,000,000 for improvements to the Rappahannock Regional Library. A
bond issue of $20,000,000 is planned in 2017 to finance these projects.

Cash Management Policies and Practices

The City and Component Unit School Board cash and cash equivalents consist of pooled cash
and investments. The Component Unit Economic Development Authority maintains its own
accounts which are separate from the City’s pooled funds. Cash temporarily idled during the year was
invested in PFM Funds and the Arbitrage and Investment Management Fund. Investment income
includes appreciation in the fair value of investments. Increases in fair value, however, do not
represent trends that will continue; nor is it always possible to realize such amounts, especially in the
case of temporary changes in the fair value of investments that the City intends to hold to maturity.

The City has an adopted investment policy that establishes the investment and operation
policies for the management of the public funds of the City. These policies are designed to ensure the
prudent management of public funds, the availability of operating and capital funds when needed, and
an investment return competitive with comparable funds and financial market indicators.

The investment policy requires that the City’s portfolio be managed to accomplish the
following hierarchy of objectives: (1) preservation of principal, (2) maintenance of liquidity, and (3)
maximize return. Accordingly, deposits were either insured by federal depository insurance or
deposits were collateralized in accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act.

The accomplishment of the noted investment policy objectives is entrusted to the City’s
Investment Committee that serves in an advisory capacity. The City Treasurer is the chairperson of
the Investment Committee. An outside investment advisor meets with the Treasurer and the other
committee members to assist the committee in performing its duties.



Pension and Other Post-Employment Benefits

The City and Component Unit School Board participate in the Virginia Retirement System
defined benefit pension plan. A description of the plan can be found in Note 11 in the Notes to Basic
Financial Statements section of this report.

The City also provides post-employment health care insurance for employees who are eligible
for retirement benefits. Related to these post-employment benefits, the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) issued GASB Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions”. The purpose of the Statement is to
require the accrual and reporting of liabilities for the actuarially determined health insurance
premiums the City will be paying for retirees. The City implemented GASB Statement No. 45
effective fiscal year 2009. A description of the City’s post-employment benefits program can be found
in Note 18 in the Notes to Basic Financial Statements section of this report.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. This was the twenty-first consecutive year that the City has
received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City
published an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report satisfied both GAAP and
applicable legal requirements

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are
submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated
services of the entire staff of the Fiscal Affairs Department. We would like to express our
appreciation to all members of the department who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this
report. Credit also must be given to the Mayor and the City Council for their unfailing support for
maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the management of City finances.

Sincerely,
Beverly R. Cameron Clarence A. Robin
City Manager Director of Fiscal Affairs

vi
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ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

Independent Auditors' Report

To the Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Fredericksburg, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of City of Fredericksburg, Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which
collectively comprise the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia’s basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia’s
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities, and
Towns, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Fredericksburg, Virginia, as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position, and cash
flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia adopted the
provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions,
effective July 1, 2010.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 10, 2011,
on our consideration of the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.



Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and schedule of pension and OPEB funding
progress be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
management’s discussion and analysis and schedule of funding progress in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the management’s discussion and analysis and schedule of funding progress because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The budgetary
comparison information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia’s financial statements as a whole. The introductory section,
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical section, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the financial statements. The combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, and the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Pl B, (] o e

Fredericksburg, Virginia
October 10, 2011



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia (the “City””) we offer readers of the City’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2011. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with
additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages i-vi
of this report.

Financial Highlights

e Total net assets for governmental activities were $103,568,981 at the end of fiscal year 2011. This
figure is based on assets totaling $174,245,529 and liabilities of $70,676,548. Of the total net asset
amount, $23,055,185 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

e Total net assets for business-type activities were $56,023,790 at the end of fiscal year 2011. The
largest portion of this total is related to the water and sewer enterprise operations, valued at
$38,984,387.

e Total net assets for the primary government totaled $159,592,771. Current assets were $59,648,027
as compared to total current liabilities of $17,895,368. The resulting net working capital of
$41,752,659 represents a favorable liquidity position for the City.

e Total net assets for the Component Unit School Board at the end of the fiscal year were $17,774,298.
Of this total, $15,614,190 represents investment in capital assets, net of related debt.

e At the end of the fiscal year, the City’s unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$13,662,911, or 21.6% of total General Fund expenditures which totaled $63,311,781.

e The City has an established Financial Management Policy which specifies a targeted goal of
maintaining an unassigned General Fund balance of 12.0% of the actual General Fund revenues for
the preceding fiscal year. The fiscal year 2011 unassighed General Fund balance was 18.9% of the
fiscal year 2010 General Fund revenue total of $72,210,456.

e General Fund revenues increased 2.9% as compared to the preceding fiscal year. This represents an
increase from the 2.4% revenue growth experienced in fiscal year 2010.

o General Fund expenditures for fiscal year 2011 decreased a modest $138,178 as compared to the
fiscal year 2010 expenditure total.

e Governmental activities general obligation bond debt decreased by $3,127,831. The balance at the
end of the fiscal year was $55,195,626. Of this amount, $41,405,000 is related to the construction of
school facilities. Business-type activities general obligation and revenue bond debt decreased by
$1,998,889. The City did not issue any new debt during fiscal year 2011.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements,
which have the following components: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial
statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.



Overview of the Financial Statements: (Continued)

Government-wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The statements of net assets present information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying events giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities).

The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, highways and streets,
sanitation, economic development, and culture and recreation. The business-type activities of the City
include a Water Fund, a Sewer Fund, a Transit Fund, and a Parking Garage Fund.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary
government), but also a legally separate school district and a legally separate Economic Development
Authority. Financial information for these component units is reported separately from the financial
information presented for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 19-21 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with the similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental
funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains fourteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance for the General Fund, which is considered to be a major fund. Data from the other
thirteen governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for
each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in
this report.



Overview of the Financial Statements: (Continued)

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has
been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 25-28 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report
the functions presented as business-type activities in government-wide financial statements. The City uses
enterprise funds to account for its water, wastewater, transit, and parking garage operations.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the water,
wastewater, transit, and parking garage operations.

The basic proprietary fund financial statement can be found on pages 29-31 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs. The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 32 and 33 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 37-77 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
Statement of Net Assets:

Under GASB 34, governmental entities are required to report on their net asset condition. The Statement of
Net Assets presents the value of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two
reported as net assets. Over time, increases and decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of
changes in a government’s financial position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by
$159,592,771 at the close of fiscal year 2011.

A large portion of the City’s net assets, $120,064,210 or 75.2%, reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, buildings, machinery, equipment, and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire
those assets that are still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate
these liabilities. The $39,528,561 balance of unrestricted net assets may be used to meet the City’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of
net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type
activities and component units.



Government-wide Financial Analysis: (Continued)
Statement of Net Assets: (Continued)

The following table presents the condensed Statement of Net Assets:

TABLE 1
Summary of Net Assets
As of June 30, 2011
(in millions)
Governmental Business-type Total Primary Component
Activities Activities Government Units (1)
FY 11 FY 10 FY 11 FY 10 FY 11 FY 10 FY 11 FY 10

Assets:
Current and other assets $ 38.05% 34.81% 21.60%$ 20.66% 59.65%$ 55.47% 9.20% 7.39
Capital assets 136.20 141.30 60.39 61.05 196.59 202.35 15.61 15.13
Total assets $ 174.25% 176.11$% 81.99% 81.713% 256.24$% 257.82% 24.81% 22.52
Liabilities:
Current and other liabilities $ 11.92% 11.35% 5.97 $ 6.91%$ 17.89% 18.26% 4.29% 4.15
Long-term liabilities 58.76 61.05 20.00 22.00 78.76 83.05 1.39 1.16
Total Liabilities $ 70.68% 72.40% 25.97% 28.91% 96.65% 101.31% 5.68 $ 5.31
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt $ 80.51%$ 81.67$% 39.55% 39.78% 120.06% 121.45% 15.61$ 15.13
Unrestricted 23.06 22.04 16.47 13.02 39.53 35.06 3.52 2.08
Total net assets $ 103.57% 103.71% 56.02% 52.80% 159.59% 156.51$ 19.13$ 17.21

(1) Includes both the School Board and the Economic Development Authority (EDA). The discussion below
relates only to the School Board operations. EDA amounts are minimal and shown in the financial
statements (Exhibit 1).

Changes in Net Assets:

Governmental Activities

The net assets of the governmental activities decreased by $138,598 as compared to the $849,930 decrease
in the previous fiscal year and resulted in a total net assets position of $103,568,981. This modest reduction
represents the moderation of a trend noted in prior years where limited growth, or in some cases, negative
growth, in such general revenue sources as sales tax, business license tax, and meals tax has not kept pace
with the increase in costs in such areas as personnel, school board operations, and debt service.
Governmental activities revenues increased $1,007,624 or 1.3% during fiscal year 2011 with general property
taxes increasing $1,302,764 or 4.3% as compared to fiscal year 2010. Revenues from local sources exhibited
only a slight increase of $306,499 during the fiscal year; however, this represents the first time since fiscal
year 2008 that these revenues have demonstrated a year-over-year increase. Nevertheless, with the
nation’s economic recovery remaining uncertain, the City continued to maintain a conservative position in
its spending as governmental activities expenses decreased $222,912 during the fiscal year.

Business-type Activities

The net assets of the business-type activities increased $3,220,459 to a total net asset position of
$56,023,790. Much of this increase took place in the Water, Sewer, and Transit Funds as net assets grew
$901,520, $1,263,682, and $939,833, respectively. Pacing the increase in the Water and Sewer Funds was a
rise in residential development and the corresponding positive impact to availability and connection fees,
which increased $645,328 and $1,551,178, respectively. The Water Fund net assets position also improved
as operating expenditures decreased $346,424 or 12.4% as compared to fiscal year 2010. In the Sewer Fund,
operating expenses grew $668,395 as depreciation expense was recorded for several recently completed
capital projects.



Changes in Net Assets: (Continued)

Business-type Activities: (Continued)

Overall, the Water and Sewer Funds have experienced an eroding net asset position the past few years.
Rate increases along with reductions in the day-to-day operating expenses have provided some help in
stabilizing the financial position of these funds. However, with ongoing needs for capital improvements and
ever growing pressures to control operating expenses, future rate increases as well as an operational
restructuring of these utilities may be needed.

The Transit Fund net asset position increased as $870,726 of federal and state capital grants were received
during fiscal year 2011 for the purchase of land and buildings for a new training and maintenance facility.

Component Units

The net assets of the School Board were $17,774,298. Capital assets, net of related debt, comprised the
majority of this amount.

The following table shows the revenues and expenses of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, and the component units:

TABLE 2
Changes in Net Assets
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2011
(in millions)
Governmental Business-type Total Primary Component
Activities Activities Government Units
FY 11 FY 10 FYy 11 FY 10 FYy 11 FY 10 FY 11 FY 10
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for services $ 3.64% 332% 668% 647 $ 1032 $ 9.79 % 111 $ 0.84
Operating grants and contributions 10.16 10.07 6.62 5.27 16.78 15.34 37.61 37.19
Capital grants and contributions 0.84 1.75 0.87 0.93 1.71 2.68 - 0.06
General Revenues:
Property taxes 31.25 29.95 - - 31.25 29.95 - -
Other local taxes 30.29 29.99 0.77 0.32 31.06 30.31 0.07 0.08
Grants not restricted 3.91 3.81 - - 3.91 3.81 - -
Use of property 0.16 0.13 - - 0.16 0.13 - -
Investment earnings 0.28 0.41 0.07 0.12 0.35 0.53 0.02 0.02
Miscellaneous 0.29 0.39 0.45 0.51 0.74 0.90 0.08 0.24
Total Revenues $ 80.82 $ 79.82 $ 15.46 $ 13.62 $ 96.28 $ 93.44 $ 38.89 $ 38.43
Expenses:
General government $ 541 % 517 % - $ -$%$ 541 % 517 $ -$ -
Judicial administration 3.61 3.85 - - 3.61 3.85 - -
Public safety 19.94 20.20 - - 19.94 20.20 - -
Public works 10.71 10.97 - - 10.71 10.97 - -
Health and welfare 6.80 6.72 - - 6.80 6.72 - -
Education 26.38 26.23 - - 26.38 26.23 36.74 37.78
Parks, recreation, and cultural 4.03 3.94 - - 4.03 3.94 - -
Community development 1.93 1.82 - - 1.93 1.82 0.23 0.18
Interest 2.54 2.67 - - 2.54 2.67 - -
Water - - 2.52 2.88 2.52 2.88 - -
Sewer - - 4.98 4.16 4.98 4.16 - -
Transit - - 3.89 3.60 3.89 3.60 - -
Parking - - 0.46 0.53 0.46 0.53 - -
Total Expenses $ 81.35 $ 81.57 $ 11.85 $ 11.17 $ 93.20 $ 92.74 $ 36.97 $ 37.96
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenses before transfers $ (053)$ (1.75)$% 361 $ 245 3% 3.08% 070 % 192 % 0.47
Transfers 0.39 0.90 (0.39) (0.90) - - - -
Change in net assets $ (0.14H)$% (0.85% 322 $ 155% 3.08%$ 0.70%$ 192 $ 0.47




Financial Analysis of the City’s Governmental Funds

The City’s governmental funds include the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Funds,
and Debt Service Funds.

Revenues:

A summary of the general revenue sources for the governmental funds for fiscal years 2011 and 2010 is
presented below:

TABLE 3
Governmental Funds - Revenues
Percentage Increase
of Total (Decrease)
Revenues from

FY 2011 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2010
General property taxes $ 31,240,415 $ 29,903,318 38.30% $ 1,337,097
Other local taxes 30,285,024 29,978,525 37.12% 306,499
Licenses and permits 945,035 822,476 1.16% 122,559
Fines and forfeitures 586,421 344,897 0.72% 241,524
Use of money and property 441,779 537,035 0.54% (95,256)
Charges for services 2,104,997 2,153,238 2.58% (48,241)
Miscellaneous 257,448 391,890 0.32% (134,442)
Recovered costs 1,004,106 1,256,605 1.23% (252,499)
Intergovernmental 14,712,214 14,576,412 18.03% 135,802
Totals $ 81,577,439 $ 79,964,396 100.00% $ 1,613,043

FY2011 GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - REVENUES
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Financial Analysis of the City’s Governmental Funds: (Continued)
Revenues: (Continued)

The City’s total revenues from governmental activities were $81,577,439 in fiscal year 2011, an increase of
$1,613,043 as compared to fiscal year 2010. A significant portion of the increase occurred as general
property tax revenue rose $1,337,097 or 4.5%. The growth in general property taxes occurred as personal
property taxes increased $991,117 or 17.3% in response to higher assessment values related to the City’s
growing commercial development and the realization of a full fiscal year of collection activity under a tax
rate increase from $2.99 to $3.40, which become effective January 1, 2010. The percentage of general
property taxes as a share of governmental revenue, particularly in the General Fund, has been rising as
other revenues, most notably sales tax and other local taxes, have generally flattened out the last few
years. The rate increase was significant in counter-acting the negative budgetary impacts of stagnant local
revenues experienced in prior fiscal years.

Another positive impact on governmental revenues was the encouraging performance in other local tax
revenues. This revenue source, which in recent years has accounted for approximately 38% of total
governmental revenues, showed an overall increase for the first time since in several years. The impact of
this increase was felt greatest in the General Fund where 99.7% of these revenues were accounted for
during fiscal year 2011.

Revenue from the use of money and property continued a downward trend which began with the 2008
economic decline. As interest rates and investment returns remained at historically low levels, this revenue
source experienced a decrease of $95,256 during fiscal year 2011, with the greatest impact occurring in the
General Fund and the Public Works, Public Facilities, and Public Safety capital projects funds.

Other local tax revenue continues to be the most significant source of revenues supporting governmental
activities. The following table reflects other local tax revenues for the General Fund for fiscal years 2011
and 2010:

TABLE 4
Other Local Taxes - General Fund
Percentage Increase
of Total (Decrease)
Revenues from

FY 2011 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2010
Sales and use tax $ 10,191,895 $ 10,043,091 33.80% $ 148,804
Consumer utility tax 1,644,628 1,677,699 5.45% (33,071)
Business license tax 5,538,312 5,893,072 18.37% (354,760)
Motor vehicle license tax 429,626 375,553 1.42% 54,073
Bank stock tax 777,521 758,805 2.58% 18,716
Recordation tax 468,241 406,123 1.55% 62,118
Tobacco tax 554,701 503,322 1.84% 51,379
Amusement tax 341,693 319,137 1.13% 22,556
Hotel lodging tax 1,175,244 1,084,542 3.90% 90,702
Meals tax 8,842,347 8,132,542 29.33% 709,805
Other 188,898 294,534 0.63% (105,636)
Totals $ 30,153,106 $ 29,488,420 100.00% $ 664,686




Financial Analysis of the City’s Governmental Funds: (Continued)

FY2011 OTHER LOCAL TAXES - GENERAL FUND
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In recent years various sources of local tax revenue have experienced a flattening, or in some cases, a
declining growth rate. A slight reversal of this trend occurred during fiscal year 2011 as other local taxes
increased $664,686 or 2.2%. This was the first increase in other local taxes in several years with a vast
majority of the tax sources enjoying a favorable variance as compared to fiscal year 2010. The primary
contributor for the increase was meals tax, which rose 8.7% during the fiscal year.

Expenditures:

Expenditures for governmental funds in fiscal year 2011 totaled $79,605,793, a decrease of $2,241,984 from
the preceding year. This is a continuation of a trend which started in fiscal year 2008 to reduce overall
expenditures in response to the economic downturn and the resulting decrease in revenues. The largest
decrease occurred in the public safety and capital projects areas with a reduction in total expenditures of
$511,312 and $2,116,722, respectively. The most significant change in public safety expenditures was a
$408,852 reduction to the City’s share for the operation of regional correction and detention facilities,
which is accounted for in the General Fund.

The most notable decreases in capital projects took place in the Public Facilities and Public Safety capital
funds with expenditure reductions of $529,368 and $1,166,688, respectively. The decrease to the Public
Facilities capital fund is related to a major HVAC retrofit project that was completed during fiscal year
2010. The decrease to the Public Safety capital fund expenditures is attributable to the City’s fiscal year
2010 efforts related to the purchase of a new fire truck and two new ambulances totaling $1,210,350.

Excluding the decrease in the public safety and capital projects functional areas discussed above, only minor

increases or decreases in expenditure activity occurred in the functional areas within the General Fund and
Special Revenue Funds during fiscal year 2011.

10



Financial Analysis of the City’s Governmental Funds: (Continued)

Expenditures: (Continued)

TABLE 5
Governmental Funds - Expenditures
Percentage Increase
of Total (Decrease)
Expenditures from
FY 2011 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2010
General administration 5,034,113 $ 4,785,487 6.32% $ 248,626
Judicial administration 3,347,017 3,326,241 4.20% 20,776
Public safety 18,154,890 18,666,202 22.81% (511,312)
Public works 7,430,631 7,648,942 9.33% (218,311)
Health and welfare 7,136,173 7,004,337 8.97% 131,836
Education 24,343,841 24,143,850 30.58% 199,991
Parks, recreation, and cultural 3,389,943 3,441,368 4.26% (51,425)
Community development 2,255,173 2,168,755 2.83% 86,418
Capital projects 2,675,390 4,792,112 3.36% (2,116,722)
Debt service 5,838,622 5,870,483 7.34% (31,861)
Totals 79,605,793 $ 81,847,777 100.00% $ (2,241,984)
FY 2011 GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - EXPENDITURES
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of fiscal year 2011, the City Council amended the City budget. These budget changes
included various budget adjustments for:

e Amendments and appropriations approved after the beginning of the year to reflect prior year
encumbrances that must be re-authorized for expenditure in the new budget year.

e Increases in appropriations for budget items occurring during the year that were not part of the
original budget.

Total final budgeted expenditures increased $249,473 for fiscal year 2011. Total final budgeted revenues
increased $3,399,837 for fiscal year 2011.

Actual General Fund expenditures were $63,311,781 versus the final budgeted expenditures totaling
$65,354,757. This resulted in a favorable variance of $2,042,976. All functional areas had a favorable
variance, with general government administration, public safety, and public works experiencing the most
significant variance of $586,994, $432,824 and $498,931, respectively.

Actual General Fund revenues were $74,311,179 compared to final budgeted revenues totaling $73,457,315.
This resulted in a favorable variance of $853,864. The majority of the variance occurred with general
property taxes and other local taxes, which had favorable variances of $426,565 and $385,006, respectively.
Revenue from the use of money and property had an unfavorable variance of $132,454 as earnings rates on
money market and other investments remained at record low levels.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The following is a table that summarizes the City’s change in governmental Capital Assets:

TABLE 6
Change in Capital Assets
City Governmental Funds
Net
Balance Additions/ Balance
June 30, 2010 Deletions June 30, 2011
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 18,240,108 $ 270,809 $ 18,510,917
Construction in progress 787,776 721,975 1,509,751
Other capital assets:
Land improvements 9,490,965 60,538 9,551,503
Buildings and building improvements 30,690,344 270,760 30,961,104
Joint tenancy assets 42,665,000 (1,260,000) 41,405,000
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 14,472,080 686,902 15,158,982
Infrastructure 72,438,419 93,657 72,532,076
Accumulated depreciation (47,494,241) (5,937,245) (53,431,486)
Totals $ 141,290,451 $ (5,092,604) $ 136,197,847
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration: (Continued)
Capital Assets: (Continued)

The net decrease in capital assets during the fiscal year was $5,092,604. In recent years, major additions to
capital projects were linked to the completion of two new schools, a park with several athletic fields, an
outdoor leisure pool, a downtown parking garage, and a new police headquarters building. This vigorous
capital asset activity has slowed the past couple fiscal years in response to budget constraints dictated by
the unfavorable economic environment. Many capital projects have been deferred until a turnaround in the
economy occurs. Generally, capital asset activity decreased as asset dispositions and depreciation were
greater than the additions made to furniture, equipment and vehicles, and infrastructure.

Additional information regarding capital assets is presented in the Notes to Financial Statements section of
this report (Note 7).

Long-term Debt

The City is authorized to issue general obligation bonds to finance general capital improvement projects.
These bonds are secured by a pledge of the City’s full faith and credit. The City is currently rated AA+ by
Fitch Investors Services, Aa2 by Moody’s Investors Services and AA by Standard and Poor’s Investor Services.

The City has a self-imposed debt limitation of 4.8% of the total assessed value of all real property. As of
June 30, 2011 the City's outstanding long-term indebtedness amount totaled $76,530,741. After
adjustments to reflect the revenue bonded debt of 2,638,594, the remaining total bonded debt of
$73,892,147 is far below the legal debt limit of $211,856,637.

The table below shows a summary of all bonded debt activity during the 2011 fiscal year and the total City
debt outstanding:

TABLE 7
Long Term Debt
As of June 30, 2011
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
FY 2011 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2010
Bonds Payable:
General obligation
bonds $ 13,790,626 $ 15,658,457 $ 18,696,521 $ 19,700,689 $ 32,487,147 $ 35,359,146
General obligation
school bonds 41,405,000 42,665,000 - - 41,405,000 42,665,000
Revenue bonds - - 2,638,594 3,633,315 2,638,594 3,633,315
Total long-term
debt $ 55,195,626 $ 58,323,457 $ 21,335,115 $ 23,334,004 $ 76,530,741 $ 81,657,461

Additional information regarding long-term debt is presented in the Notes to Financial Statements section of
this report (Note 9).
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Economic Factors

The City government continues to maintain a reasonably stable financial condition as established by the
financial statements and schedules in this report. In recent years the City has been faced with immense
budgetary challenges as revenues declined in response to deteriorating economic conditions and expanding
regional competition in commercial retail development in neighboring localities. A considerable reduction
in expenditures over the past several years has helped to neutralize the budgetary impacts of diminishing
revenues. However, beginning in fiscal year 2010 and continuing during fiscal year 2011, revenues have
experienced a moderate upward trend. This is mostly attributable to the City’s diverse economic
foundation and the development and expansion of major commercial centers.

A potential source for future economic growth opportunities and community revitalization continues to
center around the 2,400 acre mega-development known as Celebrate Virginia and its primary retail shopping
and dining component, Central Park. Started in 1995, Central Park now includes 2.2 million square feet of
leased retail space housing many national big-box stores, restaurants, and smaller local businesses.
Opportunities for growth related revenues such as property taxes and various local taxes are anticipated as
Celebrate Virginia continues to develop. Possible major additions include numerous hotels and an indoor
water park resort. The 125,000 square-foot indoor water park, to be built next to the Fredericksburg Expo
and Conference Center, will include approximately 700 guest rooms, 100,000 square feet of conference and
event space, and numerous recreational attractions to include water slides, roller coasters, miniature golf,
and go-carts. The resort is estimated to create more than 1,900 jobs.

Another source for future economic growth is the University of Mary Washington Foundation’s Eagle Village
development project. This project will be developed over four phases and centers around the
redevelopment of a 1960°s-era strip shopping center. The Foundation recently completed the $115 million
Phase | of the Eagle Village mixed-use project. This phase includes 30,000 square feet of retail, 34,000
square feet of Class A office, a 550-space parking garage, and a 624-bed student apartment complex.

The City's nationally recognized 40-block Historic District continues to be a major component of the local
economy. The Historic "Old Town" District, with its major historical attractions, antique shops, a variety of
charming restaurants, specialty retail shops and beautifully restored homes, is an attractive tourist
destination. While tourism has been a mainstay of the City's economy, commercial development and
visionary downtown revitalization efforts continue to reflect economic potential for the City.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Fredericksburg’s finances for all
those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided
in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Office of the
Director of Fiscal Affairs, P.O. Box 7447, Fredericksburg, Virginia, 22401 or visit our website at
www.fredericksburgva.gov.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA Exhibit 1

Statement of Net Assets
At June 30, 2011

Component Units

Economic
Governmental Business-Type School Development
ASSETS Activities Activities Total Board Authority
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 32,596,609 $ 16,540,183 $ 49,136,792 $ 6,258,049 $ 1,345,497
Receivables, net of allowance for
uncollectibles 1,304,456 1,271,653 2,576,109 15,550 -
Due from other governments 4,102,006 2,994,809 7,096,815 1,401,493 -
Inventory, at cost 32,284 168,022 200,306 - -
Prepaid expenses 12,327 100 12,427 165,139 10,000
Restricted:
Temporarily restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents - 625,578 625,578 - -
Capital assets:
Land, construction in progress and other 20,020,668 2,521,527 22,542,195 497,679 -
Other capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation 116,177,179 57,868,033 174,045,212 15,116,511 -
Capital assets, net $ 136,197,847 $ 60,389,560 $ 196,587,407 $ 15,614,190 $ -
Total assets $ 174,245,529 $ 81,989,905 $ 256,235,434 $ 23,454,421 $ 1,355,497
LIABLITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1,799,132 $ 742,288 $ 2,541,420 $ 707,795 $ -
Accrued liabilities 2,298,692 375,730 2,674,422 3,052,778 -
Unearned revenue 1,693,160 2,028,361 3,721,521 - -
Amounts held for others 1,160,136 - 1,160,136 - -
Liabilities payable from restricted assets - 625,578 625,578 - -
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year:
Compensated absences 2,004,129 139,568 2,143,697 529,732 -
Revenue bonds payable - 1,028,829 1,028,829 - -
General obligation bonds payable 2,965,779 1,033,986 3,999,765 - -
Due in more than one year:
Compensated absences 1,228,337 69,148 1,297,485 488,983 -
Net OPEB obligation payable 3,322,883 311,663 3,634,546 900,835 -
Revenue bonds payable - 1,609,765 1,609,765 - -
General obligation bonds payable 53,420,301 18,001,199 71,421,500 - -
Accrued landfill postclosure costs 783,999 - 783,999 - -
Total liabilities $ 70,676,548 $ 25,966,115 $ 96,642,663 $ 5,680,123 $ -
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt $ 80,513,796 $ 39,550,414 $ 120,064,210 $ 15,614,190 $ -
Unrestricted 23,055,185 16,473,376 39,528,561 2,160,108 1,355,497
Total net assets $ 103,568,981 $ 56,023,790 $ 159,592,771 $ 17,774,298 $ 1,355,497

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Program Revenues

Charges for

Operating
Grants and

Capital
Grants and

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary Government
Governmental activities
General government $ 5,407,587 $ 85,191 255,880 -
Judicial administration 3,609,180 219,127 849,072 -
Public safety 19,937,181 2,111,221 1,860,146 -
Public works 10,707,212 733,070 2,458,943 447,854
Health and welfare 6,797,908 - 4,730,036 -
Education 26,383,137 - - -
Parks, recreation and cultural 4,031,435 487,368 5,000 189,300
Community development 1,930,369 476 - 204,716
Interest on long-term debt 2,542,424 - - -
Total governmental activities $ 81,346,433 $ 3,636,453 10,159,077 841,870
Business-type activities
Water $ 2,523,517 $ 2,344,438 1,080,466 -
Sewer 4,975,289 3,821,281 2,476,944 -
Transit 3,887,158 274,395 3,063,853 870,726
Parking 460,950 238,240 - -
Total business-type activities $ 11,846,914 $ 6,678,354 6,621,263 870,726
Total Primary Government $ 93,193,347 $ 10,314,807 16,780,340 1,712,596
Component Units
Fredericksburg City Public Schools $ 36,743,922 $ 726,171 12,256,465 -
Fredericksburg Economic Development Authority 225,338 384,167 - -
Total Component Units $ 36,969,260 $ 1,110,338 12,256,465 -

General Revenues

Taxes:

General property taxes, real and personal
Local sales and use taxes
Consumer utility taxes
Business license taxes
Hotel/lodging taxes

Meals taxes

Other local taxes
Payment from City of Fredericksburg:

Education

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Use of property

Interest and investment earnings

Miscellaneous

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year
Net assets, end of year

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 2

$

$

$
$

$

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
(5,066,516) $ - $ (5,066,516) $ -
(2,540,981) - (2,540,981) -
(15,965,814) - (15,965,814) -
(7,067,345) - (7,067,345) -
(2,067,872) - (2,067,872) -
(26,383,137) - (26,383,137) -
(3,349,767) - (3,349,767) -
(1,725,177) - (1,725,177) -
(2,542,424) - (2,542,424) -
(66,709,033) $ - $ (66,709,033) $ -

- $ 901,387 $ 901,387 $ -

- 1,322,936 1,322,936 -

- 321,816 321,816 -

- (222,710) (222,710) -

- $ 2,323,429 $ 2,323,429 $ -
(66,709,033) $ 2,323,429 $ (64,385,604) $ -
$ (23,761,286)

158,829

$ (23,602,457)

31,254,682 $ - $ 31,254,682 $ -
10,191,895 - 10,191,895 -
1,644,628 - 1,644,628 -
5,538,312 - 5,538,312 -
1,175,244 - 1,175,244 -
8,842,347 - 8,842,347 -
2,892,598 765,756 3,658,354 73,937
- - - 25,352,401
3,909,817 - 3,909,817 -
161,460 - 161,460 -
280,319 71,152 351,471 15,563
294,113 445,142 739,255 81,672
385,020 (385,020) - -
66,570,435 $ 897,030 $ 67,467,465 $ 25,523,573
(138,598) $ 3,220,459 $ 3,081,861 $ 1,921,116
103,707,579 52,803,331 156,510,910 17,208,679
103,568,981 $ 56,023,790 $ 159,592,771 $ 19,129,795
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
At June 30, 2011

Exhibit 3

ASSETS

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowances for
uncollectibles):
Property taxes
Accounts
Accrued revenue
Inventory, at cost
Prepaids
Due from other governments

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities:
Reconciled overdraft
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Amounts held for others
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Equity:

Fund balance:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Other Total
Governmental Governmental

General Funds Funds
$ 20,877,661 $ 11,788,144 $ 32,665,805
829,686 - 829,686
124,059 - 124,059
171,359 179,352 350,711
32,284 - 32,284
12,327 - 12,327
2,713,348 1,388,658 4,102,006
$ 24,760,724 $ 13,356,154 $ 38,116,878
$ - $ 69,196 $ 69,196
912,730 886,402 1,799,132
1,034,860 92,815 1,127,675
1,160,136 - 1,160,136
2,313,842 - 2,313,842
$ 5,421,568 $ 1,048,413 $ 6,469,981
$ 44,611 $ - $ 44,611
- 193,070 193,070
5,257,805 4,461,630 9,719,435
373,829 7,653,041 8,026,870
13,662,911 - 13,662,911
$ 19,339,156 $ 12,307,741 $ 31,646,897
$ 24,760,724 $ 13,356,154 $ 38,116,878

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets
At June 30, 2011

Exhibit 4

Total fund balances for governmental funds (Exhibit 3)

Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets is
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are
not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of:

Land $
Construction in progress

Land improvements, net of accumulated depreciation

Buildings and improvements, net of accumulated depreciation

Joint tenancy assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation

Machinery, vehicles, and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets

Some of the City's property and other taxes will be collected after year-end, but are not
available soon enough to pay for the current year's expenditures, and therefore are
reported as deferred revenue in the funds

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not due and
payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. Balances
of long-term liabilities affecting net assets are as follows:

Accrued interest on debt $
Bonds and notes payable
Premium on long-term debt, net of accumulated amortization
Landfill postclosure cost liability
Compensated absences not reported as fund liabilities

Net OPEB obligation not reported as fund liabilities

Total net assets of governmental activities (Exhibits 1 and 2)

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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18,510,917
1,509,751
7,943,571

20,913,802

37,313,105

43,182,789

6,823,912

(1,171,017)
(55,195,626)
(1,190,454)

(783,999)

$

$

31,646,897

136,197,847

620,682

(58,341,096)

(3,232,466)

(3,322,883)

103,568,981



CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA Exhibit 5
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2011
Other Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
Revenues
Property taxes $ 31,240,415 $ - $ 31,240,415
Other local taxes 30,153,106 131,918 30,285,024
Permits, privilege fees and
regulatory licenses 945,035 - 945,035
Fines and forfeitures 387,090 199,331 586,421
Use of money and property 162,296 279,483 441,779
Charges for services 1,993,961 111,036 2,104,997
Miscellaneous 129,473 127,975 257,448
Recovered costs 490,178 513,928 1,004,106
Intergovernmental:
Revenue from the Commonwealth 8,760,625 2,729,979 11,490,604
Revenue from the Federal Government 49,000 3,172,610 3,221,610
Total revenues $ 74,311,179 $ 7,266,260 $ 81,577,439
Expenditures
Current:
General government administration $ 5,034,113 $ - $ 5,034,113
Judicial administration 3,257,520 89,497 3,347,017
Public safety 17,767,003 387,887 18,154,890
Public works 7,428,886 1,745 7,430,631
Health and welfare 948,762 6,187,411 7,136,173
Education - local community college
and other 5,750 - 5,750
Education - public school system 24,138,091 200,000 24,338,091
Parks, recreation and cultural 3,297,575 92,368 3,389,943
Community development 1,434,081 821,092 2,255,173
Capital projects - 2,675,390 2,675,390
Debt service:
Principal payments - 3,127,831 3,127,831
Interest and fiscal charges - 2,710,791 2,710,791
Total expenditures $ 63,311,781 $ 16,294,012 $ 79,605,793
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures $ 10,999,398 $ (9,027,752) $ 1,971,646
Other financing sources (uses)
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets $ 36,665 $ - $ 36,665
Transfers in 1,160,980 10,752,648 11,913,628
Transfers out (10,618,454) (910,154) (11,528,608)
Total other financing sources (uses) $ (9,420,809) $ 9,842,494 $ 421,685
Net change in fund balance $ 1,578,589 $ 814,742 $ 2,393,331
Fund balance, beginning of year, as restated 17,760,567 11,492,999 29,253,566
Fund balance, end of year $ 19,339,156 $ 12,307,741 $ 31,646,897

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit 6

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit 5)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense.

Capital outlays
Depreciation

Transfer of joint tenancy assets from Primary Government to the Component Unit School Board

Donations of capital assets received during the current period

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds, revenues are
recorded when measurable and realizable to pay current obligations. However, in the
statement of net assets revenues are reported when earned. This requires adjustments to
convert the revenues to the accrual basis.

Bond and loan proceeds are reported as financing sources in governmental funds and thus
contribute to the change in fund balance. In the statement of net assets, however, issuing
debt increases the long term liabilities and does not affect the statement of activities.
Similarly, the repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds but reduces
the liability in the statement of net assets.

Debt issued:
Amortization of premium on long-term debt
Repayments of long-term debt:
General obligation bonds

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds, expenditures
are not recognized for transactions that are not normally paid with expendable financial
resources. In the statement of activities, however, which is presented on the accrual basis,
expenses and liabilities are reported regardless of when financial resources are available. In
addition, interest on long term debt is not recognized under the modified accrual basis of
accounting until due, rather than as it accrues. This adjustment combines the net changes of
the following:

Compensated absences

Net OPEB obligation payable
Accrued interest on bonds and loans
Accrued landfill post-closure costs

Net adjustment

Change in net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit 2)

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2,085,537

(6,372,520)

111,395

3,127,831

(177,427)

(563,067)
56,972
(9,296)

2,393,331

(4,286,983)

(1,004,171)

198,550

14,267

3,239,226

(692,818)
(138,598)



CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA Exhibit 7

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
At June 30, 2011

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Wastewater Transit Parking
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,289,386 $ 3,919,291 $ 5,313,789 $ 17,717 $ 16,540,183
Accounts ret_:eivable, net of allowance for
uncollectibles 473,147 769,433 - - 1,242,580
Accrued revenue 5,593 5,000 4,978 13,502 29,073
Inventory, at cost 132,899 35,123 - - 168,022
Prepaid expenses 50 50 - - 100
Due from other governments - 2,148,096 524,339 322,374 2,994,809
Restricted assets:
Temporarily restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents 625,578 - - - 625,578
Total current assets $ 8,526,653 $ 6,876,993 $ 5,843,106 $ 353,593 $ 21,600,345
Capital Assets:
Land $ 701,345 $ 114,880 $ 550,686 $ 782,125 $ 2,149,036
Construction in progress 96,436 192,035 84,020 - 372,491
Dams and reservoirs 663,536 - - - 663,536
Buildings and systems 16,072,973 38,299,128 5,965,746 6,513,766 66,851,613
Furniture, machinery and equipment 353,408 2,529,434 2,983,924 208,330 6,075,096
Intangible assets 4,745,283 1,556,496 - - 6,301,779
Total property, plant and equipment $ 22,632,981 $ 42,691,973 $ 9,584,376 $ 7,504,221 $ 82,413,551
Less: Accumulated depreciation (6,994,198) (12,596,918) (1,712,054) (720,821) (22,023,991)
Capital assets, net $ 15,638,783 $ 30,095,055 $ 7,872,322 $ 6,783,400 $ 60,389,560
Total assets $ 24,165,436 $ 36,972,048 $ 13,715,428 $ 7,136,993 $ 81,989,905
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 367,570 $ 271,923 $ 86,392 $ 16,403 $ 742,288
Accrued liabilities 12,379 40,093 39,577 1,402 93,451
Interest payable 7,408 274,871 - - 282,279
Compensated absences, current portion 40,529 76,220 21,966 853 139,568
Unearned revenue, current portion 21,700 55,912 - - 77,612
Revenue bonds payable, current portion - 1,028,829 - - 1,028,829
General obligation bonds payable, current portion 262,926 597,106 - 173,954 1,033,986
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Customer deposits 625,578 - - - 625,578
Total current liabilities $ 1,338,090 $ 2,344,954 $ 147,935 $ 192,612 $ 4,023,591
Noncurrent liabilites:
Unearned revenue, noncurrent portion $ - $ 1,950,749 $ - $ - $ 1,950,749
Compensated absences, noncurrent portion 24,840 13,451 30,334 523 69,148
Net OPEB obligation 81,123 139,505 84,033 7,002 311,663
Revenue bonds payable, noncurrent portion - 1,609,765 - - 1,609,765
General obligation bonds payable, noncurrent portion 1,639,059 13,011,561 - 3,350,579 18,001,199
Total noncurrent liabilities $ 1,745,022 $ 16,725,031 $ 114,367 $ 3,358,104 $ 21,942,524
Total liabilities $ 3,083,112 $ 19,069,985 $ 262,302 $ 3,550,716 $ 25,966,115
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 13,736,798 $ 14,682,427 $ 7,872,322 $ 3,258,867 $ 39,550,414
Unrestricted 7,345,526 3,219,636 5,580,804 327,410 16,473,376
Total net assets $___ 21,082,324 $__ 17,902,063 $ 13,453,126 $_ 3,586,277 $ 56,023,790

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit 8

Operating revenues:
Charges for services

Operating expenses:
Personal services
Fringe benefits
Contractual services
Other operating expenses
Depreciation expense

Total operating expenses
Total operating income (loss)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income
Gasoline tax receipts
Availability/connection fees
Miscellaneous
State and local grant funds
Federal grant funds
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers
Capital grants and contributions:
State and local grant funds
Federal grant funds

Total capital grants and contributions

Transfers:
Transfers out

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

$

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Wastewater Transit Parking

Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
2,344,438 $ 3,821,281 $ 274,395 $ 238,240 $ 6,678,354
359,598 $ 815,633 $ 1,880,677 $ 95,276 $ 3,151,184
205,829 436,330 430,027 22,923 1,095,109
1,180,241 1,143,076 268,934 18,571 2,610,822
232,258 474,255 764,880 25,666 1,497,059
471,709 1,391,266 542,640 144,164 2,549,779
2,449,635 $ 4,260,560 $ 3,887,158 $ 306,600 $ 10,903,953
(105,197) $ (439,279) $  (3,612,763) $ (68,360) $ (4,225,599)
15,844 $ 23,788 $ 15,760 $ 15,760 $ 71,152
- - 443,382 322,374 765,756
1,080,466 2,415,283 - - 3,495,749
165,851 120,416 158,875 - 445,142
- - 1,724,130 - 1,724,130
- 61,661 1,339,723 - 1,401,384
(73,882) (714,729) - (154,350) (942,961)
1,188,279 $ 1,906,419 $ 3,681,870 $ 183,784 $ 6,960,352
1,083,082 $ 1,467,140 $ 69,107 $ 115,424 $ 2,734,753
-$ - $ 144,203 $ -$ 144,203
- - 726,523 - 726,523
-3 - $ 870,726 $ - $ 870,726
(181,562) $ (203,458) $ - $ - $ (385,020)
901,520 $ 1,263,682 $ 939,833 $ 115,424 $ 3,220,459
20,180,804 16,638,381 12,513,293 3,470,853 52,803,331
21,082,324 $ 17,902,063 $ 13,453,126 $ 3,586,277 $ 56,023,790

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

30



CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit 9

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Other miscellaneous receipts
Payments to suppliers
Payments to and for employees

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Availability and connection fees
State, federal and local grant funds
Transfers

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest income

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Purchase of capital assets

Disposal of capital assets

State, federal and local grant funds
Principal payment on debt

Interest paid on debt

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and
related financing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents for the year

Cash and cash equivalents (including restricted),
beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents (including restricted),
end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation

Other miscellaneous receipts
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Inventory

Accrued revenue

Prepaid expenses

Due from other governments

Reconciled overdraft

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Net OPEB obligation

Unearned revenue

Compensated absences

Deposits payable from restricted assets

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

$

$

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Wastewater Transit Parking

Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
2,394,728 $ 3,707,574 $ 1,160,762 $ 231,155 $ 7,494,219
165,851 120,416 602,257 322,374 1,210,898
(2,181,631) (3,846,164) (1,029,746) (112,547) (7,170,088)
(552,882) (1,221,774) (2,295,300) (116,652) (4,186,608)
(173,934) $ (1,239,948) $  (1,562,027) $ 324,330 $ (2,651,579)
1,080,466 $ 2,415,283 $ - $ -3 3,495,749
- 61,661 3,063,853 - 3,125,514
(181,562) (203,458) - - (385,020)
898,904 $ 2,273,486 $ 3,063,853 $ - 3% 6,236,243
15,844 $ 23,788 $ 15,760 $ 15,760 $ 71,152
(24,425) $ (1,048,393) $ (861,688) $ - $ (1,934,506)
- 50,841 - - 50,841
- - 870,726 - 870,726
(285,864) (1,574,493) - (168,023) (2,028,380)
(74,135) (711,935) - (154,350) (940,420)
(384,424) $ (3,283,980) $ 9,038 $ (322,373) $ (3,981,739)
356,390 $ (2,226,654) $ 1,526,624 $ 17,717 $ (325,923)
7,558,574 6,145,945 3,787,165 - 17,491,684
7,914,964 $ 3,919,291 $ 5,313,789 $ 17,717 $ 17,165,761
(105,197) $ (439,279) $ (3,612,763) $ (68,360) $ (4,225,599)
471,709 1,391,266 542,640 144,164 2,549,779
165,851 120,416 602,257 322,374 1,210,898
(15,787) (28,095) - - (43,882)
59,311 3,462 - - 62,773
(1,608) 1,399 45,851 (5,769) 39,873
(15) (15) - - (30)
- (2,093,672) 840,516 (1,316) (1,254,472)
- - - (68,643) (68,643)
(824,324) (1,940,938) 13,757 333 (2,751,172)
(4,104) (291,342) (9,689) - (305,135)
14,165 25,969 14,165 1,180 55,479
6,252 2,006,661 - - 2,012,913
(1,620) 4,220 1,239 367 4,206
61,433 - - - 61,433
(173,934) $ (1,239,948) $  (1,562,027) $ 324,330 $ (2,651,579)

There were no non-cash investing and financing activities during the year.

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
At June 30, 2011

Exhibit 10

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Prepaid items
Capital assets:
Machinery and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation

Total assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities
Amounts held for others

Total liabilities

Net Assets:
Held in trust for land conservation (see Note 1)

Private
Agency Purpose Trust

Funds Funds
1,015,242 1,785,667
157,808 29,553
17,797 -
- 22,656
1,190,847 1,837,876
41,540 1,088
19,830 5,635
1,129,477 -
1,190,847 6,723
- 1,831,153

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Private Purpose Trust Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit 11

Additions:
Contributions:
Contributions
Investment income:
Interest earned on investments

Total additions

Deductions:
Payments for property management

Net increase in plan assets

Net assets held in trust for land conservation:

Balance, beginning of year

Balance, end of year

119,188

28,582

147,770

69,492

78,278

1,752,875

1,831,153

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Statement of Activities
Component Units
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Functions/Programs

School Board
Education

Economic Development Authority
Community development

Total component units

Program Revenues

Contributions Contributions

12,256,465 $

Charges
for
Expenses Services
$ 36,743,922 $ 726,171 $
225,338 384,167
$ 36,969,260 $ 1,110,338 $

12,256,465 $

General revenues
Payment from/(to) City of Fredericksburg
Other local taxes
Interest and investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total general revenues
Change in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 12

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Economic
School Development

Board Authority Totals
(23,761,286) $ - (23,761,286)
- 158,829 158,829
(23,761,286) $ 158,829 (23,602,457)
25,342,262 $ 10,139 25,352,401
73,937 - 73,937
- 15,563 15,563
81,672 - 81,672
25,497,871 $ 25,702 25,523,573
1,736,585 $ 184,531 1,921,116
16,037,713 1,170,966 17,208,679
17,774,298 $ 1,355,497 19,129,795
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2011

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Narrative Profile

The City of Fredericksburg, Virginia (the “City”) was incorporated in 1782 and its current Charter was
granted in 1942. The City operates under a Council/Manager form of government. The Council consists of a
Mayor and six (6) council members. The Mayor and two (2) council members are elected at large and four
(4) council members are elected by wards. The Council is responsible for appointing the City Manager. The
City provides a full range of services as authorized by its Charter. These services include police and fire
protection; sanitation services; the construction and maintenance of highways, streets, and infrastructure;
recreational activities; cultural events; education; social services and water and sewer. The City is located
in Northeastern Virginia and is bordered by the Counties of Spotsylvania and Stafford.

The financial statements of the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia have been prepared in conformity with the
specifications promulgated by the Auditor of Public Accounts (APA) of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and
the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States as specified by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The more significant of the government’s accounting policies are
described below.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

Management’s Discussion and Analysis: GASB Statement No. 34 requires that financial statements be
accompanied by a narrative introduction and analytical overview of the government’s financial activities
in the form of “management’s discussion and analysis” (MD&A). This analysis is similar to analysis the
private sector provides in their annual reports.

Government-wide Financial Statements: The reporting model includes financial statements prepared
using full accrual accounting for all of the government’s activities. This approach includes not just
current assets and liabilities (such as cash and accounts payable) but also capital assets and long-term
liabilities (such as buildings and infrastructure, including bridges and roads, and general obligation
debt). Accrual accounting also reports all of the revenues and costs of providing services each year, not
just those received or paid in the current year or soon thereafter.

Statement of Net Assets: The Statement of Net Assets is designed to display the financial position of the
primary government (government and business-type activities) and its discretely presented component
units.  Governments report all capital assets, including infrastructure, in the government-wide
Statement of Net Assets and report depreciation expense - the cost of “using up” capital assets - in the
Statement of Activities. The net assets of a government will be broken down into three categories: 1)
invested in capital assets, net of related debt; 2) restricted; and 3) unrestricted.

Statement of Activities: The government-wide statement of activities reports expenses and revenues in a
format that focuses on the cost of each of the government’s functions. The expense of individual
functions is compared to the revenues generated directly by the function (for instance, through user
charges or intergovernmental grants).
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2011

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

A. Financial Reporting Entity: (Continued)

Budgetary Comparison Schedules: Demonstrating compliance with the adopted budget is an important
component of a government’s accountability to the public. Many citizens participate in the process of
establishing the annual operating budgets of state and local governments, and have a keen interest in
following the actual financial progress of their governments over the course of the year. The City and
many other governments revise their original budgets over the course of the year for a variety of
reasons. Under the reporting model, governments provide budgetary comparison information in their
annual reports. This information includes presenting the government’s original budget as well as a
comparison of final budget and actual results for its major funds.

As required by the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, these financial
statements present the primary government and its component units, entities for which the government
is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities,
are, in substance, part of the government’s operations and so data from these units are combined with
data of the primary government. The City has no component units that meet the requirements for
blending. The discretely presented component units, on the other hand, are reported in a separate
column in the government-wide statements to emphasize they are legally separate from the primary
government. Each discretely presented component unit has a June 30 fiscal year-end.

Inclusions in the Reporting Entity:

1. Component Units:

a. Fredericksburg City School Board:

The Fredericksburg City School Board is elected to four year terms by the City voters. The School
Board may hold property and issue debt subject to approval by the City Council. However, the
City is responsible for the repayment of the debt. The School Board provides public primary and
secondary education services to the City residents. The primary funding sources of the School
Board are state and federal grants, and appropriations from the City, which are significant since
the School Board does not have separate taxing authority. The City also approves the School
Board budget. The School Board does not issue separate financial statements.

b. Fredericksburg Economic Development Authority:

The Fredericksburg Economic Development Authority was created by council resolution pursuant
to state statute and it is legally separate from the City. The Council appoints seven (7) board
members; however, the City cannot impose its will on the Authority since it does not have the
ability to modify or approve the budget or overrule or modify the decisions of the board
members. The Authority is fiscally independent and there is no financial benefit or burden
relationship with the City. However, the Authority performs economic development services
exclusively to the City as an administrative entity for the City through the authorization of
industrial development revenue bonds and recruitment of potential businesses for location in the
City, and City Council must approve the issuance of all revenue bonds. However, the Authority
does not provide specific benefits for other governments or others that are not part of the
reporting entity. Accordingly, the Authority is reported as a discretely presented component unit
of the City.

A copy of the Authority’s financial statements may be obtained from the City of Fredericksburg,
Virginia Department of Fiscal Affairs, 715 Princess Anne Street, Fredericksburg, Virginia 22401.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2011

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

A. Financial Reporting Entity: (Continued)

Exclusions from the Reporting Entity:

1. Jointly Governed Organizations:

Jointly governed organizations are regional governments or other multi-governmental arrangements
that are governed by representation from each of the governments that create the organizations,
and the participants do not retain an ongoing financial interest or responsibility in the organization.

The financial activities of the following organizations are excluded from the accompanying financial
statements for the reasons indicated:

a. Rappahannock Security Center

The Rappahannock Security Center is considered an intergovernmental (joint) venture and
therefore its operations are not included in the City’s financial statements. The Center provides
adult detention services for its participant localities. The Counties of Spotsylvania, Stafford and
King George and the City provide the financial support for the Center and appoint its governing
Board, in which is vested the ability to execute contracts and to budget and expend funds. The
City appoints three (3) of the nine (9) members of the Board. No one locality contributes more
than 50% of the Center’s funding. The City provided $3,245,028 in operating and other funds to
the Center in 2011.

b. Rappahannock Regional Library

The Rappahannock Regional Library is considered an intergovernmental (joint) venture and
therefore its operations are not included in the City’s financial statements. The Counties of
Westmoreland, Stafford and Spotsylvania and the City provide the financial support for the
Library and appoint its governing Board, in which is vested the ability to execute contracts and to
budget and expend funds. The City appoints two (2) of the seven (7) members of the Board. No
one locality contributes more than 50% of the Library’s funding. The City provided $1,048,690 in
operating funds to the Library in 2011.

c. Rappahannock Regional Solid Waste Management Board

The Rappahannock Regional Solid Waste Management Board is considered an intergovernmental
(joint) venture and therefore its operations are not included in the City’s financial statements.
The County of Stafford and the City provide some financial support for the Board and appoint its
governing Board, in which is vested the ability to execute contracts and to budget and expend
funds. No one locality contributes more than 50% of the Board’s funding. The Board provides
solid waste disposal services to its participating localities through user fees based on each
locality’s amount of solid waste processed by the Board.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2011

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

A. Financial Reporting Entity: (Continued)

Exclusions from the Reporting Entity: (Continued)

1. Jointly Governed Organizations: (Continued)

d. Rappahannock Area Community Services Board

The Board was created by Council and other participant localities pursuant to state statute and it
is legally separate from the City. The Mayor appoints the three (3) board members; however, the
City cannot impose its will on the Board since it does not have the ability to modify or approve
the budget or overrule or modify the decisions of the Board. The Board is fiscally independent
and there is no financial benefit or burden relationship with the City. Therefore, it is not
included in the City’s financial statements. The Board provides mental health, mental
retardation and substance abuse services to residents of the participant localities. The City
provided operating grants of $191,325 to the Board in 2011.

e. Rappahannock Area Agency on Aging

The Agency was created by Council and other participant localities pursuant to state statute and
it is legally separate from the City. The Council appoints the two (2) board members; however,
the City cannot impose its will on the Board since it does not have the ability to modify or
approve the budget or overrule or modify the decisions of the board members. The Agency is
fiscally independent and there is no financial benefit or burden relationship with the City.
Therefore, it is not included in the City’s financial statements. The City contributed $7,880 in
operating grants to the Agency in 2011.

f. George Washington Regional Commission

The Commission was created by Council and other participant localities pursuant to state statute
and it is legally separate from the City. The Council appoints the four (4) commissioners;
however, the City cannot impose its will on the Commission since it does not have the ability to
modify or approve the budget or overrule or modify the decisions of the commissioners. The
Commission is fiscally independent and there is no financial benefit or burden relationship with
the City. Therefore, it is not included in the City’s financial statements. The City contributed
$20,603 in operating grants to the Commission in 2011.

g. Rappahannock Juvenile Detention Center

The Center was created by Council and other participant localities pursuant to state statute and
it is legally separate from the City. The Council appoints the only commissioner; however, the
City cannot impose its will on the Commission since it does not have the ability to modify or
approve the budget or overrule or modify the decisions of the commissioner. The Commission is
fiscally independent and there is no financial benefit or burden relationship with the City.
Therefore, it is not included in the City’s financial statements. The Center provides juvenile
detention services for its participant localities. The City provided operating funds of $425,156 to
the Center in 2011.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2011

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

A. Financial Reporting Entity: (Continued)

Exclusions from the Reporting Entity: (Continued)

1. Jointly Governed Organizations: (Continued)

h. Spotsylvania - Stafford - Fredericksburg - (Regional) Group Home

The Home was created by Council and other participant localities pursuant to state statute and it
is legally separate from the City. The Council appoints the two (2) board members; however, the
City cannot impose its will on the Board since it does not have the ability to modify or approve
the budget or overrule or modify the decisions of the board members. The Board is fiscally
independent and there is no financial benefit or burden relationship with the City. Therefore, it
is not included in the City’s financial statements. The City provided $33,165 in operating funds
to the Home in 2011.

i. Stafford Regional Airport Commission

The Commission was created by Council resolution pursuant to state statute and it is legally
separate from the City. The Council appoints the only commissioner; however, the City cannot
impose its will on the Commission since it does not have the ability to modify or approve the
budget or overrule or modify the decisions of the commissioner. The Commission is fiscally
independent and there is no financial benefit or burden relationship with the City. Therefore, it
is not included in the City’s financial statements. The City provided $21,429 in operating funds
to the Commission in 2011.

Obtaining of Financial Statements for Jointly Governed Organizations

Complete financial statements of the jointly governed organizations may be obtained by contacting
the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia Department of Fiscal Affairs, 715 Princess Anne Street,
Fredericksburg, Virginia 22401.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the City as a whole) and fund
financial statements. The focus is on both the City as a whole and the fund financial statements,
including the major individual funds of the governmental and business-type categories, as well as the
fiduciary funds (by category) and the component units. Both the government-wide and fund financial
statements (within the basic financial statements) categorize primary activities as either governmental
or business-type. In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental and business-
type activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b) are reflected on a
full accrual, economic resource basis, which incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as
long-term debt and obligations. Each presentation provides valuable information that can be analyzed
and compared (between years and between governments) to enhance the usefulness of the information.
The City generally first uses restricted assets for expenses incurred for which both restricted and
unrestricted assets are available. The City may defer the use of restricted assets based on a review of
the specific transaction.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2011

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements: (Continued)

The government-wide Statement of Activities reflects both the gross and net cost per functional
category (public safety, public works, health and welfare, etc.) that are otherwise being supported by
general government revenues (property, sales and use taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues,
fines, permits and charges, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including
depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants, and contributions. The
program revenues must be directly associated with the function (public safety, public works, health and
welfare, etc.) or a business-type activity. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operation or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported as general revenues. The City does not allocate indirect expenses. The
operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while
the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants. If applicable, internal service charges are
eliminated and the net income or loss from internal service activities are allocated to the various
functional expense categories based on the internal charges to each function.

In the fund financial statements, financial transactions and accounts of the City are organized on the
basis of funds. The operation of each fund is considered to be an independent fiscal and separate
accounting entity, with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and/or other financial resources
together with all related liabilities and residual equities or balances, and changes therein, which are
segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance
with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations. The fund statements are presented on a current
financial resource and modified accrual basis of accounting. This is the manner in which these funds are
normally budgeted. Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different measurement
focus and basis of accounting than the government-wide statements’ governmental column, a
reconciliation is presented which briefly explains the adjustments necessary to reconcile the fund
financial statements to the governmental column of the government-wide financial statements.

The City applies all GASB pronouncements as well as the Financial Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 unless these pronouncements conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements.

The City’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fund financial statements by type (private purpose and
agency). Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party (other local
governments, private parties, etc.) and cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the
government, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide statements. The following is a
brief description of the specific funds used by the City in FY 2011.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2011

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements: (Continued)

1. Governmental Funds:

Governmental Funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are financed.
The government reports the following governmental funds.

a. General Fund - The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City and accounts for all
revenues and expenditures applicable to the general operations of the City which are not
accounted for in other funds. Revenues are derived primarily from property and other local
taxes, licenses, permits, charges for services, use of money and property, and intergovernmental
grants. The General Fund is considered a major fund for financial reporting purposes.

b. Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds account for and report the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other
than debt service or capital projects. Special Revenue Funds include the following funds:

Virginia Public Assistance Fund - This fund accounts for the operations of the City’s Department
of Social Services. Funding is primarily from state and federal grants and local match
appropriations.

State, Federal and Local Grants Fund - This fund accounts for revenues and expenditures of state,
federal, and local grants which function on a reimbursement basis.

Central Park Special Tax District Fund - This fund accounts for the revenues, expenditures, and
other financing resources of the Central Park Special Service District.

Fall Hill Special Tax District Fund - This fund accounts for revenues, expenditures, and other
financing resources of the Fall Hill Special Service District.

Comprehensive Services Act Fund - This fund accounts for the Comprehensive Services Act grant
funds which provide assistance primarily for foster care and related services and the prevention
of foster care. Services provided include education, housing, health and food. Funding is
primarily from state grants and local match appropriations.

Courthouse Maintenance Fund - This fund accounts for the revenues, expenditures, and other
financing resources for courthouse maintenance.

c. Debt Service Funds - The Debt Service Fund accounts for and reports financial resources that are
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest. Debt service funds
should also be used to report financial resources being accumulated for future debt service. The
Debt Service Funds consist of the following:

General Obligation Bond Debt Service Fund - This fund accounts for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, general long-term obligation debt principal, interest, and
related charges.

Education Debt Service Fund - This fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, general long-term obligation debt principal, interest, and related charges for school
debt.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2011

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements: (Continued)

1. Governmental Funds: (Continued)

d. Capital Projects Funds - The Capital Projects Fund accounts for and reports financial resources
that are restricted, committed or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, except for those
financed by proprietary funds or for assets held in trust for individuals, private organizations, or
other governments. Capital Projects Funds include the following funds:

Public Works Construction Fund - This fund accounts for resources and expenditures for the
construction of and reconstruction of City streets, sidewalks, and bridges. Primary revenues
consist of taxes, grants, and transfers from the General Fund.

Public Facilities Construction Fund - This fund accounts for the construction, renovation, and
improvements of the City’s buildings and facilities. Financing is provided primarily by investment
earnings and transfers from the General Fund.

Public Safety Construction Fund - This fund accounts for the police and fire department projects.
Financing is provided primarily by investment earnings and transfers from the General Fund.

New High School Construction Fund - This fund accounts for resources and expenditures for the
construction of a new high school. Primary funding sources are school bond proceeds and
investment earnings.

New Court Construction Fund - This fund accounts for resources and expenditures for the
construction of a new court complex. Financing is provided by transfers from the general fund.

2. Proprietary Funds:

Proprietary Funds account for operations that are financed in a manner similar to private business
enterprises. The Proprietary Funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting where the measurement
focus is upon determination of net income, financial position, and changes in financial position.
Proprietary Funds consist of Enterprise and Internal Service Funds.

Operating revenues and expenses are defined as those items that result from providing services, and
include all transactions and events which are not capital and related financing, noncapital financing
or investing activities. Nonoperating revenues are defined as grants, investment and other income.
Nonoperating expenses are defined as noncapital related financing and other expenses.

44



CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2011

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements: (Continued)

2. Proprietary Funds: (Continued)

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds account for the financing of services to the general public where
all or most of the operating expenses involved are recovered in the form of charges to users of such
services. The Enterprise Funds consist of the following:

Water Utility Fund - This fund accounts for income and expenses of the City-owned water utility.

Wastewater Utility Fund - This fund accounts for income and expenses of the City-owned wastewater
utility.

Transit Fund - This fund accounts for income and expenses of the City-owned transit system.
Parking Fund - This fund accounts for income and expenses of the City-owned parking garage.

3. Fiduciary Funds (Trust and Agency Funds):

Fiduciary Funds (Trust and Agency Funds) account for assets held by a governmental unit in a trustee
capacity or as an agent or custodian for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units,
or other funds. The funds include Private Purpose Trust and Agency Funds. Private Purpose Trust
Funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting as described in the Proprietary Funds presentation.
Agency Funds also utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary Funds consist of the following:

Criminal Justice Academy Fund - This fund accounts for the revenue and expenditures of the
Regional Criminal Justice Training Academy.

Special Welfare Fund - This fund accounts for the principal and income of the Special Welfare
bequests and contributions.

Court Service Unit Fund - This fund accounts for the revenue and expenditures of the Court Service
Unit.

CASA Program Fund - This fund accounts for the revenue and expenditures of the Rappahannock Area
Court-Appointed Special Advocate Program.

Rappahannock Area Youth Commission Fund - This fund accounts for revenue and expenditures of the
Rappahannock Area Youth Commission delinquency prevention program.

Revenue Maximization Fund - This fund accounts for revenue and expenditures of the Revenue
Maximization Program.

Forfeited Asset Sharing Program Fund - This fund accounts for revenue and expenditures of the
Forfeited Asset Sharing Program.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2011

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements: (Continued)

3. Fiduciary Funds (Trust and Agency Funds): (Continued)

Community Development Authority Fund - This fund accounts for the real estate tax collections made
on behalf of the Community Development Authority.

Private Purpose Trust Fund - This fund accounts for increases and decreases in net assets held for
land conservation.

4. Component Units:

a. Fredericksburg City School Board:

The Discretely Presented Component Unit-School Board is used to account for the school related
activities and to emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government. School
Board Funds consist of the following:

Governmental Funds:

School Operating Fund - This fund is the primary operating fund of the School Board and accounts
for all revenues and expenditures applicable to the general operations of the public school
system. Revenues are derived primarily from charges for services, appropriations from the City
of Fredericksburg and state and federal grants.

Special Revenue Fund: Special revenue funds account for and report the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other
than debt service or capital projects. The Special School Fund is a special revenue fund.

Special School Fund - This fund accounts for the revenues, expenditures, and other financial
resources of the school regional programs, school cafeteria and state and federal programs.
Revenues are derived primarily from charges for services and state and federal grants.

Capital Projects Fund: Capital projects funds account for and report financial resources that are
restricted, committed or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, except for those financed
by proprietary funds or for assets held in trust for individuals, private organizations, or other
governments.

School Capital Projects Fund - This fund accounts for school construction and related
expenditures of the public school system. Funding is primarily from state grants and
appropriations from the City of Fredericksburg.

b. Economic Development Authority:

The Economic Development Authority operates on an enterprise fund basis where revenues and
expenses are recognized on the accrual basis of accounting as more fully described in Note 1, B.
2.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2011

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

C. Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focus. All governmental funds are accounted for using the current financial resources measurement
focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on
the balance sheet in the funds statements. Long-term assets and long-term liabilities are included in the
government-wide statements. Operating statements of the governmental funds present increases (i.e.,
revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net
current assets.

The government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities, all Proprietary Funds, and
Private Purpose Trust Funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus.
With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these
activities are either included on the statement of net assets or on the statement of fiduciary net assets.
Proprietary fund-type operating statements present increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g.,
expenses) in net total assets.

The Statement of Net Assets, Statement of Activities, financial statements of the Proprietary Funds and
Fiduciary Funds are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method of accounting,
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when liabilities are incurred without
regard to receipt or disbursement of cash.

The fund financial statements of the General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Projects Funds
(for the primary government and component unit School Board) are maintained and reported on the
modified accrual basis of accounting using the current financial resources measurement focus. Under
this method of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they become measurable and
available. With respect to real and personal property tax revenue and other local taxes, the term
“available” is limited to collection within forty-five days of the fiscal year-end. Levies made prior to the
fiscal year-end but which are not available are deferred. Interest income is recorded as earned.
Federal and state reimbursement-type grants are recorded as revenue when related eligible
expenditures are incurred. Expenditures, other than accrued interest on long-term debt, are recorded
when the fund liability is incurred.

D. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City Charter requires the City Manager to submit to the City Council an annual budget for the
ensuing fiscal year at least fifteen days prior to the end of each fiscal year.

A public hearing on the budget is held after a synopsis of the budget is published in a local newspaper of
general circulation. After a public hearing, the City Council may change any item in the budget (other
than debt service or items required by law). An appropriation ordinance must be adopted by the City
Council prior to June 30, or as soon thereafter as practicable.

Annual budgets, prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles, are
approved by the City Council for all Governmental Funds except for the Central Park Special Tax District
Fund and the Fall Hill Special Tax District Fund. All appropriations lapse at year-end; however, the
unexpended funds may be reappropriated in the following fiscal year.
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

D.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting: (Continued)

All operating budgets included proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. City Council
must approve all budget revisions once the appropriation ordinance has been adopted. Budgets are
approved and may not exceed appropriations at the department level. Budgeted amounts as presented
in the financial statements reflect budget revisions through June 30, 2011. Budgetary and appropriation
control is maintained at the department level. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are
reappropriated in the following fiscal year.

There were no additional appropriations that would have a material effect on the financial statements
at June 30, 2011.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments with a
maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the government.

State statutes authorize the government to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commercial paper,
corporate bonds, and repurchase agreements.

Investments are stated at fair value.

. Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

The City determines its allowances using historical collection data, specific account analysis and
management’s judgment. At June 30, 2011, the allowance totaled $1,570,298 with $1,201,850 in the
General Fund and $368,448 in the Enterprise Funds.

. Inventory

Inventory consists of expendable supplies which are valued at cost using the consumption method.

. Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses are reported on the consumption method.
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Capital Assets

Capital outlays are recorded as expenditures of the governmental funds of the primary government and
component unit School Board, and as assets in the government-wide financial statements to the extent
the City’s and School Board’s capitalization threshold of $5,000 is met. Depreciation is recorded on
capital assets on a government-wide basis using the straight-line method and the following estimated
useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Furniture and other equipment 5 to 20 years
Infrastructure 20 to 50 years

To the extent the City’s capitalization threshold of $5,000 is met, capital outlays of the Proprietary
Funds are recorded as capital assets and depreciated over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis on both the funds basis and the government-wide basis using the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 10 to 50 years
Equipment 4 to 10 years
Water and wastewater systems 30 to 50 years
Intangible Assets 30 to 50 years

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost was not
available. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date donated.

Maintenance, repairs, and minor equipment are charged to operations when incurred. Expenses that
materially change capacities or extend useful lives are capitalized. Upon sale or retirement of land,
buildings, and equipment, the cost and related accumulated depreciation, if applicable, are eliminated
from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included in the results of operations.

The interest cost on construction funds for the Proprietary Funds is capitalized where applicable. There
was no interest capitalized in the year ended June 30, 2011.

Compensated Absences

The City and School Board accrue compensated absences (annual and sick leave benefits) when vested.
The amounts include all balances earned by employees which would be paid upon employee
terminations, resignations or retirements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

L.

Retirement Plan

Retirement plan contributions are actuarially determined and consist of current service costs and
amortization of prior service costs over a 20-year period. The City’s policy is to fund pension cost as it
accrues.

. Unbilled Revenue

The City bills service charges to customers on a bi-monthly basis. Service charges earned but unbilled
are accrued based on the last billing and reported in the financial statements as billed receivables and
revenues.

. Bond Premium

Bond premiums are amortized over the life of the respective bond issues using the effective interest
method. Amortization expense for fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 was $111,395 and $29,492 for the
governmental and business-type activities, respectively.

. Long-term Obligations

The City reports long-term debt at face value. The face value of the debt is believed to approximate
fair value.

Fund Equity

Beginning with fiscal year 2011, the City implemented GASB Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This Statement provides more clearly defined fund balance
categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a government’s fund balance
more transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints
placed on the purposes for which resources can be used:

= Nonspendable fund balance - amounts that are not in spendable form (such as inventory and
prepaids) or are required to be maintained intact (corpus of a permanent fund);

m  Restricted fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as
grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by
enabling legislation;

= Committed fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using its
highest level of decision-making authority; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for
any other purpose unless the government takes the same highest level action to remove or change
the constraint;

= Assigned fund balance - amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be
expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates the
authority;

®  Unassigned fund balance - amounts that are available for any purpose; positive amounts are only
reported in the general fund.

When fund balance resources are available for a specific purpose in more than one classification, it is

the City’s policy to use the most restrictive funds first in the following order: restricted, committed,
assigned, and unassigned as they are needed.
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

P. Fund Equity: (Continued)

City Council establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage of a resolution.
This is typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget. A fund balance commitment is
further indicated in the budget document as a designation or commitment of the fund (such as for
special incentives or contractual obligations). Assigned fund balance is established by City Council or
the City Manager as amounts intended for a specific purpose (such as the purchase of capital assets,
construction, debt service, or for other purposes).

The details of governmental fund balances, as presented in aggregate on Exhibit 3, are as follows:
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General Other
Fund Funds Total
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventory $ 32,284 % - $ 32,284
Prepaids 12,327 - 12,327
Total Nonspendable Fund Balance $ 44,611 $ - $ 44,611
Restricted for:
Courthouse maintenance $ - $ 193,070 $ 193,070
Committed to:
Social services $ - $ 232,133 $ 232,133
Comprehensive services - 230,669 230,669
Cowan Boulevard debt service - 1,062,519 1,062,519
Homeland security - 166,425 166,425
Public works construction projects - 1,838,597 1,838,597
Public facilities construction projects - 130,890 130,890
Public safety construction projects - 11,588 11,588
Grant related projects - 788,809 788,809
Traffic engineering 74,017 - 74,017
Planning 125,000 - 125,000
Future capital projects 3,789,255 - 3,789,255
Health insurance claims 950,000 - 950,000
Other purposes 319,533 - 319,533
Total Committed Fund Balance $ 5,257,805 $ 4,461,630 $ 9,719,435
Assigned to:
Public works construction projects $ - $ 2,735,508 $ 2,735,508
Public facilities construction projects - 2,350,665 2,350,665
Public safety construction projects - 1,562,892 1,562,892
Riverfront park debt service 250,000 - 250,000
New court construction project - 1,003,976 1,003,976
Other purposes 123,829 - 123,829
Total Assigned Fund Balance $ 373,829 $ 7,653,041 $ 8,026,870
Unassigned Fund Balance $ 13,662,911 $ - $ 13,662,911
Total Fund Balances $ 19,339,156 $ 12,307,741 $ 31,646,897




CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2011

Note 2—Deposits and Investments:

Deposits - Deposits with banks are covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and
collateralized in accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act (the “Act”) Section 2.2-4400
et. seq. of the Code of Virginia. Under the Act, banks and savings institutions holding public deposits in
excess of the amount insured by the FDIC must pledge collateral to the Commonwealth of Virginia Treasury
Board. Financial Institutions may choose between two collateralization methodologies and depending upon
that choice, will pledge collateral that ranges in the amounts from 50% to 130% of excess deposits.
Accordingly, all deposits are considered fully collateralized.

Investments - Statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the United States or agencies thereof,
obligations of the Commonwealth of Virginia or political subdivisions thereof, obligations of the
International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (World Bank), the Asian Development Bank, the
African Development Bank, “prime quality” commercial paper and certain corporate notes, banker’s
acceptances, repurchase agreements and the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).

Custodial Credit Risk (Investments) - The City’s investments at June 30, 2011 were held by the City or in the
City’s name by the City’s custodial banks; except $20,225,853 of U.S. Agency investments, $1,998,906 of
U.S. Treasuries, and $5,469,924 of Corporate Debt investments, where the underlying securities were
uninsured and held by an investment broker.

Credit Risk of Debt Securities

The City’s investment policies authorize the City to invest in U.S. Government Obligations, Commercial
Paper with a rating of at least A-1 by at least two of the following: Moody’s Investor’s Service, Standard and
Poor’s and Fitch Investor’s Service; Corporate Debt with a minimum Aa long term debt rating by Moody’s
Investors Service and a minimum of AA long term debt rating by Standard and Poor’s; State Pool; and mutual
funds with a rating of AAm or better by Standard and Poor’s or an equivalent rating by other rating
agencies.

The City’s rated debt investments as of June 30, 2011 were rated by Standard and Poor’s or an equivalent
national rating organization and the ratings are presented below using the Standard and Poor’s rating scale.

Locality's Rated Debt Investments' Values

Rated Debt Investments Fair Quality Ratings
AAA AAAM AA+ A-1+

U.S. Agencies $ 20,225,853 $ - $ - % -
U.S. Government Corporate Debt 2,297,446 - - -
U.S. Treasuries - 1,998,906 - -
Corporate Debt 1,002,989 - 1,011,415 1,158,074
Virginia State Non-Arbitrage
Program - 2,523,504 - -
Money Market Mutual Fund - 22,427,150 - -

Total $ 23,526,288 $ 26,949,560 $ 1,011,415 $ 1,158,074
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Note 2—Deposits and Investments: (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk

The City’s investment policies authorize the City to invest in Commercial Paper with a maturity no greater
than two hundred-seventy (270) days, Corporate Debt with a maturity no greater than five (5) years at the
time of purchase, and U.S. Government Obligations with a maximum maturity of five (5) years at the time of
purchase.

Investment Maturities (in years)

Less Than
Investment Type Fair Value 1 Year 1-5 Years
U.S. Agencies $ 20,225,853 $ 6,030,414 $ 14,195,439
U.S. Treasuries 1,998,906 - 1,998,906
U.S. Government Corporate Debt 2,297,446 2,297,446 -
Corporate Debt 3,172,478 - 3,172,478
Total $ 27,694,683 $ 8,327,860 $ 19,366,823

External Investment Pool

The State Non-Arbitrage Pool (SNAP) is an open-end management investment company registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

The fair value of the positions in the external investment pool (State Non-Arbitrage Pool) are the same as
the value of the pool shares.

Note 3—Real and Personal Property Tax Data:

The tax calendars for real and personal property taxes are summarized below:

Real Property Personal Property
Levy July 1 January 1
Due Date May 15/November 15 May 15/November 15
(50% each date) (50% each date)
Lien Date May 16/November 16 May 16/November 16
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Note 4—Receivables and Accrued Revenue:

Receivables and accrued revenue at June 30, 2011 consist of the following:

Primary Government:

Property taxes
Circuit court

Water charges
Wastewater charges
EMS fees

Refuse disposal fees
Investment earnings
Other

Total
Allowance for
uncollectibles

Net receivables

Component Units and Fiduciary Activities:

$

Governmental Activities

Other

Total
Allowance for
uncollectibles

Net receivables

$

$
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Business-
Special Capital Type
General Revenue Projects Total Activities
2,009,951 $ - - $ 2,009,951 $ -
73,963 - - 73,963 -
- - - - 641,958
- - - - 969,070
54,643 - - 54,643 -
101,748 - - 101,748 -
19,912 - 59,743 79,655 19,935
66,737 21,025 98,584 186,346 9,138
2,326,954 $ 21,025 158,327 $ 2,506,306 $ 1,640,101
(1,201,850) - - (1,201,850) (368,448)
1,125,104 $ 21,025 158,327 $ 1,304,456 $ 1,271,653
School Fiduciary
Board Activities
15,550 $ 187,361
15,550 $ 187,361
15,550 $ 187,361
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Note 5—Due From Other Governmental Units:

Primary Government:
Commonwealth of Virginia:
Local sales taxes
Telecommunication sales tax
PPTRA
Comprehensive Services Act
Shared expenses
and grants
Virginia Department of
Rail and Public Transportation
Virginia Department of
Transportation
Virginia Department of
Motor Vehicles
Virginia Department of
Emergency Management
Virginia Information
Technology Agency
Recordation taxes
Virginia Department of Health
Noncategorical aid
Department of Fire Programs
Social services grants

Federal government:
Community Development
Block Grant
Transit grants
Criminal justice grants
Interest subsidy

Others:
Potomac and Rappahannock
Transportation Commission

Local government reimbursements:

County of Spotsylvania
County of King George
County of Caroline

Component Unit School Board:
Commonwealth of Virginia:
State sales taxes
State school funds
Federal pass-through:
School funds

Federal government:
Head Start

Total

Governmental Activities Component

Business- Unit

Special Capital Type School

General Revenue Projects Total Activities Board
1,636,149 $ -3 - $ 1,636,149 $ - -
154,957 - - 154,957 - -
676,647 - - 676,647 - -
- 409,685 - 409,685 - -
125,356 - - 125,356 - -
- - - - 934 -
- - 438,605 438,605 - -
- 3,498 - 3,498 - -
- - 2,842 2,842 - -
- 20,184 - 20,184 - -
35,148 - - 35,148 - -
5,787 - - 5,787 - -
40,389 - - 40,389 - -
- 6,349 - 6,349 - -
- 375,068 - 375,068 - -
- 75,646 - 75,646 - -
- - - - 58,000 -
- 56,781 - 56,781 - -
- - - - 23,123 -
34,559 - - 34,559 765,755 73,937
- - - - 2,124,974 -
4,356 - - 4,356 - -
- - - - 22,023 -
- - - - - 433,824
- - - - - 129,132
- - - - - 485,364
- - - - - 279,236
2,713,348 $ 947,211$ 441,447 $ 4,102,006 $ 2,994,809 $ 1,401,493
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Note 6—Interfund Balances and Activity:

Primary Government:

Balances due To/From other funds at June 30, 2011:
There were no interfund obligations in the primary government.
Transfers To/From Other Funds:

Transfers to the Virginia Public Assistance Fund for the local share of social services
program costs

Transfers to the State, Federal and Local Grants Fund for the local share of grant
programs

Transfer to the Comprehensive Services Act Fund for the local share of the program
costs

Transfers to the General Obligation Bond Debt Service Fund to pay general obligation
debt service and related costs

Transfers to the Education Debt Service Fund to pay school debt service and
related costs

Transfers to the Public Works Construction Fund to fund infrastructure and related
capital projects

Transfers to the Public Facilities Construction Fund to fund building improvements
and related costs

Transfers to the Public Safety Construction Fund to fund building improvements
and related costs

Transfers to the New Court Construction Fund to fund new court complex
capital costs

Transfers to the General Fund for various programs
Total transfers
Reconciliation of transfers:

Transfers in from governmental funds
Transfers from enterprise funds to governmental funds

Total transfers

Component Unit School Board:

There were no interfund obligations in the component unit School Board.
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$ 823,000
291,112
563,240

2,289,965
3,548,657
1,530,000
536,674
170,000

1,000,000
1,160,980
$ 11,913,628

$ 11,528,608
385,020

$ 11,913,628
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As of June 30, 2011

Note 7—Capital Assets:

The following is a summary of the changes in capital assets for the year:

Primary Government:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in progress:
Infrastructure
Land improvements
Buildings
Total construction in progress
Total capital assets not
being depreciated

Other capital assets:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Joint tenancy assets
Infrastructure
Machinery, equipment and vehicles

Total other capital assets

Accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Joint tenancy assets
Infrastructure
Machinery, equipment and vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation
Other capital assets, net

Net capital assets

Depreciation is allocated to:
General government administration
Judicial administration
Public safety
Health and welfare
Education
Public works
Parks and recreation
Community development

Total

©

@ &

©

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2010 Increases Decreases 2011

18,240,108 $ 270,809 $ - $ 18,510,917
34,444 % 535,065 $ - $ 569,509
541,042 92,881 - 633,923
212,290 236,807 142,778 306,319
787,776 $ 864,753 $ 142,778 $ 1,509,751
19,027,884 $ 1,135,562 $ 142,778 $ 20,020,668
9,490,965 $ 60,538 $ - $ 9,551,503
30,690,344 270,760 - 30,961,104
42,665,000 - 1,260,000 41,405,000
72,438,419 97,139 3,482 72,532,076
14,472,080 862,866 175,964 15,158,982
169,756,808 $ 1,291,303 $ 1,439,446 $ 169,608,665
1,281,539 $ 326,393 $ -3 1,607,932
9,060,486 986,816 - 10,047,302
3,312,599 1,035,125 255,829 4,091,895
26,419,978 2,932,791 3,482 29,349,287
7,419,639 1,091,395 175,964 8,335,070
47,494,241 $ 6,372,520 $ 435,275 $ 53,431,486

122,262,567 $

(5,081,217) $

1,004,171 $ 116,177,179

141,290,451 $

(3,945,655) $

1,146,949 $ 136,197,847

$
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188,042
141,871
1,182,515
80,718
1,035,125
3,175,560
557,999
10,690

6,372,520
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Note 7—Capital Assets: (Continued)

Business-Type Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not
being depreciated

Other capital assets:
Buildings and systems
Dams and reservoirs
Intangible assets
Furniture, machinery and equipment

Total other capital assets

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and systems
Dams and reservoirs
Intangible assets
Furniture, machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation
Other capital assets, net

Net capital assets

Depreciation is allocated to:
Water operations
Wastewater operations
Parking garage operations
Transit operations

Total

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2010 Increases Decreases 2011
1,882,120 $ 266,916 $ 2,149,036
2,151,557 970,674 372,491
4,033,677 $ 1,237,590 $ 2,749,740 $ 2,521,527
63,533,679 $ 3,317,934 $ 66,851,613
663,536 - 663,536
6,301,779 - 6,301,779
6,062,449 128,721 6,075,096
76,561,443 $ 3,446,655 $ 116,074 $ 79,892,024
16,338,616 $ 1,747,385 $ 18,086,001
89,776 13,271 103,047
949,057 146,789 1,095,846
2,161,996 642,334 2,739,097
19,539,445 $ 2,549,779 $ 22,023,991
57,021,998 $ 896,876 $ 57,868,033
61,055,675 $ 2,134,466 $ 2,800,581 $ 60,389,560
$ 471,709
1,391,266
144,164
542,640
$
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Note 7—Capital Assets: (Continued)

Component Unit School Board:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets
not being depreciated

Other capital assets:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery, equipment and vehicles
Total other capital assets
Accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery, equipment and vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation
Other capital assets, net

Net capital assets

Depreciation allocated to education

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2010 Increases Decreases 2011
472,679 $ - $ - 472,679
- 25,000 - 25,000
472,679 $ 25,000 $ - 497,679
123,253 $ - $ - 123,253
22,474,667 1,260,000 - 23,734,667
3,034,808 283,772 - 3,318,580
25,632,728 $ 1,543,772 $ - 27,176,500
49,084 $ 6,163 $ - 55,247
9,059,674 838,216 - 9,897,890
1,867,672 239,180 - 2,106,852
10,976,430 $ 1,083,559 $ - 12,059,989
14,656,298 $ 460,213 $ - 15,116,511
15,128,977 $ 485,213 $ - 15,614,190
$

59

1,083,559



CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2011

Note 8—Deferred/Unearned Revenue:

Deferred/Unearned revenue represents amounts for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for
which revenue recognition criteria have not been met. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, such
amounts are measurable, but not available. Deferred revenue is comprised of the following:

Government-wide
Statements

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities
Unearned property tax revenue:
Prepaid property tax revenues representing collections received for
property taxes that are applicable to the subsequent budget year. $ 1,658,457 $ -
County of Spotsylvania share of wastewater improvements in
exchange for continued wastewater capacity. - 2,006,661
Other 34,703 21,700
Total unearned revenue $ 1,693,160 $ 2,028,361
Balance
Sheet
Governmental
Funds
Deferred property tax revenue:
Deferred revenue representing uncollected property tax billings for
which revenue recognition criteria has not been met. The
uncollected tax billings are not available for the funding of current
expenditures. $ 620,682
Prepaid property tax revenues representing collections received for
property taxes that are applicable to the subsequent budget year. 1,658,457
Other 34,703
Total deferred revenue $ 2,313,842
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Note 9—Long-term Obligations:

A summary of long-term obligation transactions of the City for the year ended June 30, 2011 is as follows:

Balance Balance Current
July 1, 2010 Increases Decreases  June 30, 2011 Portion
Primary Government:
Long-term obligations payable from
governmental activities:
General obligation bonds $ 15,658,457 $ -$ 1,867,831 % 13,790,626 $ 1,527,891
General obligation school bonds 42,665,000 - 1,260,000 41,405,000 1,330,000
Add: Unamortized bond
premium 1,301,849 - 111,395 1,190,454 107,888
Landfill postclosure costs 774,703 9,296 - 783,999 -
Compensated absences 3,055,039 2,071,551 1,894,124 3,232,466 2,004,129
Net OPEB obligation payable 2,759,816 1,231,550 668,483 3,322,883 -
Total $ 66,214,864 % 3,312,397 $ 5,801,833 % 63,725,428 $ 4,969,908
Long-term obligations payable from
business activities:
General obligation bonds $ 19,700,689 $ - $ 1,004,168 $ 18,696,521 $ 1,004,109
Add: Unamortized bond
premium 368,156 - 29,492 338,664 29,877
Virginia Resources Authority
revenue bonds 3,633,315 - 994,721 2,638,594 1,028,829
Compensated absences 204,510 140,444 136,238 208,716 139,568
Net OPEB obligation payable 256,184 121,346 65,867 311,663 -
Total $ 24,162,854 % 261,790 $ 2,230,486 $ 22,194,158 $ 2,202,383
Total primary government $ 90,377,718% 3,574,187 $ 8,032,319 $ 85,919,586 $ 7,172,291
Component Unit School Board:
Long-term obligations payable from component
unit school board activities:
Compensated absences $ 959,450 $ 558,179 $ 498,914 $ 1,018,715$% 529,732
Net OPEB obligation payable 702,000 457,785 258,950 900,835 -
Total component unit school board $ 1,661,450 % 1,015,964 $ 757,864 $ 1,919,550 $ 529,732




CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2011

Note 9—Long-term Obligations: (Continued)

The schedule below shows principal and interest requirements through maturity for all outstanding debt at
June 30, 2011:

Year Ending General Obligation Debt Revenue Bonds
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2012 $ 3,862,000 $ 3,388,945 $ 1,028,829 $ 81,041
2013 3,696,000 3,233,111 1,064,107 45,763
2014 3,770,000 3,077,226 545,658 9,276
2015 3,894,000 2,915,897 - -
2016 3,537,000 2,756,399 - -
2017 3,690,000 2,601,669 - -
2018 3,848,000 2,436,903 - -
2019 3,500,000 2,262,820 - -
2020 3,655,000 2,093,109 - -
2021 3,830,000 1,912,586 - -
2022 4,005,000 1,722,997 - -
2023 3,980,000 1,529,302 - -
2024 4,180,000 1,330,920 - -
2025 4,385,000 1,116,671 - -
2026 4,600,000 894,676 - -
2027 4,000,000 682,786 - -
2028 4,195,000 479,128 - -
2029 3,545,000 286,734 - -
2030 3,720,147 105,871 - -

$ 73,892,147 $ 34,827,750 $ 2,638,594 $ 136,080

The above schedule does not include premiums.
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Note 9—Long-term Obligations: (Continued)

At June 30, 2011, the City’s long-term obligations consisted of the following:

Due Amount Current
Issued Date Rate(s) Outstanding Portion
Primary Government:
General obligation bonds:
2001A General Obligation Refunding Bonds 2001 2022  4.5-6.5% $ 4,645,147 $ 975,000
2004A General Obligation School Bonds 2004 2030 4.85-5.1% 41,405,000 1,330,000
2005B General Obligation Bonds 2005 2026  4.0-4.5% 8,915,000 440,000
2007E General Obligation Bonds 2008 2028 3.5-5.0% 9,665,000 395,000
2009A General Obligation Refunding Bonds 2009 2018 3.0% 3,252,000 487,000
2010A General Obligation Bonds 2010 2030 6.07% 970,000 -
2010B General Obligation Bonds 2010 2028 5.6-5.9% 1,735,000 -
2010C General Obligation Bonds 2010 2023 2.0-4.0% 3,305,000 235,000
Total general obligation bonds $ 73,892,147 $ 3,862,000
Revenue bonds:
Virginia Resources Authority Wastewater
Bonds 1992 2014 3.40% $ 2,638,594 $ 1,028,829
Unamortized bond premium:
2004A General Obligation School Bonds $ 1,141,349 $ 103,087
2007E General Obligation Bonds 213,499 20,874
2010 General Obligation Bonds 174,270 13,804
Total unamortized bond premium $ 1,529,118 $ 137,765
Compensated absences $ 3,441,182 $ 2,143,697
Net OPEB obligation payable $ 3,634,546 $ -
Landfill postclosue costs $ 783,999 $ -
Total primary government $ 85,919,586 $ 7,172,291
Component Unit School Board:
Compensated absences $ 1,018,715 $ 529,732
Net OPEB obligation payable 900,835 $ -
Total component unit school board $ 1,919,550 $ 529,732

The City’s general long-term obligations are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the City. The Virginia
Resources Authority Bonds are guaranteed by the Wastewater enterprise fund revenue.

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The City is in
compliance with all significant bond covenants.
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Note 9—Long-term Obligations: (Continued)

Conduit debt. There are several industrial development revenue bonds outstanding issued through the
Economic Development Authority of Fredericksburg. Outstanding obligations at June 30, 2011 totaled
approximately $259,785,477. The City has no responsibility for the repayment of these debt obligations.
Federal Arbitrage Regulations:

The City is in compliance with federal arbitrage regulations. Any arbitrage amounts that may be required to
be paid are not material to the financial statements.

Note 10—Compensated Absences:

In accordance with GASB Statement 16, Accounting and Reporting Principles for Claims, Judgments and
Compensated Absences, the City and School Board record liabilities for accrued vacation pay and other
compensated absences. The following describes the City and School Board policies.

Full-time permanent employees of the City and administrative employees of the School Board are granted
vacation benefits in varying amounts to specified maximums depending on tenure.

Sick leave is accrued for each permanent full-time employee of the City and administrative employees of
the School Board at the rate of one day for each month of employment in the calendar year.

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30, Current
2010 Increase Decrease 2011 Portion
Changes in compensated absences
are as follows:
Primary Government:
Governmental activities $ 3,055,039 $ 2,071,551 % 1,894,124 $ 3,232,466 $ 2,004,129
Business-type activities 204,510 140,444 136,238 208,716 139,568
Total primary government $ 3,259,549 % 2,211,995 $ 2,030,362 $ 3,441,182 $ 2,143,697
Component Unit School Board 959,450 558,179 498,914 1,018,715 529,732
Total $ 4,218,999 $ 2,770,174 $ 2,529,276 $ 4,459,897 $ 2,673,429

The General Fund is used to liquidate compensated absences for the City’s governmental activities and the
School Fund is used to liquidate the School Board compensated absences. The enterprise funds are used to
liquidate the compensated absences arising from those operations.
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Note 11—Defined Benefit Pension Plan:

The City and School Board participate in the Virginia Retirement System defined benefit pension plan.

A. Plan Description

Name of Plan: Virginia Retirement System (VRS)
Identification of Plan:  Agent and Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Administering Entity: Virginia Retirement System (System)

All full-time, salaried permanent (professional) employees of public school divisions and employees of
participating employers are automatically covered by VRS upon employment. Benefits vest after five
years of service credit. Members earn one month of service credit for each month they are employed
and their employer is paying into the VRS. Members are eligible to purchase prior public service, active
duty military service, certain periods of leave and previously refunded VRS service as credit in their
plan.

VRS administers two defined benefit plans for local government employees - Plan 1 and Plan 2:

e Members hired before July 1, 2010 and who have service credits before July 1, 2010 are covered
under Plan 1. Non-hazardous duty members are eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit
beginning at age 65 with at least five years of service credit or age 50 with at least 30 years of
service credit. They may retire with a reduced benefit early at age 55 with at least 10 years of
service credit or age 50 with at least five years of service credit.

e Members hired or rehired on or after July 1, 2010 and who have no service credits before July 1,
2010 are covered under Plan 2. Non-hazardous duty members are eligible for an unreduced benefit
beginning at their normal Social Security retirement age with at least five years of service credit or
when the sum of their age and service equals 90. They may retire with a reduced benefit as early as
age 60 with at least five years of service credit.

o Eligible hazardous duty members in Plan 1 and Plan 2 are eligible for an unreduced benefit beginning
at age 60 with at least 5 years of service credit or age 50 with at least 25 years of service credit.
These members include sheriffs, deputy sheriffs and hazardous duty employees of political
subdivisions that have elected to provide enhanced coverage for hazardous duty service. They may
retire with a reduced benefit as early as age 50 with at least five years of service credit. All other
provisions of the member’s plan apply.

The VRS Basic Benefit is a lifetime monthly benefit based on a retirement multiplier as a percentage of
the member’s average final compensation multiplied by the member’s total service credit. Under Plan 1,
average final compensation is the average of the member’s 36 consecutive months of highest
compensation. Under Plan 2, average final compensation is the average of the member’s 60 consecutive
months of highest compensation. The retirement multiplier for non-hazardous duty members is 1.70 %.
The retirement multiplier for sheriffs and regional jail superintendents is 1.85%. The retirement
multiplier for eligible political subdivision hazardous duty employees other than sheriffs and jail
superintendents is 1.70% or 1.85% as elected by the employer. At retirement, members can elect the
Basic Benefit, the Survivor Option, a Partial Lump-Sum Option Payment (PLOP) or the Advance Pension
Option. A retirement reduction factor is applied to the Basic Benefit amount for members electing the
Survivor Option, PLOP or Advance Pension Option or those retiring with a reduced benefit.
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Note 11—Defined Benefit Pension Plan:

A. Plan Description: (Continued)

Retirees are eligible for an annual cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) effective July 1 of the second
calendar year of retirement. Under Plan 1, the COLA cannot exceed 5.00%; under Plan 2, the COLA
cannot exceed 6.00%. During years of no inflation or deflation, the COLA is 0.00%. The VRS also provides
death and disability benefits. Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, assigns the authority
to establish and amend benefit provisions to the General Assembly of Virginia.

The system issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for VRS. A copy of the report may be obtained from
the VRS Web site at http://www.varetire.org/Pdf/Publications/2010-annual-report.pdf or by writing to
the System’s Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA, 23218-2500.

B. Funding Policy

Plan members are required by Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, to contribute 5.00%
of their compensation toward their retirement. All or part of the 5.00% member contribution may be
assumed by the employer. In addition, the City and School Board are required to contribute the
remaining amounts necessary to fund participation in the VRS using the actuarial basis specified by the
Code of Virginia and approved by the VRS Board of Trustees. The City's and School's non-professional
employee contribution rates for the fiscal year ended 2011 were 10.80% and 4.51% of annual covered
payroll, respectively.

The School Board’s contributions for professional employees were $706,636, $1,282,402 and $1,613,182,
to the teacher cost-sharing pool for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
The contribution rate was 8.81% in 2009, 8.81% from July 2009 through March 2010, zero (0.00%) for
April through June 2010 and 3.93% in 2011.

C. Annual Pension Cost

For fiscal year 2011, the City's annual pension cost of $2,169,550 was equal to the City's required and
actual contributions.
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Note 11—Defined Benefit Pension Plan: (Continued)

C. Annual Pension Cost: (Continued)

For fiscal year 2011, the City School Board’s annual pension cost for the Board’s non-professional
employees was $48,945, which was equal to the Board’s required and actual contributions.

Annual Percentage Net
Pension of APC Pension
Fiscal Year Ending Cost (APC) (1) Contributed Obligation
City:
June 30, 2011 $ 2,169,550 100% $ -
June 30, 2010 1,902,589 100% -
June 30, 2009 1,970,443 100% -
School Board Non-Professional:
June 30, 2011 $ 48,945 100% $ -
June 30, 2010 49,309 100% -
June 30, 2009 50,196 100% -

(1) Employer portion only

The required contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2009 actuarial valuation using the
entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at June 30, 2009 included (a) an investment
rate of return (net of administrative expenses) of 7.50%, (b) projected salary increases ranging from
3.75% to 5.60% per year for general government employees and 3.50% to 4.75% for employees eligible for
enhanced benefits available to law enforcement officers, firefighters, and sheriffs, and (c) a cost-of-
living adjustment of 2.50% per year. Both the investment rate of return and the projected salary
increases include an inflation component of 2.50%. The actuarial value of the City’s and the School
Board’s assets is equal to the modified market value of assets. This method uses techniques that smooth
the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of assets over a five-year period. The City and
School Board’s unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities are being amortized as a level percentage of
projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2009 was 20 years.

D. Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the City's plan was 76.15% funded. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $97,601,073, and the actuarial value of assets was
$74,324,775, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $23,276,298. The covered
payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $20,185,677, and ratio of the UAAL
to the covered payroll was 115.31%.

As of June 30, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the City School Board’s plan was 93.77%
funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $3,130,611, and the actuarial value of assets
was $2,935,480, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $195,131. The covered
payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $1,136,716, and ratio of the UAAL
to the covered payroll was 17.17%.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information following the notes
to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
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Note 12—Deferred Compensation Plan:

The City and School Board offer their employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all City and School employees, permits them to
defer the payment of a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not
available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of
compensation deferred, including the investments and earnings thereon, vest with the employee and are not
subject to the claims of the City’s general creditors.

Note 13—Commitments and Contingencies:

State and Federal Programs

Federal programs in which the City and all discretely presented component units participate were audited in
accordance with the provisions of U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Pursuant to the provisions of this circular all major
programs were tested for compliance with applicable grant requirements.

The Federal Government may subject grant programs to additional compliance tests which may result in
disallowed expenditures. In the opinion of management, any future disallowance of current grant program
expenditures, if any, would be immaterial.

Environmental Matters

The City has been named as a potentially responsible party for a portion of the cost of possible remediation
of the site of the old City gas plant. The plant was sold in 1959 and has since been sold by the purchaser to
another party. In August 1995, a settlement was reached between the City and the current owner which
relieved both parties from past actions, and did not involve compensation to either party. However, the
agreement did hold open the possibility that either party could pursue future claims against the other if
third parties should seek further investigation or remediation of the site.

Counsel believes that it could face material potential liability for this site in the foreseeable future due to
the continuing evolution of state and federal laws and policies regarding the remediation of Superfund sites
and the liability of third parties.

Construction Commitments

At June 30, 2011, the City has outstanding construction contracts and commitments for various projects.
The outstanding balances on these items totaled approximately $2,985,209 at June 30, 2011.

The School Board had no significant construction or related commitments outstanding at June 30, 2011.

Note 14—L.itigation:

The City has also been named as defendant in matters involving law enforcement actions and other matters.
It is not known what liability if any, the City faces.
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Note 15—Landfill Postclosure Costs:

The City closed the Cool Springs Landfill in 1988 and is subject to postclosure monitoring. The estimated
postclosure care cost for the next twenty years is $783,999 and has been recorded as a long-term liability at
June 30, 2011. These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all postclosure care based on
2011 costs. These costs may change depending on the result of monitoring activities and future laws and
regulations governing landfill monitoring.

A summary of the changes in this liability is as follows:

Balance at July 1, 2010 $ 774,703
Increase in estimate 9,296
Balance at June 30, 2011 $ 783,999

The City demonstrated financial assurance requirements for closure and postclosure care through the
submission of a Local Government Financial Test to the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality in
accordance with Section 9VAC20-70 of the Virginia Administrative Code.

Note 16—Surety Bonds:

Amount
Commonwealth of Virginia, Division of Risk Management:
Public Officials and Law Enforcement, Excess General Liability/Legal Liability $ 1,000,000
City Employees - Blanket Bond 300,000
G.M. Haney, Treasurer - Blanket Bond:

Cash and Securities 750,000
Department of Social Services - Blanket Bond 400,000
Department of Social Services - Public Officials, General Liability 1,000,000
Faithful Performance of Duty Bond:

Treasurer (Does not include loss of City funds) 500,000

Commissioner of the Revenue 3,000

Clerk of the Circuit Court 3,000,000

Sheriff 30,000
Fredericksburg City School Board:

Clerk of the School Board 10,000

Deputy Clerk of the School Board 10,000
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Note 17—Self Insurance/Risk Management:

The City and School Board administer employee health and unemployment insurance programs. These
insurance activities are accounted for in the General and School funds.

There were no reductions in insurance coverages from the prior year, and there were no settlements in
excess of insurance coverages for the last three years.

Employee Health Insurance

The City and School Board have contracted with a private carrier to administer this activity. The City and
School Board expenditures reflect premium payments to the private carrier. The premium payments are
based on the number insured and benefits. The City School Board changed its policy from a self-insured
plan to a fully insured plan during fiscal year 1997.

The insurance carrier informed the City of the estimated benefits incurred but not reported. The City has
committed fund balance in the General Fund for these estimated benefits incurred but not reported. In
addition, the City has reserved additional funds to cover the expected maximum stop-loss liability that
would be incurred, as detailed in the following:

City General Fund

Estimated claims incurred but not reported $ 333,964
Estimated maximum stop-loss liability based on premium cost and experience rate 616,036

Total funds committed $ 950,000

The change in aggregate liabilities for the past three fiscal years is as follows:

Current Year

Beginning of Claims and End of
Fiscal Fiscal Year Changes in Claims and Fiscal Year
Year Liability Estimates Payments Liability
2009 $ 298,261 $ 2,974,484 % 2,905,939 $ 366,806
2010 366,806 2,901,749 2,864,639 403,916
2011 403,916 2,889,554 2,959,506 333,964

Unemployment Insurance

The City and School Board are fully self-insured for unemployment claims. The Virginia Employment
Commission bills the City and School Board for all unemployment claims. The liability for billed but unpaid
claims has been accrued in the respective City and School Board funds. No liability has been recorded for
estimated unreported claims. The amount of estimated unreported claims is not expected to be significant.
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Note 17—Self Insurance/Risk Management: (Continued)

Property and Casualty Insurance

The City and School Board contract with private insurance carriers to provide coverages for property
damage, employee crime and dishonesty, and general liability. The property coverages are for specific
amounts based on values assigned to the insured properties. Liability coverages range from $1,000,000 to
$10,000,000 depending on the type of coverage.

The City and School Board also contract with the Virginia Municipal League Pool and the School Systems of
Virginia Self Insurance Pool, respectively, for its workers compensation coverages. In the event of a loss
deficit and depletion of all assets and available insurance of a pool, members may be assessed in the
proportion which the premium of each bears to the total premiums of all members in the year in which such
deficit occurs.

Note 18—Other Post-Employment Benefits Program:

City:

A. Plan Description:

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 11, the City provides post-retirement health care
insurance benefits for employees who are eligible for retirement benefits. Individuals employed before
July 1, 1996, and who retire from City service with full VRS benefits (i.e. 50 years of age and 30 years of
continuous service) and complete 10 years of service at the City will receive 100% of their health
insurance premium until age 65 when they become eligible for Medicare, at which time the City will
provide 100% supplemental insurance benefits. Individuals employed on or after July 1, 1996, and who
retire from City service with full VRS benefits (i.e. 50 years of age and 30 years of continuous service)
and complete 15 years of service at the City, will receive $4.00 per month per year of service (up to a
maximum of 30 years of service) towards the individual’s cost of coverage. Disabled individuals must
complete 5 years of service and be eligible for both VRS and Social Security disability to be eligible for
these benefits.

B. Funding Policy:

The City establishes employer contribution rates for plan participants as part of the budgetary process
each year. The City also determines how the plan will be funded each year, whether it will partially
fund the plan or fully fund the plan. For participating retirees hired before July 1, 1996 the City pays
100% of the monthly premium. For participating retirees hired on or after July 1, 1996 the City pays
$4.00 per month per year of service (up to a maximum of 30 years of service) towards the monthly
premium and the retiree contributes remaining funds towards the monthly premium. Retirees pay 100%
of spousal premiums. Coverage ceases when retirees reach the age of 65. Surviving spouses can stay in
the plan, but must pay the entire premium.
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Note 18—Other Post-Employment Benefits Program: (Continued)

City: (Continued)

C. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation:

The City’s annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the
annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance
with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities
(or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components
of the City's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in
the City's net OPEB obligation:

Annual required contribution $ 1,340,500
Interest on net OPEB obligation 120,640
Adjustment to annual required contribution (108,244)

Annual OPEB cost (expense) $ 1,352,896
Contributions made 734,350

Increase in net OPEB obligation $ 618,546
Net OPEB obligation-beginning of year 3,016,000
Net OPEB obligation-end of year $ 3,634,546

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for the last three years are as follows:

Fiscal Annual Percentage of Net

Year OPEB Annual OPEB OPEB

Ended Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2011 $ 1,352,896 54.28% $ 3,634,546
June 30, 2010 2,053,384 26.56% 3,016,000
June 30, 2009 2,053,000 26.55% 1,508,000

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of January 1, 2010 is as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 19,834,600
Actuarial value of plan assets -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability 19,834,600
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets / AAL) -
Covered payroll (active plan members) 20,997,500
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 94.46%
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Note 18—Other Post-Employment Benefits Program: (Continued)

City: (Continued)

C. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: (Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are
subject to continual revisions as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary
Information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about
whether the actuarial value of assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the
time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and
plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial
value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

Cost Method

The projected unit credit (PUC) cost method was used for this valuation. The objective of this method is
to fund each participant’s benefits under the plan as they would accrue. Under this method the total
value of the benefit to which each participant is expected to become entitled is broken down into units,
each associated with a year of past or future credited service.

Interest Assumptions

In the January 1, 2010 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a 4.00% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which
is a blended rate of the expected long-term investment returns on plan assets and on the employer's own
investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual
healthcare cost trend rate of 8.60% initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 4.70% after
eighty years. Both rates included a 2.50% inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets was
determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of
investments over a five-year period. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected
payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at January 1, 2010, was thirty years.

Unfunded
Discount rate 4.00%
Payroll growth 3.75%
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Note 18—Other Post-Employment Benefits Program: (Continued)

School Board:

A. Plan Description:

The School Board provides post-retirement health care insurance benefits for employees who are
eligible. The plan is administered by the School Board. Retired employees, who were employed by
Fredericksburg Public Schools with at least 26 years of service, who have attained the age of 55, and who
retire under the VRS plan are eligible to receive a subsidy from the post-retirement medical plan. The
plan has no separate financial report.

B. Funding Policy:

The School Board establishes employer contribution rates for plan participants as part of the budgetary
process each year. The School Board also determines how the plan will be funded each year, whether it
will partially fund the plan or fully fund the plan. Again, this is determined annually as part of the
budgetary process. For participating retirees the School Board pays 75% of the premium for retirees with
26-29 years of service at the School Board and 100% of the premium for retirees with 30 or more years of
service. For retirees with 26-29 years of service the retiree contributes remaining funds towards the
monthly premium. Retirees pay 100% of spousal premiums. Coverage ceases when retirees reach the
age of 65. Surviving spouses can stay in the plan but must pay the full premium.

C. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation:

The School Board’s annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on
the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table
shows the components of the School Board’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually
contributed to the plan, and changes in the School Board’s net OPEB obligation:

Annual required contribution $ 454,900
Interest on net OPEB obligation 28,080
Adjustment to annual required contribution (25,195)

Annual OPEB cost (expense) $ 457,785
Contributions made 258,950

Increase in net OPEB obligation $ 198,835
Net OPEB obligation-beginning of year 702,000
Net OPEB obligation-end of year $ 900,835
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Note 18—Other Post-Employment Benefits Program: (Continued)

School Board: (Continued)

C. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: (Continued)

The School Board’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and
the net OPEB obligation for the last three years are as follows:

Fiscal Annual Percentage of Net

Year OPEB Annual OPEB OPEB

Ended Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2011 $ 457,785 56.57% $ 900,835
June 30, 2010 606,089 42.09% 702,000
June 30, 2009 606,000 42.08% 351,000

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of January 1, 2010 is as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 4,218,700
Actuarial value of plan assets -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability 4,218,700
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets / AAL) -
Covered payroll (active plan members) 21,140,600
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 19.96%

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are
subject to continual revisions as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary
Information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about
whether the actuarial value of assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the
time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and
plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial
value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.
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Note 18—Other Post-Employment Benefits Program: (Continued)

School Board: (Continued)

C. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: (Continued)

Cost Method

The projected unit credit (PUC) cost method was used for this valuation. The objective of this method is
to fund each participant’s benefits under the plan as they would accrue. Under this method the total
value of the benefit to which each participant is expected to become entitled is broken down into units,
each associated with a year of past or future credited service.

Interest Assumptions

In the January 1, 2010 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a 4.00% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which
is a blended rate of the expected long-term investment returns on plan assets and on the employer's own
investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual
healthcare cost trend rate of 8.60% initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 4.70% after
eighty years. Both rates included a 2.50% inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets was
determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of
investments over a five-year period. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected
payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at January 1, 2010, was thirty years.

Unfunded
Discount rate 4.00%
Payroll growth 3.75%

Note 19—Health Insurance Credit Program-Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB):

A. Plan Description

The School Board participates in the Health Insurance Credit Program, a plan designed to assist retirees
with the cost of health insurance coverage. This program is a cost sharing, multiple-employer defined
benefit plan administered by the Virginia Retirement System (VRS). The Virginia General Assembly
establishes the dollar amount of the health insurance credit for each year of creditable service. The
credit amount and eligibility differs for state, school division, political subdivision, local officer, local
social services department and general registrar retirees.

A teacher, who retires under VRS with at least 15 years of total creditable service under the System and
is enrolled in a health insurance plan, is eligible to receive a monthly health insurance credit of $4 per
year of creditable service. However, such credit shall not exceed the health insurance premium for the
retiree. Disabled retirees automatically receive a monthly health insurance credit of $4 multiplied by
the smaller of (i) twice the amount of their creditable service or (ii) the amount of creditable service
they would have completed at age 60 if they had remained in service to that age.
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Note 19—Health Insurance Credit Program-Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB): (Continued)

A. Plan Description: (Continued)

Benefit provisions and eligibility requirements are established by Title 51.1, Chapter 14 of the Code of
Virginia. The VRS actuarially determines the amount necessary to fund all credits provided, reflects the
cost of such credits in the applicable employer contribution rate pursuant to §51.1-145, and prescribes
such terms and conditions as are necessary to carry out the provisions of the health insurance credit
program. VRS issues separate financial statements as previously discussed in Note 11.

B. Funding Policy

The School Board is required to contribute, at an actuarially determined rate, the entire amount
necessary to fund participation in the program. The current rate is 1.04% of annual covered payroll. The
School Board’s contributions to VRS for the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009 were $107,934,
$151,385, and $197,691, respectively, and equaled the required contributions for each year.

Note 20—Restatement of Beginning Fund Balance:

Special
General Revenue
Fund Funds

Beginning fund balance, as previously reported $ 17,718,299 $ 3,379,296
Reclassification of Regional Transportation Fund
and Prisoner Extradition Fund in accordance
with GASB 54 42,268 (42,268)
Beginning fund balance, as restated $ 17,760,567 $ 3,337,028

Note 21—Debt Refunding:

In prior years, the City defeased certain general obligation bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an
irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust
account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the City’s financial statements.
At June 30, 2011, $3,230,000 of bonds outstanding are considered defeased from refunding transactions in
prior years.

Note 22—Subsequent Event:

Subsequent to June 30, 2011, the Fredericksburg Economic Development Authority assigned a contract for
the purchase of real property in the amount of $925,000 to the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia. The
Authority has approved a loan to the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia in the amount of $725,000 and a grant
of $200,000 in connection with the assignment of this contract.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Note to Required Supplementary Information:

Presented budgets were prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit 13
Page 1 of 6

Revenues
Revenue from local sources:
General property taxes:
Real estate
Public service corporations
Personal property
Mobile homes
Machinery and tools
Penalties
Interest

Total general property taxes

Other local taxes:
Local sales and use taxes
Utility taxes
Business licenses and rental tax
Motor vehicle licenses
Bank stock taxes
Recordation taxes
Tobacco tax
Amusement tax
Hotel/lodging taxes
Meals taxes
Gasoline taxes
Other

Total other local taxes

Permits, privilege fees and licenses:
Permits and other licenses
Animal licenses

Total permits, privilege fees and licenses
Fines and forfeitures

Revenue from use of money and property:
Revenue from use of money
Revenue from use of property

Total revenue from use of money and property

Charges for services:
Court costs
Commonwealth's attorney
Sanitation and waste removal
Parks and recreation
Planning and community development
Fire and rescue services
Administrative charges

Total charges for services

Variance With

Final Budget

Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
23,410,500 $ 23,410,500 $ 23,158,658 $ (251,842)
572,500 572,500 774,940 202,440
5,670,000 6,420,000 6,706,228 286,228
600 600 797 197
180,250 180,250 268,410 88,160
175,000 175,000 222,389 47,389
55,000 55,000 108,993 53,993
30,063,850 $ 30,813,850 $ 31,240,415 $ 426,565
9,400,000 $ 10,180,000 $ 10,191,895 $ 11,895
1,650,000 1,650,000 1,644,628 (5,372)
5,095,000 5,445,000 5,538,312 93,312
330,100 380,100 429,626 49,526
495,000 695,000 777,521 82,521
500,000 500,000 468,241 (31,759)
500,000 500,000 554,701 54,701
180,000 260,000 341,693 81,693
1,050,000 1,050,000 1,175,244 125,244
7,920,000 8,820,000 8,842,347 22,347
198,000 198,000 51,830 (146,170)
90,000 90,000 137,068 47,068
27,408,100 $ 29,768,100 $ 30,153,106 $ 385,006
609,450 $ 909,450 $ 933,329 $ 23,879
7,000 7,000 11,706 4,706
616,450 $ 916,450 $ 945,035 $ 28,585
335,000 $ 335,000 $ 387,090 $ 52,090
250,000 $ 250,000 $ 85,207 $ (164,793)
44,750 44,750 77,089 32,339
294,750 $ 294,750 $ 162,296 $ (132,454)
83,300 $ 83,300 $ 103,877 $ 20,577
2,000 2,000 4,214 2,214
727,000 727,000 733,070 6,070
424,000 432,000 487,368 55,368
2,100 2,100 476 (1,624)
636,000 656,000 579,765 (76,235)
75,000 75,000 85,191 10,191
1,949,400 $ 1,977,400 $ 1,993,961 $ 16,561
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Revenues: (continued)
Revenue from local sources: (continued)
Miscellaneous revenue:
Payments in-lieu of taxes
Souvenir sales
Donations - parks and recreation
Other

Total miscellaneous revenue

Recovered costs:
Circuit court secretaries
Health department
Social services
Transit
Other

Total recovered costs
Total revenue from local sources

Intergovernmental:
Revenue from the Commonwealth:
Noncategorical aid:

Grantors tax
Motor vehicle rental tax
Communication sales tax
Personal property relief
Other

Total noncategorical aid

Categorical aid - shared expenses:
Commonwealth's attorney
Sheriff
Commissioner of revenue
Treasurer
Medical examiner
Registrar
Clerk of the circuit court

Total categorical aid - shared expenses
Categorical aid - other:
Street and highway maintenance
Law enforcement assistance
Wireless E-911 grants
Other

Total categorical aid - other

Total revenue from the Commonwealth

Variance With

Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
21,515 21,515 24,073 $ 2,558
18,500 18,500 19,798 1,298
- - 52,363 52,363
34,000 34,000 33,239 (761)
74,015 74,015 129,473 $ 55,458
- - 15,245 $ 15,245
240,000 240,000 217,492 (22,508)
120,000 120,000 112,962 (7,038)
177,750 177,750 65,231 (112,519)
37,250 44,250 79,248 34,998
575,000 582,000 490,178 $ (91,822)
61,316,565 64,761,565 65,501,554 $ 739,989
95,000 95,000 160,305 $ 65,305
95,000 95,000 124,033 29,033
1,850,000 1,850,000 1,882,619 32,619
1,725,000 1,725,000 1,728,833 3,833
9,220 9,220 14,027 4,807
3,774,220 3,774,220 3,909,817 $ 135,597
530,000 530,000 548,783 $ 18,783
465,000 465,000 480,048 15,048
120,000 120,000 121,939 1,939
90,000 90,000 97,650 7,650
400 400 - (400)
40,000 40,000 36,291 (3,709)
250,000 285,000 300,289 15,289
1,495,400 1,530,400 1,585,000 $ 54,600
2,120,000 2,270,000 2,278,016 $ 8,016
750,000 750,000 762,762 12,762
200,000 200,000 87,262 (112,738)
121,130 121,130 137,768 16,638
3,191,130 3,341,130 3,265,808 $ (75,322)
8,460,750 8,645,750 8,760,625 $ 114,875
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Revenues: (continued)
Revenue from the Federal Government:
Categorical aid:
Emergency services $
Public assistance - cost allocation

Total revenue from the Federal Government $

Total revenues $

Expenditures
General government administration:
Legislative:
City council $
Clerk of council

Total legislative $

General and financial administration:
City manager $
Insurance program
Human resources
Independent auditor
Commissioner of the revenue
Board of real estate assessors
Treasurer
Fiscal affairs
Information systems
Copying and postage
Safety program
Legal services

Total general and financial administration $

Board of elections:
Registrar and electoral board $

Total general government administration $

Judicial administration:
Courts:
Circuit court $
General district court
Special magistrates
Juvenile and domestic relations court
Clerk of the circuit court
Sheriff
JDR services
Juries
Court appointed attorney

Total courts $

Variance With

Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
- - $ 10,680 10,680
50,000 50,000 38,320 (11,680)
50,000 50,000 $ 49,000 (1,000)
69,827,315 73,457,315 $ 74,311,179 853,864
204,250 199,250 $ 190,200 9,050
102,800 117,750 100,947 16,803
307,050 317,000 $ 291,147 25,853
518,136 534,536 $ 532,273 2,263
698,000 668,000 569,932 98,068
301,610 301,610 270,219 31,391
87,235 87,235 80,156 7,079
871,717 871,717 864,843 6,874
10,000 260,000 264 259,736
674,071 760,071 740,604 19,467
575,445 577,645 569,903 7,742
637,017 677,102 646,917 30,185
28,850 28,850 25,469 3,381
72,082 47,082 31,791 15,291
289,119 289,119 243,127 45,992
4,763,282 5,102,967 $ 4,575,498 527,469
194,140 201,140 $ 167,468 33,672
5,264,472 5,621,107 $ 5,034,113 586,994
87,431 87,431 $ 85,981 1,450
43,950 43,950 22,570 21,380
13,000 16,000 15,796 204
20,800 20,800 16,804 3,996
667,992 712,392 643,857 68,535
1,302,610 1,327,610 1,326,573 1,037
30,630 30,630 30,630 -
30,000 30,000 27,930 2,070
18,000 15,000 9,855 5,145
2,214,413 2,283,813 $ 2,179,996 103,817
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Variance With

Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures: (continued)
Judicial administration: (continued)
Commonwealth attorney:
Commonwealth attorney $ 1,148,743 1,148,743 1,077,524 $ 71,219
Total judicial administration $ 3,363,156 3,432,556 3,257,520 $ 175,036
Public safety:
Law enforcement and traffic control:
Police department $ 7,023,610 7,033,610 6,906,273 $ 127,337
Auxiliary police 13,000 13,000 11,505 1,495
Total law enforcement and traffic control $ 7,036,610 7,046,610 6,917,778 $ 128,832
Fire and rescue:
Fire department $ 4,070,760 4,108,886 4,096,664 $ 12,222
Rescue services 280,200 280,200 278,905 1,295
Emergency medical services 935,580 1,020,580 918,736 101,844
Hazardous materials 26,680 26,680 21,033 5,647
E-911 communications 948,000 955,200 915,489 39,711
Total fire and rescue $ 6,261,220 6,391,546 6,230,827 $ 160,719
Correction and detention:
Juvenile detention center $ 418,515 434,243 425,156 $ 9,087
Rappahannock security center 3,245,224 3,245,224 3,245,028 196
Prisoner extradition - 7,000 3,395 3,605
Total correction and detention $ 3,663,739 3,686,467 3,673,579 $ 12,888
Inspections:
Building and development services $ 875,804 975,804 856,705 $ 119,099
Other protection:
Animal control $ 98,200 98,200 88,034 $ 10,166
Medical examiner 1,200 1,200 80 1,120
Total other protection $ 99,400 99,400 88,114 $ 11,286
Total public safety $ 17,936,773 18,199,827 17,767,003 $ 432,824
Public works:
Maintenance of streets, highways,
bridges and sidewalks:
Administration $ 801,090 781,090 727,871 $ 53,219
Street maintenance 882,574 1,016,574 946,210 70,364
Drainage 220,989 220,989 198,744 22,245
Street lights 384,000 389,000 334,006 54,994
Snow removal 121,500 121,500 69,575 51,925
Industrial park rail spur 15,500 15,500 14,786 714
Traffic engineering 364,181 396,976 320,056 76,920
Shop and garage 1,307,304 1,292,304 1,253,997 38,307
Riparian lands stewardship - 80,000 80,000 -
Graphics 92,009 101,034 88,742 12,292
Total maintenance of streets, highways,
bridges and sidewalks $ 4,189,147 4,414,967 4,033,987 $ 380,980
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Expenditures: (continued)
Public works: (continued)
Sanitation and waste removal:

Street sanitation
Tree purchase program
Refuse collection
Refuse disposal
Recycling collection

Total sanitation and waste removal

Maintenance of buildings and grounds:
General properties
Environmental management system
Buildings and grounds - special

Total maintenance of buildings and grounds
Total public works

Health and welfare:
Health:
Supplement to local health department

Mental health and mental retardation:
Chapter X board

Social services:
Other contributions

Total health and welfare

Education:
Community colleges
Appropriations to public school system

Total education

Parks, recreation and cultural:
Parks and recreation:
Administration
Supervision
Maintenance
Dixon Park swimming pool

Total parks and recreation

Library:
Regional library

Cultural:
Museums

Total parks, recreation and cultural

Variance With

Final Budget
Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
687,655 692,655 $ 689,282 3,373
10,000 31,000 30,601 399
586,748 586,748 556,595 30,153
75,465 142,465 135,741 6,724
119,516 119,516 118,628 888
1,479,384 1,572,384 $ 1,530,847 41,537
1,677,678 1,677,678 $ 1,652,732 24,946
5,400 5,400 - 5,400
255,888 257,388 211,320 46,068
1,938,966 1,940,466 $ 1,864,052 76,414
7,607,497 7,927,817 $ 7,428,886 498,931
414,276 414,276 $ 414,276 -
191,325 191,325 $ 191,325 -
375,380 373,880 $ 343,161 30,719
980,981 979,481 $ 948,762 30,719
5,750 5,750 $ 5,750 -
24,138,100 24,138,100 24,138,091 9
24,143,850 24,143,850 $ 24,143,841 9
546,034 546,034 $ 527,346 18,688
590,711 600,711 596,675 4,036
925,129 944,162 928,119 16,043
125,850 125,850 110,770 15,080
2,187,724 2,216,757 $ 2,162,910 53,847
1,048,690 1,048,690 $ 1,048,690 -
85,975 85,975 $ 85,975 -
3,322,389 3,351,422 $ 3,297,575 53,847
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Variance With

Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures: (continued)
Community Development:
Planning and community development:
Planning $ 452,970 $ 632,970 456,915 $ 176,055
Zoning appeals board 1,600 1,600 755 845
Community development 56,555 56,555 50,032 6,523
Architectural review board 2,000 2,000 208 1,792
Clean and green commission - 1,500 1,060 440
Commuter rail 50,000 50,000 39,239 10,761
Economic development and tourism 930,383 944,722 876,522 68,200
Total planning and community development $ 1,493,508 $ 1,689,347 1,424,731 $ 264,616
Environmental management:
Soil and water conservation district $ 9,350 $ 9,350 9,350 $ -
Total community development $ 1,502,858 $ 1,698,697 1,434,081 $ 264,616
Total expenditures $ 64,121,976 $ 65,354,757 63,311,781 $ 2,042,976
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures $ 5,705,339 $ 8,102,558 10,999,398 $ 2,896,840
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets $ 10,500 $ 10,500 36,665 $ 26,165
Transfers in 1,747,190 1,747,190 1,160,980 (586,210)
Transfers out (7,391,503) (10,615,252) (10,618,454) (3,202)
Total other financing sources (uses) $ (5,633,813) $ (8,857,562) (9,420,809) $ (563,247)
Net change in fund balance $ 71,526 $ (755,004) 1,578,589 $ 2,333,593
Fund balance, beginning of year, as restated (71,526) 755,004 17,760,567 17,005,563
Fund balance, end of year $ - % - 19,339,156 $ 19,339,156

The budgetary data presented above is on the modified accrual basis of accounting which is in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles.
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Exhibit 14
Schedule of Pension and OPEB Funding Progress
Virginia Retirement System
City:
Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial UAAL
Actuarial Value of Accrued Accrued as a % of
Valuation Assets Liability Liability Funded Covered Covered
Date (AVA) (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
() () (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
June 30, 2010 74,324,775 $ 97,601,073 $ 23,276,298 76.15% $ 20,185,677 115.31%
June 30, 2009 73,853,295 87,566,204 13,712,909 84.34% 20,400,054 67.22%
June 30, 2008 72,412,423 81,824,935 9,412,513 88.50% 21,014,941 44.79%
School Board Non-Professional:
Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial UAAL
Actuarial Value of Accrued Accrued as a % of
Valuation Assets Liability Liability Funded Covered Covered
Date (AVA) (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
(@) (b) (b-a) (a/b) () ((b-a)/c)
June 30, 2010 2,935,480 $ 3,130,611 $ 195,131 93.77% $ 1,136,716 17.17%
June 20, 2009 2,808,219 2,705,156 (103,063) 103.81% 1,135,523 (9.08%)
June 30, 2008 2,636,220 2,486,223 (149,996) 106.03% 1,127,948 (13.30%)
Other Post-Employment Benefits
City:
Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial UAAL
Actuarial Value of Accrued Accrued as a % of
Valuation Assets Liability Liability Funded Covered Covered
Date (AVA) (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
() () (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
January 1, 2010 $ - $ 19,834,600 $ 19,834,600 0.00% $ 20,997,500 94.46%
July 1, 2008 - 24,752,000 24,752,000 0.00% 21,014,941 117.78%
School Board:
Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial UAAL
Actuarial Value of Accrued Accrued as a % of
Valuation Assets Liability Liability Funded Covered Covered
Date (AVA) (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
() () (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
January 1, 2010 $ - $ 4,218,700 $ 4,218,700 0.00% $ 21,140,600 19.96%
July 1, 2008 - 5,244,000 5,244,000 0.00% 18,267,204 28.71%
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
At June 30, 2011

Exhibit 15

ASSETS

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued revenue
Due from other governments

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities:
Reconciled overdraft
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity:

Fund Balance:
Restricted
Committed
Assigned

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Special Capital

Revenue Projects Total
2,140,151 9,647,993 11,788,144
21,025 158,327 179,352
947,211 441,447 1,388,658
3,108,387 10,247,767 13,356,154
69,196 - 69,196
278,776 607,626 886,402
86,790 6,025 92,815
434,762 613,651 1,048,413
193,070 - 193,070
2,480,555 1,981,075 4,461,630
- 7,653,041 7,653,041
2,673,625 9,634,116 12,307,741
3,108,387 10,247,767 13,356,154
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Special Capital Debt
Revenue Projects Service Total
Revenues
Other local taxes $ - 3 131,918 $ - % 131,918
Fines and forfeitures - 199,331 - 199,331
Use of money and property 165 279,318 - 279,483
Charges for services 52,806 58,230 - 111,036
Miscellaneous 102,975 25,000 - 127,975
Recovered costs 429,563 84,365 - 513,928
Intergovernmental:
Revenue from the Commonwealth 2,487,072 242,907 - 2,729,979
Revenue from the Federal Government 2,795,986 376,624 - 3,172,610
Total revenues $ 5,868,567 $ 1,397,693 $ - % 7,266,260
Expenditures
Current:
Judicial administration $ 89,497 $ - % - $ 89,497
Public safety 387,887 - - 387,887
Public works 1,745 - - 1,745
Health and welfare 6,187,411 - - 6,187,411
Education - public school system - 200,000 - 200,000
Parks, recreation and cultural 92,368 - - 92,368
Community development 821,092 - - 821,092
Capital projects - 2,675,390 - 2,675,390
Debt service:
Principal payments - - 3,127,831 3,127,831
Interest and fiscal charges - - 2,710,791 2,710,791
Total expenditures $ 7,580,000 $ 2,875,390 $ 5,838,622 $ 16,294,012
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures $ (1,711,433) $ (1,477,697) $ (5,838,622) $ (9,027,752)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in $ 1,677,352 $ 3,236,674 $ 5,838,622 $ 10,752,648
Transfers out (629,322) (280,832) - (910,154)
Total other financing sources (uses) $ 1,048,030 $ 2,955,842 $ 5,838,622 $ 9,842,494
Net change in fund balance $ (663,403) $ 1,478,145 $ - $ 814,742
Fund balance, beginning of year, as restated 3,337,028 8,155,971 - 11,492,999
Fund balance, end of year $ 2,673,625 $ 9,634,116 $ - $ 12,307,741
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ASSETS

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued revenue
Due from other governments

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities:
Reconciled overdraft
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity:

Fund Balance:
Restricted
Committed

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

$

$

State,
Virginia Federal Compre- Central Park
Public and Local hensive Special Tax Courthouse
Assistance Grants Services Act District Maintenance
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
- 888,450 $ 373 3% 1,062,519 188,809 2,140,151
13,135 3,629 - - 4,261 21,025
375,068 162,458 409,685 - - 947,211
388,203 1,054,537 $ 410,058 $ 1,062,519 193,070 3,108,387
69,196 - $ - % - - 69,196
28,608 72,355 177,813 - - 278,776
58,266 26,948 1,576 - - 86,790
156,070 99,303 $ 179,389 $ - - 434,762
- - % - $ - 193,070 193,070
232,133 955,234 230,669 1,062,519 - 2,480,555
232,133 955,234 $ 230,669 $ 1,062,519 193,070 2,673,625
388,203 1,054,537 $ 410,058 $ 1,062,519 193,070 3,108,387
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit 18

Revenues

Use of money and property

Charges for services

Miscellaneous

Recovered costs

Intergovernmental:
Revenue from the Commonwealth
Revenue from the Federal Government

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
Judicial administration
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Parks, recreation and cultural
Community Development

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year, as restated

Fund balance, end of year

State,
Virginia Federal Compre- Central Park Fall Hill
Public and Local hensive Special Tax  Special Tax  Courthouse
Assistance Grants Services Act District District Maintenance
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
$ - $ 165 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 165
- - - - - 52,806 52,806
- 102,975 - - - - 102,975
107,569 321,994 - - - - 429,563
1,398,518 161,021 927,533 - - - 2,487,072
2,365,665 430,321 - - - - 2,795,986
$ 3,871,752 $ 1,016,476 $ 927,533 $ - $ - $ 52,806 $ 5,868,567
$ - $ 89,497 $ - $ - $ -3 - $ 89,497
- 387,887 - - - - 387,887
- 1,745 - - - - 1,745
4,612,942 - 1,574,469 - - - 6,187,411
- 92,368 - - - - 92,368
- 821,092 - - - - 821,092
$ 4,612,942 $ 1,392,589 $ 1,574,469 $ - $ - $ - $ 7,580,000
$ (741,190) $ (376,113) $ (646,936) $ - $ - $ 52,806 $ (1,711,433)
$ 823,000 $ 291,112 $ 563,240 $ - $ -3 -$ 1,677,352
- - - (300,000) (242,648) (86,674) (629,322)
$ 823,000 $ 291,112 $ 563,240 $ (300,000) $ (242,648) $ (86,674) $ 1,048,030
$ 81,810 $ (85,001) $ (83,696) $ (300,000) $ (242,648) $ (33,868) $ (663,403)
150,323 1,040,235 314,365 1,362,519 242,648 226,938 3,337,028
$ 232,133 $ 955,234 $ 230,669 $ 1,062,519 $ - $ 193,070 $ 2,673,625
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA Exhibit 19
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
At June 30, 2011
Public Public Public New
Works Facilities Safety Court
Construction  Construction Construction Construction
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 4,205,204 $ 2,877,845 1,554,607 1,010,337 9,647,993
Accrued revenue 113,715 19,912 19,912 4,788 158,327
Due from other governments 399,173 42,274 - - 441,447
Total assets 4,718,092 $ 2,940,031 1,574,519 1,015,125 10,247,767
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 137,962 $ 458,476 39 11,149 607,626
Accrued liabilities 6,025 - - - 6,025
Total liabilities 143,987 $ 458,476 39 11,149 613,651
Equity:
Fund Balance:
Committed 1,838,597 $ 130,890 11,588 - 1,981,075
Assigned 2,735,508 2,350,665 1,562,892 1,003,976 7,653,041
Total equity 4,574,105 $ 2,481,555 1,574,480 1,003,976 9,634,116
Total liabilities and equity 4,718,092 $ 2,940,031 1,574,519 1,015,125 10,247,767
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
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Exhibit 20

Revenues
Other local taxes
Fines and forfeitures
Use of money and property
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Recovered costs
Intergovernmental:
Revenue from the Commonwealth

Revenue from the Federal Government

Total revenues
Expenditures
Current:

Education - public school system
Capital projects

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

New
Public Public High Public New
Works Facilities School Safety Court
Construction  Construction Construction Construction  Construction
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
131,918 $ - % - $ -3 - $ 131,918
199,331 - - - 199,331
65,301 149,191 6 64,820 - 279,318
- - - - 58,230 58,230
- 25,000 - - - 25,000
21,965 62,400 - - - 84,365
236,998 5,909 - - - 242,907
340,259 36,365 - - - 376,624
995,772 $ 278,865 $ 6 $ 64,820 $ 58,230 $ 1,397,693
- $ 200,000 $ - $ -3 - $ 200,000
1,133,161 1,325,557 - 161,246 55,426 2,675,390
1,133,161 $ 1,525,557 $ - $ 161,246 $ 55,426 $ 2,875,390
(137,389) $  (1,246,692) $ 6 $ (96,426) $ 2,804 $ (1,477,697)
1,530,000 $ 536,674 $ - $ 170,000 $ 1,000,000 $ 3,236,674
- - (280,832) - - (280,832)
1,530,000 $ 536,674 $ (280,832) $ 170,000 $ 1,000,000 $ 2,955,842
1,392,611 $ (710,018) $ (280,826) $ 73,574 $ 1,002,804 $ 1,478,145
3,181,494 3,191,573 280,826 1,500,906 1,172 8,155,971
4,574,105 $ 2,481,555 $ -3 1,574,480 $ 1,003,976 $ 9,634,116
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit 21

Expenditures
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Debt Service

Education
Debt Service

Fund Total
1,713,072 $ 1,414,759 $ 3,127,831
2,133,898 2,710,791
2,289,965 $ 3,548,657 $ 5,838,622
(2,289,965) $ (3,548,657) $ (5,838,622)
2,289,965 $ 3,548,657 $ 5,838,622
- $ -
- $ -




CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
At June 30, 2011

Rappahannock
Criminal Court Area
Justice Special Service CASA Youth
Academy Welfare Unit Program Commission
ASSETS
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 523,921 $ 17,461 $ 163,000 $ - 3 5,002
Accounts receivable 37,123 - - - 119,737
Prepaid items 12,124 - - - 5,673
Total assets $ 573,168 $ 17,461 $ 163,000 $ - % 130,412
LIABILITIES AND
NET ASSETS
Liabilities:
Reconciled overdraft $ - % - % - 3 756 $ -
Accounts payable 22,520 - 7,155 134 11,731
Accrued liabilities 19,830 - - - -
Amounts held for others 530,818 17,461 155,845 (890) 118,681
Total liabilities $ 573,168 $ 17,461 $ 163,000 $ - $ 130,412
Net Assets $ - % - % - % - % -
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Exhibit 22

Forfeited
Asset
Revenue Sharing Community
Maximization Program Development
Fund Fund Authority Total
20,451 61,696 224,467 1,015,998
- 948 - 157,808
- - - 17,797
20,451 62,644 224,467 1,191,603
- - - 756
- - - 41,540
- - - 19,830
20,451 62,644 224,467 1,129,477
20,451 62,644 224,467 1,191,603
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA Exhibit 23

Page 1 of 3
AGENCY FUNDS
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Year Ended June 30, 2011
Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2010 Additions Deductions 2011
CRIMINAL JUSTICE ACADEMY
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 327,561 $ 523,921 $ 327,561 $ 523,921
Accounts receivable 12,226 37,123 12,226 37,123
Prepaid items 12,223 12,124 12,223 12,124
Total assets $ 352,010 $ 573,168 $ 352,010 $ 573,168
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 21,738 $ 22,520 $ 21,738  $ 22,520
Accrued liabilities 23,980 19,830 23,980 19,830
Deferred revenue 73,508 - 73,508 -
Amounts held for others 232,784 530,818 232,784 530,818
Total liabilities $ 352,010 $ 573,168 $ 352,010 $ 573,168
SPECIAL WELFARE
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 22,569 $ 16,816 $ 21,924  $ 17,461
Liabilities:
Amounts held for others $ 22,569 $ 16,816 $ 21,924 $ 17,461
COURT SERVICE UNIT
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 203,327 $ 238,552 $ 278,879 % 163,000
Accounts receivable 4,606 - 4,606 -
Prepaid items 5,488 - 5,488 -
Total assets $ 213,421 $ 238,552 % 288,973 $ 163,000
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 16,951 $ 7,155 % 16,951 % 7,155
Amounts held for others 196,470 231,397 272,022 155,845
Total liabilities $ 213,421 $ 238,552 % 288,973 $ 163,000

100



CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Exhibit 23

Page 2 of 3
AGENCY FUNDS
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Year Ended June 30, 2011
Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2010 Additions Deductions 2011
CASA PROGRAM
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 209,348 140,320 349,668 -
Accounts receivable 4,245 - 4,245 -
Prepaid items 656 - 656 -
Total assets 214,249 140,320 354,569 -
Liabilities:
Reconciled overdraft - 756 - 756
Accounts payable - 134 - 134
Amounts held for others 214,249 139,430 354,569 (890)
Total liabilities 214,249 140,320 354,569 -
RAPPAHANNOCK AREA YOUTH COMMISSION
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 66,264 467,762 529,024 5,002
Accounts receivable 99,984 119,737 99,984 119,737
Prepaid items - 5,673 - 5,673
Total assets 166,248 593,172 629,008 130,412
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 39,397 11,731 39,397 11,731
Amounts held for others 126,851 581,441 589,611 118,681
Total liabilities 166,248 593,172 629,008 130,412
REVENUE MAXIMIZATION FUND
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 20,451 - - 20,451
Liabilities:
Amounts held for others 20,451 - - 20,451
FORFEITED ASSET SHARING PROGRAM FUND
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 60,770 18,695 17,769 61,696
Accounts receivable - 948 - 948
Total assets 60,770 19,643 17,769 62,644
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 68 - 68 -
Amounts held for others 60,702 19,643 17,701 62,644
Total liabilities 60,770 19,643 17,769 62,644
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA Exhibit 23

Page 3 of 3
AGENCY FUNDS
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Year Ended June 30, 2011
Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2010 Additions Deductions 2011
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 149,715 $ 1,266,887 $ 1,192,135 $ 224,467
Liabilities:
Amounts held for others $ 149,715 $ 1,266,887 $ 1,192,135 $ 224,467
TOTALS -- ALL AGENCY FUNDS
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,060,005 $ 2,672,953 $ 2,716,960  $ 1,015,998
Accounts receivable 121,061 157,808 121,061 157,808
Prepaid items 18,367 17,797 18,367 17,797
Total assets $ 1,199,433 $ 2,848,558 $ 2,856,388 $ 1,191,603
Liabilities:
Reconciled overdraft $ - $ 756 $ - $ 756
Accounts payable 78,154 41,540 78,154 41,540
Accrued liabilities 23,980 19,830 23,980 19,830
Deferred revenue 73,508 - 73,508 -
Amounts held for others 1,023,791 2,786,432 2,680,746 1,129,477
Total liabilities $ 1,199,433 $ 2,848,558 $ 2,856,388 $ 1,191,603
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Revenues and Expenditures Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For Nonmajor and Other Funds with Legally Adopted Budgets
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit 24
Page 1 of 5

Special Revenue Funds
Virginia Public Assistance Fund
Revenues
Recovered costs

Intergovernmental:
Revenue from the Commonwealth:
Categorical aid:
Public assistance grants

Revenue from the Federal Government:
Categorical aid:
Public assistance grants

Total revenues

Expenditures
Health and welfare

State, Federal and Local Grants Fund
Revenues
Revenue from use of money and property:
Use of money

Miscellaneous

Recovered costs:
Stafford and Spotsylvania Counties

Intergovernmental:
Revenue from the Commonwealth:
Categorical aid:
Arts grant
Hazardous materials grant
Fire services program
VA domestic violence victim fund
Other

Total revenue from the Commonwealth

Revenue from the Federal Government:
Categorical aid:
Law enforcement and related programs
FAMPO/CMAQ grant
Community development block grants

Total revenue from the Federal Government
Total revenues

Expenditures
Judicial administration:
Victim-witness

Variance With

Final Budget

Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
122,630 146,414 107,569 $ (38,845)
1,458,920 1,458,920 1,398,518 $ (60,402)
2,583,740 2,610,207 2,365,665 $ (244,542)
4,165,290 4,215,541 3,871,752 $ (343,789)
4,988,290 5,041,223 4,612,942 $ 428,281
- - 165 $ 165
221,030 235,077 102,975 $ (132,102)
356,400 356,400 321,994 $ (34,406)
5,000 5,000 5,000 $ -
30,000 30,000 30,000 -
47,215 47,215 55,666 8,451
40,000 40,000 20,000 (20,000)
15,022 15,022 50,355 35,333
137,237 137,237 161,021 $ 23,784
107,039 441,619 225,605 $ (216,014)
- - 3,583 3,583
231,856 231,856 201,133 (30,723)
338,895 673,475 430,321 $ (243,154)
1,053,562 1,402,189 1,016,476 $ (385,713)
94,450 94,450 89,497 $ 4,953
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Revenues and Expenditures Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For Nonmajor and Other Funds with Legally Adopted Budgets
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit 24
Page 2 of 5

Special Revenue Funds: (continued)
State, Federal and Local Grants Fund: (continued)
Expenditures: (continued)

Public safety:
Hazardous materials response program
Fire services program
Crime prevention
Byrne ARRA grant
Victim witness ARRA grant
Domestic violence
Community projects
JAG formula grant
DCJS grants
PSAP-GIS implementation
COPS grant
DMV grants
State homeland security grant
Criminal justice system improvement

Total public safety

Public works:
CSX tree project

Parks, recreation and cultural:
Soap Box Derby
Starfire drill team
First Fridays
Other

Total parks, recreation and cultural

Community development:
Community development block grant
CDBG ARRA grant
First Night celebration
Regional consumer marketing
Regional group tourism
Other

Total community development

Total expenditures

©

Variance With

Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
30,000 30,000 $ 23,879 $ 6,121
47,215 107,244 39,831 67,413
- 5,135 1,300 3,835
- - 1,068 (1,068)
22,269 22,269 25,283 (3,014)
59,685 60,343 57,739 2,604
- 16,659 9,094 7,565
- 98,138 93,020 5,118
53,210 53,210 51,285 1,925
- 9,420 9,430 (10)
- 55,441 28,600 26,841
- 18,325 15,031 3,294
- 166,425 7,930 158,495
- 23,382 24,397 (1,015)
212,379 665,991 $ 387,887 $ 278,104
- - $ 1,745 $ (1,745)
25,000 25,000 $ 23,081 $ 1,919
45,030 45,030 8,297 36,733
65,000 65,000 601 64,399
36,500 141,355 60,389 80,966
171,530 276,385 $ 92,368 $ 184,017
266,966 266,966 $ 225,582 $ 41,384
- - 20,198 (20,198)
61,000 61,000 49,084 11,916
429,600 617,330 363,694 253,636
105,000 164,460 160,035 4,425
. - 2,499 (2,499)
862,566 $ 1,109,756 821,092 $ 288,664
1,340,925 2,146,582 % 1,392,589 $ 753,993

104



CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Revenues and Expenditures Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For Nonmajor and Other Funds with Legally Adopted Budgets

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit 24
Page 3 of 5

Special Revenue Funds: (continued)
Comprehensive Services Act Fund
Revenues
Intergovernmental:
Revenue from the Commonwealth:
Comprehensive Services Act grants

Expenditures
Health and Welfare:
Comprehensive Services Act program

Courthouse Maintenance Fund
Revenues
Charges for services:
Courthouse maintenance fees

Capital Projects Funds
Public Works Construction Fund
Revenues
Other local taxes:
Gasoline taxes

Fines and forfeitures

Revenue from use of money and property:
Use of money

Recovered costs

Intergovernmental:
Revenue from the Commonwealth:
VDOT revenue sharing
VDOT RSTP grants
FEMA grant

Total revenue from the Commonwealth

Revenue from the Federal Government:
Categorical aid:
VDOT RSTP grants
CMAQ grants
FEMA grant

Total revenue from the Federal Government

Total revenues

Variance With

Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

687,270 940,903 $ 927,533 $ (13,370)

1,250,510 1,624,143 $ 1,574,469 $ 49,674

- - $ 52,806 $ 52,806

- 606,300 $ 131,918 $ (474,382)

- 20,000 $ 199,331 $ 179,331

- - $ 65,301 $ 65,301

- - $ 21,965 $ 21,965

- 526,300 $ 135,046 $ (391,254)

- - 68,520 68,520

; - 33,432 33,432

- 526,300 $ 236,998 $ (289,302)

- 850,000 $ 35,284 $ (814,716)

- 600,000 157,480 (442,520)

; - 147,495 147,495

- 1,450,000 $ 340,259 $ (1,109,741)

- 2,602,600 $ 995,772 $ (1,606,828)
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Exhibit 24
Page 4 of 5

Variance With

Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Capital Projects Funds: (continued)
Public Works Construction Fund: (continued)
Expenditures
Capital projects:
Annual pavement rehabilitation $ 400,000 $ 74,377 $ 325,623
Princess Anne Street intersection improvement 500,000 - 500,000
Salt storage facility 750,000 - 750,000
Cowan Boulevard extension - 473 (473)
Sophia & William Street intersection 239,350 39,476 199,874
Traffic signal improvement - pedestrian sign 111,000 - 111,000
Riverfront Park 79,623 14,611 65,012
Route 1 traffic signal grant 335,650 78,480 257,170
Fleet replacements 300,000 300,002 2)
Lafayette Boulevard bond forfeiture - 9,846 (9,846)
Stormwater pipe emergency repairs - 26,108 (26,108)
Telecommunications fiber installation 46,893 59,960 (13,067)
Route 3 traffic signal grant 375,000 79,000 296,000
Cowan Boulevard streetlights 6,800 6,800 -
Historic downtown improvements 100,000 - 100,000
Historic downtown signs 115,000 106,235 8,765
Fall Hill Avenue bridge over 1-95 450,000 67,700 382,300
Fall Hill Avenue canal bridge 1,441,600 270,093 1,171,507
Total capital projects $ 5,250,916 $ 1,133,161 $ 4,117,755
Public Facilities Construction Fund
Revenues
Other local taxes:
Gasoline tax $ 110,000 $ - $ (110,000)
Revenue from use of money and property:
Use of money $ - $ 64,820 $ 64,820
Use of property - 84,371 84,371
Total revenue from use of money and property $ - $ 149,191 $ 149,191
Miscellaneous $ - $ 25,000 $ 25,000
Recovered costs $ - $ 62,400 $ 62,400
Intergovernmental:
Revenue from the Commonwealth:
VDOT CMAQ grant $ - $ 5,909 $ 5,909
Revenue from the Federal Government:
Categorical aid:
Miscellaneous grants 3,025,000 36,365 $ (2,988,635)
Total revenues 3,135,000 $ 278,865 $ (2,856,135)
Expenditures
Education:
Appropriations to public school system $ 200,000 $ 200,000 $ -
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Exhibit 24
Page 5 of 5

Capital Projects Funds: (continued)
Public Facilities Construction Fund: (continued)
Expenditures: (continued)
Capital projects:

Cal Ripken Sr. baseball field
Circuit court renovations
Fleet replacements
Computer equipment replacement
Regional library
Mary Washington monument
Public facilities general improvements
Playground equipment replacement
Powhatan park
Cowen boulevard trail
Pathways - VCR trail
Rappahannock river heritage trail
Downman House
City elevator repairs
Moss free clinic
Executive Plaza building
Hart Center renovations

Total capital projects

Total expenditures
New High School Construction Fund
Revenues
Revenue from use of money and property:
Use of money

Public Safety Construction Fund
Revenues
Revenue from use of money and property:
Use of money

Expenditures
Capital projects:
Fleet replacements
Replacement fire station #1
Emergency medical vehicles
Special magistrate new facility
Total capital projects

New Court Construction Fund
Revenues

Charges for services:
Courthouse construction fees

Expenditures
Capital projects:
New court construction
Debt Service Funds
General Obligation Debt Service Fund
Expenditures
Principal and interest

Education Debt Service Fund
Expenditures
Principal and interest

The budgetary data presented above is on the modified accrual basis of accounting which is in

accounting principles.

$

Variance With

Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

- $ 400,000 $ 360,000 $ 40,000

- 86,675 - 86,675

- 50,000 48,459 1,541

- 275,000 69,206 205,794

- 50,000 79,325 (29,325)

- - 15,000 (15,000)

- 100,000 90,372 9,628

- 100,000 74,604 25,396

- - 33,032 (33,032)

- 140,000 - 140,000

- 1,850,000 49,213 1,800,787

- 1,400,000 125,176 1,274,824

- 100,000 100,000 -

- 200,000 17,224 182,776

- 42,000 42,000 -

- 363,979 221,946 142,033

- 50,000 - 50,000

- $ 5,207,654 $ 1,325,557 $ 3,882,097

- % 5,407,654 $ 1,525,557 $ 3,882,097

-3 - $ 6 $ 6

-3 - $ 64,820 $ 64,820

- $ 170,000 $ 158,962 $ 11,038

- 750,000 - 750,000

- - 2,284 (2,284)

- 75,000 - 75,000

- $ 995,000 $ 161,246 $ 833,754

-3 - $ 58,230 $ (58,230)

- % 1,150,000 $ 55,426 $ 1,094,574

2,287,215 $ 2,287,215 $ 2,289,965 $ (2,750)

3,500,684 $ 3,500,684 $ 3,548,657 $ (47,973)
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Component Unit School Board
Combining Balance Sheet
At June 30, 2011

Exhibit 25

ASSETS

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued revenue
Due from other governments
Prepaids

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity:
Fund Balance:
Nonspendable:
Prepaids
Committed:
Grant related expenditures
Capital projects
Assigned:
Capital projects
Unassigned

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

School
School Special Capital Total
Operating School Projects Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds
5,843,185 408,668 6,196 6,258,049
1,200 14,350 - 15,550
602,858 724,698 73,937 1,401,493
165,139 - - 165,139
6,612,382 1,147,716 80,133 7,840,231
481,854 214,123 11,818 707,795
2,714,247 338,531 - 3,052,778
3,196,101 552,654 11,818 3,760,573
165,139 - - 165,139
- 595,062 - 595,062
184,937 - 16,191 201,128
- - 52,124 52,124
3,066,205 - - 3,066,205
3,416,281 595,062 68,315 4,079,658
6,612,382 1,147,716 80,133 7,840,231
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA Exhibit 26

Component Unit School Board
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets
At June 30, 2011

Total fund balances for governmental funds (Exhibit 25) $ 4,079,658

Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets is
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of:

Land $ 472,679
Construction in progress 25,000
Land improvements, net of accumulated depreciation 68,006
Buildings and improvements, net of accumulated depreciation 13,836,777
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles, net of accumulated depreciation 1,211,728
Total capital assets 15,614,190
Net OPEB obligation not reported as fund liabilities (900,835)
Compensated absences not reported as fund liabilities (1,018,715)
Total net assets of governmental activities (Exhibits 1 and 12) $ 17,774,298
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA Exhibit 27

Component Unit School Board

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2011

School
School Special Capital Total
Operating School Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
Revenues
Other local taxes $ - $ - $ 73,937 $ 73,937
Charges for services 262,968 463,203 - 726,171
Miscellaneous 81,672 - - 81,672
Recovered costs - 120,044 - 120,044
Intergovernmental:
Appropriation from primary government 23,942,591 195,500 200,000 24,338,091
Revenue from the Commonwealth 7,113,908 383,958 - 7,497,866
Revenue from the Federal Government 1,091,748 3,666,851 - 4,758,599
Total revenues $ 32,492,887 $ 4,829,556 $ 273,937 $ 37,596,380
Expenditures
Current:
Education:
Instruction $ 22,584,945 $ 3,460,389 $ - 3% 26,045,334
Administration, attendance and health 3,234,131 - - 3,234,131
Transportation 1,335,894 - - 1,335,894
Facilities operations 3,666,301 - - 3,666,301
School food service operations 124,089 1,384,444 - 1,508,533
Capital projects - - 296,715 296,715
Total expenditures $ 30,945,360 $ 4,844,833 $ 296,715 $ 36,086,908
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures $ 1,547,527 $ (15,277) $ (22,778) $ 1,509,472
Net change in fund balance $ 1,547,527 $ (15,277) $ (22,778) $ 1,509,472
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,868,754 610,339 91,093 2,570,186
Fund balance, end of year $ 3,416,281 $ 595,062 $ 68,315 $ 4,079,658

110



CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Component Unit School Board

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit 28

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit 27)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Transfer of joint tenancy assets from Primary Government to the Component Unit School Board

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds, expenditures are
not recognized for transactions that are not normally paid with expendable financial resources. In
the statement of activities, however, which is presented on the accrual basis, expenses and
liabilities are reported regardless of when financial resources are available. In addition, interest on
long term debt is not recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting until due, rather
than as it accrues. This adjustment combines the net changes of the following:

Net OPEB obligation payable
Compensated absences

Change in net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit 12)
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$ 1,509,472

(518,958)

1,004,171

(198,835)
(59,265)

5 __ 1736585



CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Component Unit School Board
School Operating Fund

Revenues and Expenditures Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit 29

School Operating Fund
Revenues
Use of money and property:
Use of property

Charges for services:
Charges for education

Miscellaneous

Intergovernmental:
Appropriation from primary government

Revenue from the Commonwealth:
Categorical aid:
State sales taxes
Basic aid
Other

Total revenue from the Commonwealth

Revenue from the Federal Government:
Categorical aid:
Special education
Education jobs fund
Other

Total revenue from the Federal Government
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
Education:
Instruction
Administration, attendance and health
Transportation
School food service operations
Facilities operations

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance With

Final Budget

Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
3,600 $ 3,600 $ - $ (3,600)
225,160 $ 225,160 $ 262,968 $ 37,808
36,240 $ 36,240 $ 81,672 $ 45,432
23,942,591 $ 23,942,591 $ 23,942,591 $ -
2,440,287 $ 2,440,287 $ 2,540,044 $ 99,757
2,816,185 2,816,185 2,992,827 176,642
1,417,231 1,417,231 1,581,037 163,806
6,673,703 $ 6,673,703 $ 7,113,908 $ 440,205
495,000 $ 495,000 $ 571,853 $ 76,853
- 337,755 337,755 -
55,000 55,000 182,140 127,140
550,000 $ 887,755 $ 1,091,748 $ 203,993
31,431,294 $ 31,769,049 $ 32,492,887 $ 723,838
23,185,976 $ 23,761,586 $ 22,584,945 $ 1,176,641
3,270,328 3,470,028 3,234,131 235,897
1,286,622 1,386,622 1,335,894 50,728
125,000 125,000 124,089 911
3,813,368 3,912,037 3,666,301 245,736
31,681,294 $ 32,655,273 $ 30,945,360 $ 1,709,913
(250,000) $ (886,224) $ 1,547,527 $ 2,433,751
(250,000) $ (886,224) $ 1,547,527 $ 2,433,751
250,000 886,224 1,868,754 982,530
- $ -3 3,416,281 $ 3,416,281

The budgetary data presented above is on the modified accrual basis of accounting which is in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Component Unit School Board

Special School Fund

Revenues and Expenditures Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit 30

Special School Fund
Revenues
Charges for services:
Cafeteria sales

Miscellaneous

Recovered costs:
Education

Intergovernmental:
Appropriation from primary government

Revenue from the Commonwealth:
Categorical aid:
School food
VPSA technology grant
Project graduation
Preschool initiative grant
Other

Total revenue from the Commonwealth

Revenue from the Federal Government:
Categorical aid:
Title |
School food
Head Start
ARRA special education IDEA
Other

Total revenue from the Federal Government
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
Education:
Instruction
School food service operations

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

$

Variance With

Final Budget

Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
339,000 $ 339,000 $ 463,203 $ 124,203
250 $ 250 $ -3 (250)
153,434 $ 153,434 $ 120,044 $ (33,390)
195,500 $ 195,500 $ 195,500 $ -
15,250 $ 15,250 $ 21,817 $ 6,567
154,000 154,000 80,352 (73,648)
225,000 225,000 68,690 (156,310)
201,000 201,000 108,000 (93,000)
99,500 99,500 105,099 5,599
694,750 $ 694,750 $ 383,958 $ (310,792)
1,000,000 $ 1,335,935 $ 821,577 $ (514,358)
800,000 800,000 963,770 163,770
891,943 891,943 1,008,634 116,691
- - 232,873 232,873
780,000 961,045 639,997 (321,048)
3,471,943 3,988,923 $ 3,666,851 $ (322,072)
4,854,877 $ 5,371,857 $ 4,829,556 $ (542,301)
3,658,627 $ 4,375,607 $ 3,460,389 $ 915,218
1,196,250 1,196,250 1,384,444 (188,194)
4,854,877 $ 5,571,857 $ 4,844,833 $ 727,024
- $ (200,000) $ (15,277) $ 184,723
- $ (200,000) $ (15,277) $ 184,723
- 200,000 610,339 410,339
- $ - $ 595,062 $ 595,062

The budgetary data presented above is on the modified accrual basis of accounting which is in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Component Unit School Board
School Capital Projects Fund

Revenues and Expenditures Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit 31

School Capital Projects Fund
Revenues
Other local taxes:
Gasoline taxes

Intergovernmental:
Appropriation from primary government

Total revenues

Expenditures
Capital projects:
School buses
School computer technology
Maintenance equipment
Other

Total capital projects

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

$

Variance With

Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

$ 80,000 $ 73,937 $ (6,063)

$ 200,000 $ 200,000 $ -

$ 280,000 $ 273,937 $ (6,063)

$ 80,000 $ 73,937 $ 6,063

140,000 138,627 1,373

40,000 35,969 4,031

90,000 48,182 41,818

$ 350,000 $ 296,715 $ 53,285

(70,000) $ (22,778) $ 47,222

(70,000) $ (22,778) $ 47,222

70,000 91,093 21,093

$ - $ 68,315 $ 68,315

The budgetary data presented above is on the modified accrual basis of accounting which is in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles.
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Statistical Section
Contents Tables

Financial Trends
These tables contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
the City's financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 1-5

Revenue Capacity
These tables contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting
the City's ability to generate its property and sales taxes. 6-9

Debt Capacity
These tables present information to help the reader assess the affordability of
the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue
debt in the future. 10 - 13

Demographic and Economic Information
These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City's financial activities take
place and to help make comparisons over time and with other governments. 14, 15

Operating Information
These tables contain information about the City's operations and resources
to help the reader understand how the City's financial information relates to
the services the City provides and the activities it performs. 16 - 18

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the comprehensive

annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal
year 2003; schedules presenting government-wide information include information beginning in that
year.

115



This page intentionally left blank



"G00 Jeak [eoasy |1nun

‘€00z ‘T AInr 01 Joud pasinboe syasse [e1ided ainjonJiselyul s paodal Jou pIp AND 8yl “pE gsyo paruswaldwi A1) ayl usym £00zZ 1eak [easiy 01 Yoeq a|ge|ieAe SI UOITeWIOUI [eIoURUL SISB]-|eniody 910N

TL.26G°6ST $ 0T6°0TG'9ST 0S7°908'GST 088°295'09T 652°669°6ST 89T°29T'9GT ¢ T1S2'6.0°92T $ 009°€c9‘z8 90629789 $ s1esse 1au Juswuianoh Arewnd jejo
T9G'825°6€ 66£°G90°GE ¥18°€88°9¢ 0S8°€T0'0S €98°€69°9Y 68625709 S¥6°8YT 0L ¥8°85v ey T28'G.V Ty pa101IsaluUn
0TZ'¥90°'02T ¢ TIG'SPP'TCT 9€9°226°8TT 0€0‘vSS‘0TT 96€°G00°ETT 6.T'v0.'G6 $ 90€'0€6°SS $ 9G.'v9T OV G80°/89'9¢ $ 193p pale|al Jo 18U ‘s1asse [erided ul pa1saAul

:Juawulanob Arewd

06.°€20'9S $ T€€'€08‘2S Tv6°8¥2 1S 19€'%06°0S 885°€E8’ LY S8y EEL vy $ ¥8€'988°6E $ LEEOVO'YE 166°GS6'VE $ S1osse 18U salIAIIOR 8dA)-ssaulsng [e30 |
9/€'€/¥'9T G96°220'ET 996°€0S'CT G29'v8S‘Te 080°8T9°ST 0/T°0SS'LT [A XA A A 110°269°CT 82V 6YT'ET paxoulsalun
¥T¥*0SS'6E $ 99¢°08.°6E G/6'vv.'8E ZvL'6TE 62 80S°GTZ ¢E GTE‘E8T LT $ 2.T°€9.°82 $ 092'vS6°TC €96°908‘T¢ $ 1g3p pale|al Jo 18U ‘s1asse [eided ul pa1saAul

:saniAnoe adAl-ssauisng

18689S°€0T ¢ 6.G°20.°€0T 605°2SS 70T €16°€99°60T T/9°G98'TTT €898V TIT ¢ /98°C6T°98 $ €92°LL6'LY GT6°902°€E $ S18SSE 18U SaIHIAII0R [ejuswuIanob [e1o]
G8T°G50'€C eV 2r0‘ee 8778°6.E'VC Gee'6er8e €8.°G/0'TE 6T8°206'CY €€1°G20'6S 19199762 €6£°92€'8¢2 paxoulsalun
96/ °€TS 08 $ SPT'G99‘T8 T99°2/T°08 882'v€C' 18 888°68.°08 798'025°89 $ veET 19T /2 $ 96¥'0TZ‘8T 225'088'v $ 1g3p pale|al Jo 18U ‘s)asse [elided ul palsanu|

:S3IUAIIOR [EIUSWUISN0D

TT0C 0T0C 6002 800¢ 2002 900¢ S00¢ 00¢ €002
JeaA [eosid

(Buraunogoe jo siseq |eniooe)

SIeaA [eosl4 auIN 1seT

juauodwo) Aq s19ssy 19N

T 9|geL VINIDYIA ‘94NgSHOI¥3A3¥4 40 ALID

117



LYE'E6T E6 $ 2ET'LEL'C6 $ 606°€55' V6 $ 992°809°€6 $ 0v0‘Lez 98 $ 806°0v0°€L $ S00°6L2°79 $ €6.°Ge6°SS $ €2G'€00°SS $ sasuadxs Juswuianob Arewnd [eiol
¥16'9v8°TT $ /8L°/9T'TT $ 9TP'CI9'TT $ TSE'COT'TT $ 699'VvE‘6 $ €95°088°L $ €Te'esL 9 $ BTT'VIV'S $ T190°/8¢‘S $ sasuadxa salHAnRoe adAy-ssauisng [e3oL
06609 618825 026'€6Y L16'G6Y Ve Ty 190°.6¢ G/G'6T - - Buyred
8G1°/88°¢€ 82v°009°E 851°€68°E 6£9°GYE‘E 0€E‘T6Y 2 TLT'veT'e 892‘Vor‘T 082'9ST‘T T.0°G80°T ysuel]
682°GL6'Y SYZ'9ST'y 8€9°9LY'Y 660°CLT'V 95.°8€S‘E 219°2.0°¢ ¥12'80L°C 8€5°995°C 50°0T9°C Jamas
115°€25C $ S62°288°C $ oov'syLe $ 969°8YT°E $ 0vz'el8‘e $ €TL'T88C $ 960°T95°C $ TOS'T69°T $ 9€6°T69°T $ 1918 M
:sa1uAnoe adAy-ssauisng
€EV OVET8 $ GrE'695°T8 $ €6v'TV6 28 $ GI6'Gii'C8 $ TLE'C88°9. $ SPE‘09T 99 $ 26.°GeS LS $ ¥.9°TTS'0S $ 29v‘919'6Y $ sasuadxa sallIAIloe [epuswuIanob [ero]
veversie 9.T'v.9'C ¥..°658°C T29°8¥6°C €T0°T66°C 0cr oTT'e T9T°TS6°C LT6°08T‘T TEOLT8 1g8p wisl-Buo| uo Isaisy|
69€°0€6°T L09'6T8'T L0¥*'G96°T 18G'vve'e GS'619°'C Lve'98T'e 0v6'2.6'T L19'vT6'T 80.°'220‘c 1uswdojanap Ayunwwiod
SEVTEN'Y 890°9€6°E Yov‘00v‘y 650885 Y TGV S8y 8€9°620‘Y 6€9°8¥9°¢€ 65€°20E‘E ¥¥6°200°E [edn1nd pue uoiyealdal ‘syed
LET'€8E"9C 062'8z¢‘9¢ 6e€'TVE LT G9T'8z€‘8¢ 90%'80T‘v¢ €2.'196'8T TLT'2v6'ST 898'¢eT 1T 98/'955°ST uoieonp3
806°L6.°9 0S0°T2. 9 €79°T99°9 S6€°597°9 €1G°GYL 9 T6E'0ET‘9 9g€z.5€e'S 9/5°860°S 086°822‘Y aJej[am pue yjjeaH
212'.0L'0T 6SE'796°0T 18€'¥6T 0T 9817'288'6 160°'660°6 100'8/2'8 0,2'689°9 zee'ere's €¥1'082'S $340M 21jqnd
T8T°.€6°6T 12¥°002°02 G09°950°0¢ €8/°€,0°6T 80.L°GST 8T €v1°2e6°ST 6LEVer' VT G658V ET GG5°066°CT Kyayes o11gnd
08T'609°E 08E'vS8'E 1G8'T0L'E 9€6'6G5°E 69T IET'E 790°€48°2 6G2'vEV'e T€€'SST e 066'780°2 uolyeqsiuiwpe fedipne
18G°L0v‘S $ 820°TLTS $ €20°09L°S $ €16'¥Se‘S $ 66V°'9VS‘S $ 819'889°¢ $ LEL'SOT'V $ 680°9€8° $ Gee199°e $ 1uawuIanob [essus
:S31IAI0R [2IUSWIUIBA0S
sasuadx3
1102 0T0C 6002 800¢ 1002 900¢ 5002 00¢ €002
JeaA [eoslH
(furunodde o siseq |enJaoe)
SIeaA [eosi4 auIN 1seT
$19ssY 19N Ul sabuey)
€ J0 T afed

A CL

VINIDYHIA “O4NESHIIYIATYS 40 ALID

[ce]
-—
-—



(¥09°s8e‘v9)

$ (S79°226'%9)

$ (162°80L'69)

$ (2c82'0£z°29)

$ (£22°9/€'19)

$ (G28°7159°6Y)

$ (£80°569°TY)

$ (1S58'5Y9°2€)

$ (652°506°L8)  $

62v'€Ce'e
(€£0°60.99)

$ (L18'v2r'99)

2/8°T0S'T

$ (e52've6'89)

(8es'vLL)

$ (868°895°89)

9T19°8€€’T

PASTAR: 140

$ (0£5'v2zZ'v9)

$ (18£'809°€S)

905956 ‘€

$ (278°80L '9Y)

6G2°€10°'S

$ (LTL2'256°6E)

99¢°20€‘C

699°926'T

$ (8zv'zes'6e) ¢

asuadxa 1au Juawulanob Arewnsd |e10 |
saniAnoe adAl-ssauisng
S3IIAIIOB [RIUSWUIBA0D
anuanal 7 (asuadxa) 18N

€v.',08'8¢ $ /8v'vi8'Le $ 8TT'SY8've $ ¥86°L.E'9C $ 19.°058've $ ge0‘68e'ee $ 2¢6'e8G'ce $ ¢vr‘08z'8T $ ¥9.°260°LT $ senuanas welboud Juawuianoh Arewrid ero
EVE0LTVT $ 6599°699°CT $ 8.8°2€8°0T $ 196°00G°CT $ 926°C6TCT $ 690°2€8°TT $ TL6°99L°TT $ G8v'TeL'. $ 0EL€TE’L $ senuanal welboid saruaioe adAy-ssauisng [e1o ]
92.°0.8 168°TE6 156995 658°T0E €T0°T6E 1G8°6EL G9z‘8ee‘e 682¢‘ce - suonNqLIIu0d pue syuelb reuded
€92°'129'9 0/2'0L2'S 09.'zve'y 0617'09S'v GeS'Lev'y 189°288°S 892'0S¢e'Y 170°S69°C 0v1'G09°2 suoingLIu0d pue spuelb buiresado
ove'8ee 19261 T82 0T 916901 025°e8 €95°8¢ - - - Buryred
S6E‘VLC 0T9'T.LC YL 65T T99°9TT 256°7S 9T¥‘0S 0€8‘sy LSTCE 70982 JsuelL
182°T28‘E TeeerL'e 26L°1Sv'E ST6'v92°E 12€°89T°E 88/°€.0°E €2L'e0T'e 669°TOT‘E ¥21°926‘c lamas
8ev'vie'e $ 002°'T9C‘C $ Lpe‘08T'e $ 92T°0ST'C $ 6.5°290°C $ ¥9.°950°C $ 988°8€6'T $ 62£'0,8°T $ 298°€SL'T $ 1978
:S90IAJSS 10} sabiey)d
:sa11IAIRoe adAl-ssauisng
00v°LE9°VT $ 828WPT'ST $ 0¥z L00vT $ LT0°LL8°ET $ T¥8°.69°CT $ ¥96°TSS'TT $ 0G66°9T8°0T $ 156°855°0T $ vEO'V8L 6 $ senuanaJ weiboud sennanoe [ejuswiuianob [ejol
0/8°T¥8 8G/°0SL'T 68202 207 ESY 216°99L - - GES‘62¢ €9/°1¥9 suonNqLIU0d pue syuelb [eyded
LL0'6ST 0T 6G1'€L0°0T 6v.'2250T ¥.8'959°0T 8zY'ere’6 v11'629‘8 8T8'ETT'8 682'v€0'8 Y¥G*ET0 L suoiInguIu0d pue syuelb Buirelado
9Ly 169 G89'T 0Lv'e §6.°C G8T‘ST G/9°T 8.¥'¢ 99/ 1uawdolanap Anunwwo)d
89¢'/8Y 208697 0€9'8TS S9v°0GS o' LE9 ¥1G'6LS 6TT'29S 670265 £ve'v9S [e4N1|Nd pue UOIIL3IDDI ‘SHled
0.0°€€L 0T.'S2L ATV TGT1°689 G/8°869 9T9°G69°T 180°865 TLE'86G 868°G5S SYI0M J11gnd
122 1TT'C 6TL'818'T 618'vE8'T 8/6'T9¢'T 9v.'9€0'T 28L'€9¢ 20e'8ev'T ¥¥6°T00°T 080088 Ayayes o1jand
121°6T¢C v.¥°96T 0TZ 90T 29T°CTT 0cs‘eet ¥98°0€¢ G6.°99 29159 88€°LL uonejsiuiwpe [edipng
16T°'G8 $ STC'6L $ Gv0‘c6 $ STS0S $ 6S0°6Y $ 688°TY $ 091°9€ $ 6ST'GE $ csevy $ JusWuIaA0h [essus
:$92IAJBS 10} sabiey)
:S9I1IAIIOR [BJUBWIUIBAOD
sanuanay weuboud
1102 0T0C 6002 800¢ 1002 900¢ 5002 002 €002
JIeaA [easid
(furunodde o siseq |enJaoe)
SIeaA [eOSIH SUIN 1seT]
s19ssy 18N Ul sabuey)
€ Jo Z abed
2 9lqelL VINIDYIA ‘D9dNESHIINIATYL 40 ALID

119



y€ asyo pajuawaldwi A1) 8yl usym €00z Jeak [easly 01 yoeq ajgejieAe si UOIIRWIOJUI [eIOURUL SISBQ-[eNJody 310N

T98°180°€ $ 09v'v0L $ (0ev'19L'Y) $ T129'898 $ T60°LES'E $ LT6'780°'0€  $ LBT'EET'ST  $ ¥69'09V'vT ¢ 9TIE'syy's Juswusanob Arewnd ejoL
65v°022'e 06€‘7SS'T v.S'vve 6.,'0L0'E €0T°00T'E ¥S9°9TS Y L¥y0'0v2'S 7956552 0€S°2CTT'C sa1HAIROE adAy-ssaulsng
(86G8€T) $ (0e6'678) $ (¥00°90T*S) $ (851°202'2) $ 886'9eY $ €92'99G'Gc  $ 0ST°€68'6 $ OET'TO6'TT  $ 98/°GEE'9 SOIIAIIOE [EIUBWIUIBA0D
S19ssy 18N ul abuey)
GOv'l9v'l9  $ GOT'/29'G9 ¢ TOE/V6'Y9  $ €06'860'89  $ PIE'€I6'V9 $ T6L'VEL'6L  $ 082'8¢8'9S  $ G¥O'90T'ZS  $ SGLO'YSE‘OV Juswuianob Arewnd |ejoL
0€0°268 $ 816'2S $ CTT'6TT'T $ €9T'2eL'T $ 9¥8'15C $ 8rT'095 $ 882'9¢C $ 86T°C5C $ T198'G8T sanIAoe adAl-ssauisng [e3o L
(0z0‘s8¢) (¥zz'v06) (085°958) (862°7€8) (69°792) - YAz 74 - - slajsuel |
TSy 291°21S 98 e 9T9'18S'T 999702 262 e v¥.'69T L9v'1€2 198°G8T snoaue||adsI
2ST'TL zes'eet 129'6/2 667871 89T‘8TY 958°GTE 166'1€ 1€L°02 - Ayaadoud pue Asuow jo
9sSN WOoJ4} sanusAal Palolilsalun
96/'G9/ $ 850'TCE $ Geer'ese'T $ 9v8'9eS $ 10L'€6E $ - $ - $ - $ - saxe} [e20] 1810
:soxe]
:saniARoe adAl-ssauisng
GEV'0/G'99  $ [8S'V/S'G9 ¢ 6vC'8T8'€9  $ OvL'99g€'99 ¢ 8IS'TI9V9 ¢ wO'WLT'6L  $ T66'T09'9S  $ L¥B'ES8'TS  $ vIC89T'OV S3IHAIIO® [eIUSWUIBA0H [e30 |
020°G8¢ ¥2e'v06 085958 86.'vE8 G69°V9.L - - - - slajsued |
ETT' 62 068°T6E 968°€€L 98€°/€8'T 80T‘€89 9v¥*202'8T 1€9'TEY Ge0'vey 298112 snoaue||30sIp
- - (L08*9v8) GZY'€L0'T 2Ly'862 - - - - $3sSE JO [esodsIp uo (sso]) / ureg
6LL'ThY GEO'LES 608°25€'T 899'v¢L'T 088°06v'2 ¥69°G00°C 6180812 TSY'GLS T96°6V1'T Ayaadoud pue Asuow jo
9sSN WOoJ4} ssnusAal Palolilsalun
LT8'606'€ G66°0T8'E€ 969°296'T 60€°220'C 02v‘266'T Y9€'GrT e €/9°686'T 222'66L'T GOv‘Ge6'T suoIINQLIIU0D pue sjueIf PaloLIsaIuN
GL6'69T'E Shy*0SY'e €90'026'C 8€8°80€'€ 9/L'0VT'E €G2°159'C 8v2'SeL'T 9/2'65€'C 98€°€0L'T soxe) [220] 4310
1¥€'2r8'8 AL RAAN: 120°080°L 60v°2¥0°L 9v5‘8TY'9 902079 00v‘./86'G 9v€'G6E'S 128295t saxe} s[eaiy
2TE'8ES'S 2L0'€68'S VLT L¥8'S 99€'9eY'S Ve LLL'S 795°€68'G 9S.'v.6'Y 0ST‘9ES' 2LL'T9L'e soxe) sasuadl| ssaulsng
829'v¥9'T 669°2/9'T 60T LTS'T 820°L¢S'T 886°9€0°C €50°0T6'C 6552882 0/¥°08L‘C EVT'L6V'C soxe} AN[1In JBwnsuo)
92962y €5G6'GLE L¥S'LLE 98.'00€ 6€0°0TE 0ve‘86¢ L¥9'G9T 680°09T 8T19°6ST S9Xe) S9SUBDI| B[OIYDA J0I0N
289y €21°90% G80°09Y ¥88°GT. €5€'8T8 L1v'G86 95T°80. 876°L.2 9TZ'veE S[IIM pU UOIFePI0daI UO SaXe |
G68°T6T 0T T60°€Y0'0T 879'626'TT 0v0*9v.L'eT 69£°268°CT 2156'958°2T G90'v66°'TT v2e LES TT 8869966 Saxe] asn pue se|es [ed07]
289'vS2'T€  $ 8T6'1S6'6C  $ 82V'Ce9'6Cc  $ €08'16L°/C  $ 925°/€0°/¢  $ G96'818'¥¢  $ 900°25G'c¢ $ 9v6'866'T¢  $ Zr0'62S'6T saxe} Aadold
.soxe|
1S3I1IAIIOR [eJUBWIUIBA0D
S39SSY 18N Ul
sabueyd JaylQ pue sanuanay [elauag
TT02 0T0Z 6002 8002 1002 9002 5002 002 €002
1ea\ |easiq
(furunodde o siseq |enJaoe)
SIeaA |edsid aulN 31seq
s19ssy 18N Ul sabuey)
€ Jo ¢ abed

A CL

VINIDYHIA “O4NESHIIYIATYS 40 ALID

120



* 140dal 3y} JO UOI109S SJUBWIATLIS [elouURUIH JISeg 0] SBI0N 3y} Ul T 910N 893S - TT0Z JeaA [easly yim Buluuifaq 5 Juawalels gsyo pajuawsajdwi A11D 8yl 910N

TV.'20€'2T $292'GES'TT $ TSO'STT'VPT $8/2°90T'SGT $EGG'€Z8'ET $2¢68'960°€C $ TTL'2L0°9€ $ €ZE'6TELS $ ¥59°6/9°CT $€59°L¥6°CT $  spuny [eauswuIanob Jayo (e |e10]
T70'€59°2 - - - - - - - - - spuny s10afoid [ende)
:u1 payuodal ‘paubissy
G/0‘T86'T - - - - - - - - - spuny s108foid [ende)
GS5'08Y'2 - - - - - - - - - spuny anuanalJ [el1oads
:ul paypiodal ‘pallwiwo)
0.0°€6T - - - - - - - - - spuny anuanal Je1oads
Ul payiodal ‘palolilsay
- 662°8€6°L T06'629°6 €/6'v0S‘TT  9¥C'9TL‘6 L¥0°0v0°6T GT.'82T 0¢E 109°6V8°€S €T9°96T°0T 182°8€6°9 spuny syoafoud [eyded
- vevove'e T26°G52‘E ¥65°0EL'C 887°909°¢ 998‘vE9‘e vv9‘cee’e LTE98T'E 1G1°G95°2 YrE'EV6'T spuny anuanal [e1oads
:ul pauodal ‘pansssalun
- $ v.v°0SC $62c'2eC'T  $TTL'0L8 $ 678005 $6.6'Tey $ 25e'196°'c $ 66£°€82 $ ¥82°L16 $220°'990Y $ paniasay
spuny [eauawuianoh Jaylo |y
9GT‘6EE6T $662°8TL LT $2L9VTTOT $G66°002'8T $E6L°TL9'TZ $ 9TV I8Y'EC $ 6€6'692°LC $ 6€0°098°CC $ 28€°0/9°LT $956°629°8T $ puny jessusb [ejol
116°299°€T - - - - - - - - - paubisseun
628'€LE - - - - - - - - - paubissy
G08°/52‘S - - - - - - - - - PaIUWWOD
T19'v¥ - - - - - - - - - d]qepuadsuoN
- 166°C/2°LT T166°'v26°'ST  ¢¥8°SL6°LT  €ve've6'0c  €v8'cee'ee 26T°Lv8°92 GE0‘vSE‘Ce 0SG°eve‘LT G68°CST'8T panlssaiun
- $ 80 Sty $ T2L'68T $ £51'G2C $ 05V LY.L $€/5'8ve $ LvL'zey $ ¥00°905 $ ze8'9ze $ 190 LLY $ paniasay
puny [eJauas
110 0T0C 600¢ 800¢ £,00¢ 900¢ S00¢ 00¢ €00¢ ¢00¢
Jea |easi
(Bunrnunodoe jo siseq [eniade paljipow)
SIBBA [edSI4 Ua] 1seT
SpUN4 [€IUSWUIBA0Y JO Saduefeg pund
€ 3dl|gel VINIDYIA ‘94NgsM01d3aadd 40 ALID

121



%ES L %6G"L %8’ L %e0'8 %6T°8 %70°6 %L %96t %69°9 %.T°8 sainypuadxa [eydesuou
Jo abejuadiad e se 921ABs 1997
Tee'e6e’c $ (28T 6L6) $(z6e'6v8'c)  $(9zz'eTr'e)  $(296°280°TT)  $(2re'v9L'9T)  $(2T2°9€8°9T) ¢ 9ze'628'8y  $(€2G°L22) $ 62v'G98'S $ saoueeq puny ul dbueyd 38N
§89°12Y $ 2z v06 $ 20S‘GS6 $ 880°997'¥ $ L9T°€90°T $ Z€8'8LT'9 $ (L¥S'v2) $ 189°0/8'2G $ T6E‘CLT $(928'€62'9) ¢ (sasn) sa2unos Buroueuly JBYIO0 [BIOL
G99°'9¢ - €629 GeT'S0T'T 2.v'86¢ - - - - - s1asse |e1iden Jo ajes
- - (£02'059°2) - - - - - - (1%8°G29°6) 1uafe Mo1osa puog papunyas 03 syuswAhed
- - - STO‘v9 - - - 69Y°906°T - - panssi spuog uo wniwald
- - - 0ST‘297'2 - 612°60G9 - 000°G608% - 097‘728'9 panss! spuog
- - 968292 - - - - - - T78°GL9°6 panssi spuoq Buipunyay
(809'825°TT)  (€€2'828'8) (ov.2'922'6) - - (799855) (60v‘Ge2) - - (6ET 6EE'ET) N0 siaysued |
829'CT6'TT ¢ LGV'CEL'6  $ OCE'EET'OT  $ 86L'vE8 $ G69°V9L $ 112'822 $ 298°0T2 $ 812'698°C  $ T6E'TLI $ €0£°122 $ ur siaysued |
(sasn) saoanos Buloueuly 18Y10
9¥9'T/6'T  $(18¢°e88'T)  $(668'v08'€)  $(v1€'628'9)  $(62T'ovT'cT) $ (bLT'ev6'ze)  $(S9T°218°9T) $(T9E‘TVO'Y) & (#96°66E) $ 5088ST'2T  $ saunypuadxa
J3N0 sanuanal Jo (Aoualolyap) ssaaxg
€61'G09'6. & 1/.°/¥8'T8 $ €6T'CEV'Z8 $ GLv'€89'G8  $ 069‘0v¥'06 & 08T'Z06'96  $ 68G°LTL'G8  $ 2Zv'€80'89  $ 069°TTZLS $ T90'L¥B'TF ¢ sainupuadxa [e101
T6.°0TL‘C 88.'€¥8'C GES‘9¥0'E £VS‘'790°€ €€0°T6T'E €T9°/¥T'E 096622 vT1L'6LL 619'T¥6 112'820'T sabreyd [eosly Jay30 pue 1salsu|
1€8°L2T°E §69°920°€ 61L°92T°€C L0T1°962°€ G26°0%0°€ 29v°168°C GY9°€E6T 69Y‘v08°T 9%5°025°2 ¥S0°92L°T [edioutid
9JIAJBS 109(d
06£°G/9°C ZTT°Z6L'Y L1£°9SV € 12£°GEL’D 0Zy 6er 9T 081°608°0€ £22°696°L2 ¥92°982°ST vLETIS'Y £VS'ETS L s3oafoud |ende)
€11'852°C GG/‘89T‘2 ¥02'08€'2C 8T0°2€L'C 6T0°G/6'C ¥69'7.T'2C 68T°0£0°C ¥,0920'2 T.9°09%°2 ¥16965'C JuswdojaAsp Auunwwod
£16°68¢°€ 898 ThY'e LTV 060V L00°€S0‘Y £62°826'¢ G6T‘TT8'E z0Lzev'e 628°80T°€E 6T£°618°C 008‘¥58°2 [eAnN}Nd pue uoI1e8ldal ‘syred
TV8'eve‘ve 0S8‘EVT VT 0v8'202'Se 09 T2 G0E‘TEY T €21'T96'8T TLT'276'ST 271 '6€8' 7T 98/°9G5'GT ¥98° Ly uoIyeanp3
€LT'9ET L LEEV00°L 009269 658°658°9 8T8'6TT L S87°SvZ 9 TT0'V18°S 009°T6Y‘S 765209 9v0° 18V alej|am pue yjjesH
TE9'0EY ‘L 276'879°L 560902 L 6TE'€LT L 69.°G8L°9 8€9°25Y'9 G6T‘L9.'G €€2°G59'G 028°190'S 087°T20'S $ydom o11qnd
068‘VST 8T 202°999°8T 622°022'8T G66°€09°8T 670°GLE LT L02°T98°ST 0L2°TS0'VT 18G°0TZ €T 69£°€59°2T Yy o9 TT K1ayes a11gnd
LTO'L¥E'E DZALTAR £87'72e'e 796°G/G'€ zes'eez'e 790°9%6'2 220'v6v'C 0€5°092'2 TSG'€LT'T 166°€20°C uolre.IsiuILpe [eIpne
STT've0’'s ¢ /8V'S8L'Y  $ ¥9Z'20v'S  $ 786°LYO'S  $ L22'0el'Y $ 616760V $ T0L'9S6°C  $ 98€°029'c ¢ T2O'v¥S'E $ 0S9°9eT‘E $ uolye.IsIuILIp. JUSWUIBA0B eIBUSD
sainupuadx3
6EV'L/G'T8 & 96E'V96°'6L $ ¥6E/29'8L $ TIT'V08'8L $ TIS'¥6Z'8L ¢ 900°6S6°'€L  $ vev'S06'89  $ TI0CYO'Y9  $ 922°TT89S  $ 998°G00‘YS % senusAal [e101
0T9'12Z'€ 20v°Lee'e ¥v6°95.'2 €15'896'C 110'6%6°C 101'829°C TrsL8Y'T 606°858°C 6TZ°0TEC 068'€66°T lesapad
¥09°06Y°TT 0T0‘6€2°TT 0GE°9€6°6 ZT0°69T°0T £1°€0L'8 TLLTYT'8 6T6°GT9°L LET'Y0Z L €67°922'L 6.T°7969 yieamuoWIWo)
Jeruswiuianobialu)
90T‘v00°T §09°952°T 8G/ ‘Y91 ZTEv69°T L€9°LT6'T £60°08T°T AN A TA AN 0956851 9v9°62L T29°€LT'T $1S00 Palan0day
8hv'lGe 068°T6E 076°26€ 9/£'€9S 80T‘€89 9T€'920'T 788897 G20'vEY 298112 GZS'02T'T ST TERN
166°V0T‘2 8€2°€ST 2 080°860°2 80L'V0L‘T Sv/‘0TS'T Y67 0LY‘T 0€8'v92°T 681°€62'T 1¥9°2ve'T v/S°96T°T $90IAJ8s 10} sabueyd
6L ThY GEO0‘LES 608°25€'T 899'72.'T 088°06%'2 ¥69°G00°2 618°08T°C TSY'G.S 196'671'T 1T9°G59'T Asadoud pue Asuow Jo asn woly anuansy
127985 168°vPe £TZ 99y 085°80Y GE0‘€8Z 8E£°6EE 000°0SY ¥€8°205 L0991 216°€9¢ $3IN119}I0} pue sauld
GE0'SY6 9/v'228 67E‘LTL €GY'€59 T99°€5L 8T0°LTT'T 20£'886 0TT'66% €LL'ETY 89Z°TTY sasuadl|
A1o1e|nBas pue saaj abajiald ‘sywiad
¥20'G82°0€ G25‘8.6'62 L¥9°TET 0 15€°220°TE LTY'v6E‘TE G/T'166'TE 128 Lyv'62 €02°9%0°.2 717658622 219°80€°02 soxel [ed0] 1830
STY'OPZ‘TE ¢ 8IE‘€06'6C $ vEE'0TY'6C $ 82T°0¥8°Z¢  $ 852'809°/Z ¢ 00V'2S0'vZ  $ 608°G/G°2Z ¢ €¥9'820'2Z ¢ ¥/8°859°6T ¢ 899°L18°8T ¢ soxey Auadoud [essus9
S9NUBA3Y
1102 0102 6002 8002 1002 9002 5002 002 €002 2002
Jea\ [easiH
(Bunnunoaoe Jo siseq [enJade paljipow)
SIeSA |edsid4 ua] 1se]
SpuN4 [E1UBWUIBA09 JO Saduejeg pund ui sabuey)d
¥ a|qeL VINIDHIA “D4NEGSHOI¥IATYL 40 ALID

122



0£6°298°09 LvEe‘cr8'8 Y2 GLT'T T0L¥SS Tve'89v 12S°LLL 9¢9°62y 21e°8es'g 829'v19'T G68°T6T 0T STV ove‘1e T10C
190°8..°8S ZrSeeT'8 ZvS'v80°T 22€°€0S €2T'90v G08°8S. €65°G/¢€ 2L0'€68S 669°229°T T60°€v0°0T 8TE€06°6¢ 0T0C
¥18'T,9°8S T20°080°. 985°0G0°T 912 0ES 58009 760691 VAL WA [ZAWAZ N 60T°LIG'T 8v9°626°TT v€€'0TY 62 600¢
€65°08G°2S 60v°2i0‘.L 256°816 0v6°€6S ¥88°GTL 020°6S¥ 98.°00¢ 99€°9ev‘S 820°22S'T ovo‘ovL'eT 8cT 0v8‘Le 800¢
695°206°LS 9vS ‘8T 9 GE6°098 4 AN] €5£°8T8 €.2'195 6€0°0TE ove‘LLL'S 886°9€0°¢C 69€°268°CT 852°809°L¢ 100¢C
95/°99¢‘GS 9/0°20v‘9 070808 TLV'E€T9 11¥°G86 €56°9vS ove‘86e 795°€68°S €50°0T6°¢C 215'958°¢T 00v‘2S0‘ve 900¢
18Y°90V‘TS 00%°286°S €LV'8TL €T¥'868 95T°80. €T2°'T0S 1¥9°G9T 9G.'v16'Y GGG'288‘¢C G90°‘66°TT 608°G.G e S00¢
TTL'GY0‘8Y 9v€‘S6E‘S 9€6°G09 860°G6T 8v5'L.2 L0T‘6TS 680°09T 0ST'9€G Y 0.¥°08L°C vee LeSTT €9°8€0°Ce 7002
ETL TV ¢y 128°29S'Y 8T18°/2S 0L2° LT 9Tz 'vee €61 G2y 8T9°6GT 2LLT9L'E ARG A 886°996°6 7.8'859°6T €00¢
8€6°6£9°8¢ $ 982°29T'Y $ 65¢°60G $ vr8 LT $ 197661 $ Gvv'e8y $ 9ve‘L9T $ T90‘cev'e ¢ 8LE°L1S°C $ ¥89°061°8 $ 899°/188T $ 200¢
[e101 xe| xe| xe| xel S| xe| xe ] xe| xe| xe| xe | Jea\
s|ealy Bu1BpoT 0208q0] pue uoine 32018 asua9I asua9I Aunn asn pue Ay1adoud [easi
|910H -pa02ay sueg ETRIDEYN ssauisng Jawnsuo) sa[es [e207]
1010

G 9|qel

(Buraunodoe Jo siseq |enaooe palyipow)
SIeaA [eosl4 Ua] 1seT
921n0S Ag sanuanay Xe| [e1USWUIBA0S [elauas

VINIDYHIA ‘9dNgSHII¥3A3dL 40 ALID

123



*9NUBASY JO JBUOISSILULIOYD :824N0S

%00°00T 920°Lv1°8E6°E 98°0 920°L¥1°8E6°E 00T‘v9v'E €7€°225°90T 080 GPT°859°€E ov'e 8€8°cTv‘2Se 89°0 009°880°¢¥S‘E T10¢
%00°00T 8¢€°/G6'vS8°E G8°0 8¢€°/56 S8 00T v9v'e Zv6‘vee‘ee 080 T22°G90°02 ov'e GT.°098°/€2 89°0 00€°ze‘T0S e 0T0C
%00°00T 656°LEV TSV 'Y 0L°0 656°LEV TSV 'Y 00€°090‘Y GGT'92.°18 080 LE2'¥90'6 66°C 196°6VT vie 960 00€°28€°90T Y 600¢
%00°00T 216'889°TSE Y 19°0 216°889°TSE' Y 009°€20'Y Gv0°28E‘SY 080 082°'2.6‘8 66°C 18T1°0.G"L¥e €5°0 008°0v.L‘S¥0‘Y 800¢
%00°00T 98522 2eS'C 60'T 98G°22.L2e5C 007°9G8°‘T 182°'vS2‘TY 080 198°9T0°0T 66°C 2ev2es‘8ee 68°0 009°220°T¥2'e L00¢
%00°00T 288°ei‘1Ge'C 60°T z88‘erv‘lSe'e 007°9G8°‘T 0T 'ESv 67 080 G9Z'vGL 1T 66°C €T9°T9G6'6TC 68°0 005818720 900¢
%00°00T 1€€°€82°112'¢ L0'T LEE'€82'TTC'C 007°9G8°‘T GG5'0G9°T8 080 STT'TZ6CT 66°C 190°688°28T 68°0 002°996°TE6'T S00¢
%00°00T 506691891 90T G06°697°89T‘¢C 007°9G8°‘T T,.°816°8. 080 ¥96'v8T VT 66°C 0.2°06G°0LT 68°0 000°688°206°T 700¢
%00°00T 9¢6°916°695'T ve'T 926°9T6°69S'T 00L°9eV‘T 6.7'81‘€8 080 052°€88 1T 66°C 165661997 €T'T 006°8LL°€0E‘T €00¢
%00°00T ¥6,°28G°0€S‘'T $ €T ¢ ¥6.°28G°0ES'T ¢ 00L°9E¥'T ¢ 098°C0G'08 ¢ 08°0 $ GOTLZLE°2T ¢ 66'C $6¢v'Le8'T9T $ €T'T  $00.°8Ev‘69C'T ¢ <200C

anfe/ [en1oy anfep arey anfep sabuey) ERISER arey sjoo1 arey Aadoud arey a1e153 Jeaj
10 abejuaolad a|gexe xe| passassy ERIISENS a11gnd xe| pue xe] Jeuos.iad xe| |eay [eosi

e se anfep [en1oy 108410 a|gexe] [e10] 108410 Aisulyoepy  19841Q 108410
passassy parewnsy [e101

SIea, [edsld ua] 1seT
Auadoud ajgexe] 40 anjeA [en1oy Pajewils3 pue anfep Passassy

9 9lqeL VINIDYHIA ‘9dNgSHII¥3A3HL 40 ALID

124



*an[eA passasse JO 00T$ Uo paseq aJe sajed xel Aliadold (2)
*aNUBA3Y JO J3UOISSIWLIWOY :824n0S (T)

98°0 080 89°0 ov'e 89°0 TT0C
G8°0 080 89°0 ov'e 89°0 0T0¢C
0.0 080 9G°0 66°¢ 960 600¢
.90 080 €570 66°¢ €570 800¢
60°T 080 6870 66°¢ 6870 100¢
60°T 080 6870 66°¢ 6870 900¢
L0°T 080 6870 66°¢ 68°0 S00¢
90°T 080 6870 66°¢ 6870 700¢
ve'T 08°0 eT'T 66°¢C ET'T €002
€e'T $ 080 $ €TT $ 66°C $ €TT $ 2¢00¢

aley S|00] pue SaLOH Auadoud a1e1sy SIBaA

xe| Kiauiyoep 3]IqON [euosiad [eay |eosi
192110

[eloL

SIea A |edsid ua] 1seT
(2) (1) serey xe] Anadoid

/3lqeL VINIDYHIA ‘94NgSMII¥3IATY4 40 ALID

125



‘9 8|qeL Ul palsi| sabreyd aoIAI8s puR ‘821A1as o1jgnd ‘91e1sa |28l JO BNJeA PasSasse [210] PauIquIod 8yl U0 Paseq SI uolenjeA passasse |2101 4o abeiusotad (T)

L9v°820'6TY ¢

"9NUBAIY JO J3UOISSIWWO) :924N0S

% 0L TT 26€°0L1°89T $ %ivTI |elol
2L0 0T 00T‘G08°6 - - x8]dwod Juswpredy d1 ¥ diysiaurred OHN
YNAL) 6 002‘T6€°0T - - S|910H 0D “19A|IS "q |1ed
8.°0 8 006°009°0T - - x9]dwo2 Juswpredy d1 “1uowagAlwwng
08°0 L 00€°028°0T - - J93u89 Burddoys d1 doys 7 yred Bingsyoliapaid
280 9 008‘620°‘TT - - |1e1ay *0u| ‘491U8) SWOH SaMOT
00T S 000‘S¥S°ET - - xa]dwod Juswiredy JoUB| BpISIanly
9T'T 14 009°Er.L ST - - Buipjing 891440 “yJted adl ‘syueinelsay Mded [esqua) - 181ua) uMmo |

- - 7970 0T 0oc‘zee‘ee [e1213WwWod snoLeA "0 ‘sBuIp|OH JBANIS "q |1eD
- - 1970 6 002°SvS‘ve juswdo|anap pue 277 @4njuaA uoljAH
- - 89°0 8 00T‘8¥0°Ge |re1ay ssauisng a1e1s3 |eay Me-[epm
- - G8°0 L 00¥‘€T6°0E x9]1dwod Juawiredy sbuipjoH 8oeuu8] 1UOWIeg 0252
- - S0°T 9 00.'08Z°8¢E Auiadoud sued [enusd 0771 sbuipjoH soejdisyIeN Mied [esus)
8T°¢C T 7682V 6C 10T S €62°€60°6E Anpnn anand "ou| “elulbaiA uoziaA
€8'T 4 867°T89've 60°T 14 viv'ov.i‘ee Aumn anand "00 18MOd 7P 014303|3 eIuIBIA
- - 8T'T € 00S°88T €Y Irezad ‘sbuipjing 821440 277 ynos eiulblip axelgalad
79'T € 00T‘0¢T‘CC Se'T 4 00z‘0TV 6V J91u80 [ed1funs ‘sbulp|ing 991440 ‘sje11dsoH "ou| ‘saiuadold diooipsiy

% - - $ %682 T 00£'9/¥‘S0T  $ Ayadoud yred [enua) 0771 s€ Bungsxdriapai

(T) uonenjep Muey uonenjea (T) uonenpep Muey uonenjen ssauisng 19Aedxe |
passassy passassy passassy passassy adAL
[e301 JO % 2002-T002 €301 JO % TT0Z-0T0C

200¢ JeaA [edsid

TTOC JedA [edsid

8 9|qeL

101id SIeaA SUIN POLIdd Ul pue Iea Jualingd

s1afedxe] A1iadoad rediourid

VINIDYIA “Od4NGSMIIYIAI™S 40 ALID

126



*SU0I103]|02 [101 Ul papn|oul sl

10V Jal|ay xe] Aliadold [euosiad ayl Japun juawasingquial yljeamuowwo) ayl (g)
-Jeak |eosty 10y Ara| Buisn pale|nojed aJe safeluadlad ()

-1saJaqul pue sanjeuad Jo aaisnjox3 (T)

%0G"96 268°€0T € - %0596 268°€0T CE 9¢8°'692'ce TT0¢
%cZ 86 ¥06°/GS‘TE €0v‘209 %¥9°96 T0S0S0°TE G2S‘62T2E 0T0C
%L1 66 T9¢/€L°0€ 606°vTS %08°L6 gse‘eeeioe 1S5°206°0¢€ 600¢
%V, 66 959‘vS2‘6¢ G92°€6¢ %V, 86 T6£°T96°8C 10,'0€€‘6C 800¢
%8."66 10068782 887 T6€ %T¥°86 6TG°260°8¢ €2€'255'8¢ L00¢
%EL 66 811'%98°9¢ 652 €0E %T9°86 6TST9G9C 11G'9€6°9C 9002
%ES 66 981'9/0'vC 16S°LYT %cC 66 686'8¢6°€C LTS'9TT Ve G002
%EB 66 EV0‘eeT eC OTT'T9T %ET 66 €€6'T.6°CC yIT'eLT'CC 700¢
%9.°66 €50'620°TC GTE'0ET %ST 66 8€/'868°0C 969'8/0°T1C €002
%S9°66 €6e‘1ez'0e $ 0.8°S0¢ $ %E9'86 €8¥°T20°0C $ G91°662°0¢ $ 200¢
(2) Ane 30 (€) (1) unowy (€) (1) sreap (2) Aro1 30 (€) (1) wnowy (T) JeaA [eosiy Jes
abeluadiad juanbasqgng ul abeluadliad 10} AnaT leasi4
a1eQ 01 SUO0I129||0D [e10L Su0I1193]10) Ana7 BU1 JO Jea xe] |e10]

[B9S14 U1 UIYUM Pa1I3][0D

SIeaA [edsid ua] 1seT
sU01193]10D pue saInaT xe] Aladoid

6 dlqel VINIDYHIA “94NGSHIIYIATYES 40 ALID

127



7T 9]gel - so11s1e]1s d1wouoo3 pue alydelbowsaq Jo ajnpayas ayl ass (1)

*S]USWIS]E]S [eIdURUIY Y1 01 $910U 8Y1 Ul punoy) aq ued 1gap Buipuelsino s 110 ayl Buipsebaa sjrelaq 910N

€v0‘e %SL L 1¥1°268°ECL - T25969°8T - 929°G6T°SS TT0C
€12'e %818 9vT‘¥20‘8L - 689°00L°6T - 1G¥‘€2e‘8S 0TOC
1€2°C %vZ 8 LV1°16G°SL - G66°9vZ VT - 2ST°0SE°T19 600¢
L9Y°E %8.L°8 L¥T 00V 6L - S¥8°Gi6 VT - 20E vSi‘v9 800¢
T0C‘E %vE 8 AR IR - 888°9¢2‘L - 6G¢‘882°99 1,00¢
8vi‘e %9°6 L¥1°000°9L - €96°0/9°L - ¥81°62€°89 900¢
6cc‘e %896 LYTiorSeL 000°S€0‘Y T0S'8.L°E - 9%9°92.‘v9 G00¢
LTEE %9¢°0T 000°G6.°0L - 60LVET Y - 16209999 00¢
902'T %T6°E 000°006‘t7C - 0¥z 0es'y 000°0S 09.°6T€‘0C €00¢
G9E‘T $ %ES ¥ 6.0°028°.C - $ €/1'626'V 000°00T $ 90€‘06.°CC 200¢
(1) ende)n (T) swoauj JUSWUIBA09 spuog spuog sueo pun4 spuog SIeaA

Jad |Jeuosiad Jo Arewid /S910N uonebigo Areaarn uonebijqo |easiH

abejuaaiad |erol 18410 (ZZETETS) |edauas

Sa1IANJY adA | -ssaulsng

SBI1IAIIOY [EIUBWUIBA0D

0T alqeL

SIeaA [edsl4 Ua] 1seT
adAl Ag 1gaq BulpuelsinQ Jo soney

VINIDYHIA “94NGSHIIYIATYES 40 ALID

128



T 9]gel - $211s11e1s diwouod] pue dlydelbowaq Jo ajnpayds ayl ul punoy ag ued elep uone|ndod (g)

‘g a|qel - Aluadold a|gexe] JO anjeA [en1oy Palewils3 pue anjeA passassy Jo ajnpayas ayl 9as (2)
‘wniwaJid puog pazioweun pue ‘ajqgeled uonebijqo g3do 18u

‘$1500 84ns0|21sod [[I4pue| ‘saouasqe palesuaduliod ‘sases| [euded ‘spuoq anuanal sapnjox3 (T)

ev0‘e %881 LYT'268°EL - Ly1268°CL 1702
A FAS %20°C 9vT'¥20°8L - 9vT'v20°8L 0102
LgT'E %0L'T LYT'16G°SL - LYT165°GL 6002
Lov'e %Z8'T LYT 00V 6L - LYT 0076 8002
T0Z‘E %98°C LYT'STS 2L - LYTSTS 2L L002
srv'e %ZZ'€ L¥T'000°9L - L¥T°000°9. 9002
6ee‘e %8Z'€ LYT'orS‘eL - LyTovS‘eL 5002
AR %9Z°€ 000°'S6.°0L - 000°56.2°0L 002
90Z‘T %6S'T 000°‘006‘¥Z - 000°006‘Z €002
G9E'T $ %281 620°028°L¢ $ - $ 6.0°028°LC $ 2002
(€) ended (2) anfep (1) 1980 901AJ8S 1097 1980 Jeaj
1ad 199@ passassy papuog 10} panIasay papuog |eosiH
papuog 011gead 18N SJUNoWY :Sso7 SS049
18N uonebigo
|edauan
19N jJ0 oney

SIeaA [edsid ua) 1se
ende) Jad 1qa@ papuog 18N pue anjea
passassy 01 1gad Papuog [eJauss 18N JO o1ey

TT alqel VINIDYHIA “94NGSHIIYIATYES 40 ALID

129



060796 LET  $ uibrew 1gap [eba
L¥1'268'€L 1wi| 01 ajqealjdde 1gap 19N
1€9°9G8°TT¢ $ (enfen passasse [2101 10 %8 1) 1wWl| 1987
SV6°6L9'CTV'Y $ an[eA passasse |e10 ]
000°690°G9. Ayadoud [eal 3dwaxa :xjoeq ppy
€v6°0T9'8Y9'c ¢ 8NnJeA passassy
TTOZ JeaA [easld 10} uone|nafe) uibiep 1gaq eba
%88° 1€ %99°LE %EB'TE % Ve %8S VS %S0°T19 %€E6°09 %IT 19 %LT°0€ %CS Ve Jwij 1g9p Jo abejuaoiad e se

uwij ay3 01 ajgeaijdde 1gap 13U €101

06v7‘796°LET $0ST'E8T'62T $G6L°LT6'TIT $ €9¥V'G6Y° 2ST $206°€GE'09  $ vSI‘86v'8y  $€¥2'l0G6'9¥  $v/8°6¥0°Gyr  $0/G'G¥9°/S  $.26°T8L°CS ¢ uibrew 19sp [eba

L¥T°268°EL 9vT'v20‘8. Ly1°16G'G. LyT'00v‘6. LyT'G1G6'2. L¥1'000°9/ LyT'ovs‘e. 000°G6.°0. 000°006 V¢ 6.0°028‘L¢ w1 01 3|gedrjdde 1gap 18U [e10L

1€9'968°TT¢ $9/¢°/02°202 $2v6'¥TS'/€C $079°'G68'TEC $ 670°698°CET  $ TOE‘86V'vCT  $ 06E°L¥0°6TT ¢ ¥/8V¥8'GTT $ 0/G'G¥S‘28  $900°209°08 ¢ Huwiaged

TT0Z 0T0Z 600¢ 8002 ,00¢ 9002 S00¢ 002 €002 2002
JeaA [eosiH

SIeaA [edsld ua] 1se]

uoirewJoyu] uibarep 1gaq [eba

¢T 9lgel VINIDYIA ‘94NasMi143a3yd 40 ALID

130



9¢'1 T19°88L 1GE'098°T eegigee’e G6T'0TL9 820°610°0T T10¢

8570 9T€‘059 6VT1°€8S‘T GS6‘70E‘T ¥22‘88¢°9 6.T°€69°L 0TOC
LE0 2Tv'999 €6SVIS‘T T69°T08 92965959 LTET9E L 600¢
6T°0 €68°02S €69°2/2°T YASTARA S 206°66.°9 6ST 2rT‘L 800¢
€6°0 92v 99¢ 6ve'vee'T S09'TLV'T 0.5°S0°9 G/T°21G°L 1,00¢
19°¢C 1201V 676 26T°T €1e162'y ¥60°6170°S L9V 9VE‘6 900¢
80°¢ 9€0°29T 1G/'89T‘T cre'eslL’e IZAAVN] 9¥9°688°L G00¢
ev'T 190909 YOV €ST‘T €89°91G°C ¥60°LTL°E 111°€€2°9 700¢
or'T 16629/ T90°860°T YT 219°C 818°/15'¢E 796 ¥9T°9 €00¢
ev'T $ 605'G6L $ 006'vTO‘T $ €¥1°965°C $ 62.'869°E $ 2/8'v62°9 $ 200¢C
abeiano) 1sa491u| [ediouid anuanay sasuadx3 13410 pue Jea\
92IAJ3S 102 a|qe|reny Bunesado safueyn |easio
19N SS9 13Ma3S 79 191BM

spuog Jamas pue 131ep

SIeaA [BOSI4 UB] 1SeT
abeuano) anuanay-pabpald

€T alqeL VINIDYHIA ‘94NgSMII¥3IATE4 40 ALID

131



"$213S17e1S J0geT JO nealng :924n0S ()
*9914J0 pJeog |ooyas Bingsyoliapald :224n0os (g)
*f1uno) eiueajAs1ods yium pauiquiod

Bangsyo11apal Jo A11D 8yl sapnjoul awodul elided 1ad sisAjeuy 21LIOU0d3 JO nealng :924nos (2)
(neaung snsua) SN ) 99IAIBS 21jqNd 10} 191ud) Jadoo) uop|ap :824n0s (T)

%e"0T LE0‘E 29z'6e 2E6°9TS'€S6 x 982'vC TT0C
%9°6 €6L°C 29z'6e 2E6°9TS €56 » 982°%¢ 0toC
%Z 6 G59°C 29z'6e 9817688916 €5e‘ee 600¢
%L°S 044 681°6€ T19°85¢ 706 668°C¢ 800¢
WT'v T16°'C v.€'8¢€ v.¥'602'698 169°2C 1,00¢
%0t Lyv'e L2v°9g 88.°966 208 v¥0‘ce 900¢
%8 8TV'C 10G'vE 890°0€9°617.L vel'1e S00¢
%T'S ¥8€‘¢C eve'ce 90€ 792069 Zre'Te ¥00¢
%y S 8/2'C 0v8‘0¢€ 0v¥*895°9€9 902 €00¢
%6°S 8.2‘C LET'0E $ L6T°CCC'v19 $ T18€°0C 200¢
(¥7) @1ey 1usw (£) uawijjoau3 (2) swoauj awoou| (T) uonendod Jea
-Aojdwaun Jooyas Jeuosiad Jeuosiad |eosiH
eude) uad

SIeaA [BOSI4 UB] 1SeT

so13s13€]S 21Wou093 pue oydesbowaq

1 alqel VINIDYIA ‘99NgSHIINIATYL 40 ALID

132



“uoIssILIWO) JuawAojdw3 elulbaip 8yl woly ajgejrene alam sabuel Ajuo ooz Jeak easiy 104 (2)
*wis1INo] pue juawdojaAag 21Wou0d3 Jo Juswiredaq :824nos (1)

0T 6t7¢ 01 00T - - - *ou| ‘ysn 1odaq awoH
8 6¥7C 01 00T - - - "ou| ‘S19]Ud) SWOH S,9M0OT
6 6¥7¢ 03 00T %y T 0T LT 10b1e]
- %9S°T 6 T6T S3JIMISS Juelne)say SO
l 6172 01 00T %Z9°T 8 66T Sa14ISNPU| |[IMPO09 Moouueyeddey
9 661 01 0G9¢ WTZ'€ L €6€ -ou| ‘Bulysijgnd Jels aosue aai4
- %0T ¥ 9 208 suewbapn
1 661 01 0G9¢ Wi v ] 809 Hen-[em
€ 666 01 00S %60°G 14 ¥29 Bangsyorepald Jo AMo
14 661 01 0G9¢ %LE'S € 899 pJeog |ooyos Bingsyoliapald Jo A1)
2 666 01 005 %CL™9 4 28 uolbuiysepn Arep Jo Adsianlun
T J19AQ pue Q00T %89 ¢ T T8¢V |eridsoH uoibuiysepn Arep
yuey (2) seakojdw3 1uawAojdwg yuey (T) seakojdw3 19fodwz
10 |e1o] jo j0
JaquinN afejuanliad JaquinN

200¢ JedA [edsld

TTOC Je3A €3Sl

ST alqel

101id SIBBA BUIN POLI3d 83Ul pue JeaA Jualind
s1ahojdwi3 redioutid

VINIDYHIA ‘94NgSMII¥3ATE4 40 ALID

133



“Juswiedap sireyy |eosl4 :994n0S

TCy ocy 6¢v 444 9evy (0[0)7% €8¢ [41 08¢ T.E sjeloL
T T T T T - - - - - abeuaeb Buiyued
€T €T €T A" T 9 ] ] ] S lsuel]
6T S9T S'8T TC 8T 9T 9T ST 9T 9T 191emalse
0T S°0T S°0T 6 6 L 14 14 14 € 18ye
4 4} 4 €T 4} T T T 8 0T 1uswdojanap Ayunwiwo)
LT LT LT 6T 9T 9T €T €T €T €T uoilealdal pue siied
ve °1) o1 o1 €e ve [45 €e T€ T€ alej|am pue yijesH
€L =72 18 98 /8 69 €L 0L €L 0L SHJ0m aljgqnd
291 9T 291 291 991 691 291 €91 29T 83T Kyayes o11gnd
6€ 8¢ 6€ 1% [4% g€ (0135 T€ 1€ 1€ uonyesjsiuiwpe jeripne
1% 8¢ (0)4 474 134 L€ L€ A L€ 1% JuaWuIaA0b [essus

1102 0ToC 6002 800¢ 1,002 9002 G002 00¢ €00¢ ¢00¢ uonounH

Jea\ [easid

9T alqel

SIeaA [eosIl4 Ua] 1se

uonoun4 Aq seakojdw3 1uswuianos) A119 usjeainby awil-jjn4

VINIDYHIA ‘94NgSMII¥3IATY4 40 ALID

134



€8¢ 092 162 L€2 682 60€ 128 16€ LE€ 0€e (2) (1) penssi snwuaad Buiuoz
:Buluueld
:Juswdojanap Alunwiwo)
Z80°6T €6T°9T £95°8T 79602 GG0‘LT 00g‘ST 092‘¥T 089°CT 0€8°0T 020°0T syuedionued Jo JaqunN
1LY vy 0TS 8TS coy G8e 0.€ 0S¢ v12 86T swresBold Jo JaquinN
-uoljealdal pue syied
-uonesaldal pue ainy}n)
1°GLY LTy LTy ZEly T°v61 9'8T¥ G'GlE G'GlE 0°802 0°9¢2 (3934 arenbs o spuesnoyy)
pauleljurew mmc_t__jm
:S9JIAIBS |eIBUBY
8€0°S 709°G ¥09°S 262°9 6.€°S 11G'S 6v0'G 2L6'Y 6€6't 60.°S (spreh 21gno) sanean
:pa199]109 Huijohoay
102 v 12 9°02 L2 €2 8'82 €0¢ 7'62 6°92 L'S2 (Aep/spunod jo spuesnoy)
pPa3199]|02 asnyay
‘Jenowal a1sep\
LTS L2€ 112 TT€ £8Y €87 81§ GTE 0.€ (0147 (suo) saredas 18311 4oy abesn 1jeydsy
:9dueualulew 193415
:SyJom a11gnd
168 GT0'T 118 0T0'T €9T'T 266 106 668 168 £68 paJamsue s|[ed Jo JagquinN
:]0J1U0? Jewliuy
€€9'T 98%'T ST 18.°T G6E°C 0z8‘c 825°¢c 26T°C 00T‘2 LT8'T panssi suwJad
“mco_uomnmc_ m:__u__:m
ry'e 6872 S92'C TTT'E 15T ST veV'T ZEV'T - - suonoadsul
Gz8°S 788°S G88°S SYT‘9 82L'S 0S¥'S 6GT'S v6L'Y T/6°E - paJamsue s||ed Jo JaquinN
:9NJsal pue all4
816°8Y ¥.,0°8Y 6.ETY 880 v 6.2'CY 205°'0% vIe'0r TLL'6E TAXAIE 89T'GE sladed |1A1D
:Juswilredap spIBYS
X4 19v°L 16€°8 T/9°0T GG0°0T 677 0T TeV°0T 16.°TT 666'9 - suofye[oln Bunired
1€6°L 959 Gee's 062°. 19T°9 00S°6 77901 96%'2T G€6°0T 128'8 SUOIIR[OIA Dljyel |
2Ll LIV 89T‘€E 088°C 6€8°C 508°€ 9g89°¢c 18¢2°€ L0v'€ TET'E sisaule |eo1shAyd
:Juawiedap a21j0d
:A1ajes aljgnd
TT0Z 0102 6002 8002 1002 9002 5002 7002 €002 200¢ uonoun4
Jea A |eosiq
SIEDA |BdSIq ua] 1se]
uonoun4 Ag s103eaipul bunresado
Z 40 T abed

LT 9|qeL

VINIDYIA “D4NESHIIMIATYS 40 ALID

135



“eale 92IAIS Yyoea Joj uoiresado Jo Jeak 1siiy Sy} woiy pajuasald ae sioredipul usuel] (g)

*(800ZAd - 200ZA4) siseq JeaA Jepuajed e uo pajuasaid eieq (2)
‘ssaualenidoidde Jo sa1e2141118D pue ‘saouelien Buluoz ‘asn Buluoz jo sayednynuad ‘suwaad uonednaso awoy sapnjoul (T)

"syuawipiedap 119 [enpIAIpU| :924N0S

288°TT 9/C'€T TT6°ET $ 9Tv'vT $ €ov'eT TET'ET $ 198°TT $ 62v'TT $ L0S°0T $ 1856 l1dnd Jad 3500
8G¢ 95¢ ASTA 95¢ 15¢ 8¥¢ 8€¢ 6€C (0]544 967 siaydeay Jo JaquinN
L€0°E €61 G59°C 0vS‘e T15C Lvv'e 8TY'e v8e‘e 8/2'c 8/2'C S1USpNIS JO JISqUINN
:uoneonp3
:pJeog |00yds - Hun usuodwo)
€66°0T 26L°97 055°T¢ 198°9T 12L°0T €08°L 020°T - - - Ayuno) 861099 Bury
288°S GST'L 0918 68T°9 GG8°‘S L¥9°S T0L‘S v26°s veg‘e v€8 Awuno) auijore)
L6E0L 69€‘ VL €0g'LL G68°29 1G6°€S Svv'vy 806°6 - - - Aunog pioyels yron
882Gy 0e8‘ov vez'6e TAN4S 808‘vE 006°0€ €v0°Ge 8/9°T¢ T8T°6T 8/89 Auno9 pioyyels ynos
8v2 96 €ve‘'L6 699°€TT GTE'T8 659 7Y ogL'or vIS'ov 650°6E ¥9.°9¢ TGL°9€ A3unod eluenjfsiods
€2e'qT 0€0‘etT ¥T0°ST vry 9T €2LLT 966°ST 19981 L69°LT 0€S‘vT ovT‘vT ssaudx3 a|fe3 - MAN
ovS'v.Le 8€2°T9¢ G89°€/C 0TP‘80¢ 0,9'v8T €€8°2.T €99°G8T €v.L 18T 62ET9T 98G6°GST Bangsxonapald Jo A1o
() eaue ao1nuas Jad diysiapry
Jsuel |
(suojreb jo spuesnoyy)
00L‘C () A v6L'C 00L‘C vSr'e 18T°¢C 68€°C 6EL'C 628°C 1912 Juswiyeal) abemas Ajrep abelany
:191eMaISeM
1552 vee'e 67 6€9°C 625 8T.LC v6€‘C 29g'e 69¢°C 96€°C (suojeb jo spuesnou)
uonduwnsuod Ajrep abelany
Y19, €SY°L T6€°L vie'L Sve'L 290°L 969°9 Gev'o €629 921’9 SUOI333UU0I JO JaquinN
11a1eM
TT0C 010¢ 600¢ 800¢ ,00¢ 900¢ S00¢ 00¢ €00¢ 200¢ uonound
JeaA |eosiH
SIeaA [edSI4 ua] 1seT
uonoun4 Ag s103eaipul bunresado
2 40 ¢ abed

LT 9|qeL

VINIDYIA “D4NESHIIMIATYS 40 ALID

136



0]

0T

T9

68T
0¢

ST

1€

0T

19
68T
T¢

ST

1€

19
68T
[44

ST

€e

0T

19
68T
[44

Vi

GE

T9
68
[44

8T

0¢

0]

LS
T €81
[44

a7

G¢

¢S
IZA"
[44

ST

[44

¢S
(A}
T¢

€T

[44

S - S3I2IYBA
:S921AJ9S [e120S 10 uawledaq
:aJej|am pue yijesH

I RIVELVA I TR
:90ueUSlUreW Bulpjing
S8]21YaA/SHINIL
‘lenowal a1seM
sreuBis oigel
(saiw aue| Buinow) s19a.11S
sa|aIyan/syonI L
:90URUSIUIRW 19918
:Sydom a1jgngd

0S 514
CLT ¢LT

T - S9|21YsA
:]0J3U0D [eWIUY

14 - S9|21YaA
:suonoadsul Buipjing

4> - suun jodyed
:Juswiredap spIIays

S3]21YdA 8nasay/aliq

Z Z suonels
:Juswiredap ali4

2z - suun joJyed

T T suonels
:Juswiedsp a91j0d

:K1ayes a11gnd

1 1 =TI IVEYY
sBuip|ing uoneAsIUILPY
UcmEct_m>om |edauan

TT0C

oto¢

6002

800¢

1,002 900¢

G00¢

¥00¢

€00¢ ¢00¢ uonoun4

JeaA [eosi

Z 10 T abed
8T a|gel

SIea\ |eosiq ua] 1se
uonoun4 Aq sonsnels 1ssy [eude)

VINIDYHIA “94NGSHIIYIATYES 40 ALID

137



8¢

Sy
q9
L9

99

GG0‘T
8T
€1

LE

Sy
q9
L9

99

1G0T
LT
€1

9€

Sy
q9
L9

99

GI0‘T
€T
ST

9€

Sy
q9
L9

99

GI0‘T
€T
€1

9€

Sy
a9
L9

99

600°T
€T
14

€e

Sy
q9
L9

99

€00°‘T
4"
€1

1

Sy
q9
L9

99

€00°‘T
4"
€1

1

Sy
q9
L9

99

6V6
0T
14

144

Sy
GG
19

99

6176
0T
ST

Sy
GG
19

99

GE6

‘syuawipedap A310 [enpIAIpU| :891N0S

sasnq [00Y9S
s|ooyos
:uo1eonp3
:pJeog [ooyds - 3un wsuodwo)

(suojeb jo suoljjiw)

A11oeded Juawieaay Ajlep wnwixep
(saj1w) s1omas w.iols

(saj1w) siamas Areriues

.191emalse\

(suojeb jo suoljjiw)

A1oedes Ajrep wnwixep

(saj1w) surew 191\
11818

afealoe yied
syJed
S9]21yan/syonI L
$191U82 AllUnwWwo)
:uolyealdal pue syied
:uoiealdal pue aimyn)d

TT0C

oto¢

6002

800¢

1,002 900¢

G00¢

¥00¢

€00¢

200¢

JeaA [eosi

uonoun4

Z 10 7 abed
8T a|gel

SIea\ |eosiq ua] 1se
uonoun4 Aq sonsnels 1ssy [eude)

VINIDYHIA “94NGSHIIYIATYES 40 ALID

138



ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Fredericksburg, Virginia

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise
the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
October 10, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities, and Towns, issued by the Auditor
of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia's internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia's internal control over
financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of City of Fredericksburg, Virginia in a separate
letter dated October 10, 2011.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, management, others within
the entity, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Polamson [Borreer, () o e

Fredericksburg, Virginia
October 10, 2011
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ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance with Requirements that Could Have a
Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

To the Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Fredericksburg, Virginia

Compliance

We have audited the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. The City of
Fredericksburg, Virginia's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the
City of Fredericksburg, Virginia's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of
Fredericksburg, Virginia's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of
Fredericksburg, Virginia's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2011.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of
Fredericksburg, Virginia's internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City's internal control over compliance.
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Internal Control Over Compliance: (Continued)

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not desighed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, management, others within
the entity, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

@«W, 4 o cn e
Fredericksburg, Virginia
October 10, 2011
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards - Primary Government and Discretely Presented Component Unit

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Pass-through

Federal Grantor/ Federal Entity
Pass-through Grantor/ CFDA Identifying Federal
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures
Primary Government:
Department of Agriculture:
Pass-through Payments:
Department of Social Services:
State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 10.561 0010110/001011 347,604
ARRA - State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental Nutrition
Assistance Program 10.561 0040110/0040111 12,489
Total Department of Agriculture 360,093
Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Direct Payments:
CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster:
ARRA - Community Development Block Grant - ARRA Entitlement Grants (CDBG-R) 14.253 N/A 20,198
Community Development Block Grant - Entitlement Grants 14.218 N/A 180,935
Total Department of Housing and Urban Development 201,133
Department of Justice:
Pass-through Payments:
Department of Criminal Justice Services:
JAG Program Cluster
ARRA - Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program/Grants to Units
of Local Government 16.804 2009-SU-B9-0033 1,067
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 39001-41000/61000 100,634
Total JAG Program Cluster 101,701
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 39001-45000/86000 45,124
ARRA - State Victim Assistance Formula Grant Program 16.801 39001-62300 16,847
Total Department of Justice 163,672
Department of Transportation:
Direct Payments:
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 N/A 232,712
Pass-through Payments:
Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation:
Federal Transit Cluster
Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants 20.500 VA-95-X042-00/ 726,523
VA-95-X021-00/
VA-90-X299-00/
VA-90-X268-00
Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 60901-42009/42010 1,339,725
Total Federal Transit Cluster 2,298,960
Virginia Department of Motor Vehicles:
Alcohol Impaired Driving Countermeasures Incentive Grants | 20.601 60507-50257/51355 15,032
Total Department of Transportation 2,313,992
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards - Primary Government and Discretely Presented Component Unit
Year Ended June 30, 2011 (Continued)

Pass-through

Federal Grantor/ Federal Entity
Pass-through Grantor/ CFDA Identifying Federal
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures

Primary Government: (continued)
Department of Health and Human Services:
Pass-through Payments:
Department of Social Services:
CCDF Cluster:

Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 0770110/0770111 $ 356,536

Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child Care and Development Fund 93.596 0760110/0760111 386,378

ARRA - Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.713 740109 24,031

Total CCDF Cluster $ 766,945
Foster Care - Title IV-E 93.658 1100110/1100111 $ 290,913
ARRA - Foster Care - Title IV-E 93.658 1100110/1100111 11,970

Total 93.658 $ 302,883
Adoption Assistance 93.659 1120110/1120111  $ 193,570
ARRA - Adoption Assistance 93.659 1120110/1120111 12,327

Total 93.659 $ 205,897
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 0950110/0950111 9,677
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 0400110/0400111 288,225
Refugee and Entrant Assistance State Administered Programs 93.566 0500110/0500111 6,127
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568 0600410/0600411 18,198
Chafee Education & Training Vouchers Program 93.599 9160110 2,813
Child Welfare Services - State Grants 93.645 0900110/0900111 1,351
Social Services Block Grant 93.667 1000110/1000111 194,258
Chafee Foster Care Independence Program 93.674 9150110/9150111 5,569
Children's Health Insurance Program 93.767 0540110/0540111 10,801
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 1200110/1200111 209,711
Total Department of Health and Human Services $ 2,022,455

Department of Homeland Security:
Direct Payments:
Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program 97.024 N/A $ 21,436
Pass-through Payments:
Department of Emergency Services:

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 97.036 77602-00146/00148 147,495
State Homeland Security Program 97.073 77501-52708/52709 46,900
Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 77501-52740 10,680
Total Department of Homeland Security $ 226,511
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards - Primary Government $ 5,287,856

Component Unit - School Board:
Department of Agriculture:
Pass-through Payments:
Virginia Department of Education:
Child Nutrition Cluster:

National School Lunch Program (SL-4) (SL-11) 10.555 10.555/2010/2011  $ 723,611
Food Distribution Service 10.555 10.555/2010/2011 86,930

Total 10.555 $ 810,541
School Breakfast Program 10.553 10.553/2010/2011 $ 240,159
Total Department of Agriculture $ 1,050,700
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards - Primary Government and Discretely Presented Component Unit

Year Ended June 30, 2011 (Continued)

Pass-through

Federal Grantor/ Federal Entity
Pass-through Grantor/ CFDA Identifying Federal
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures
Component Unit - School Board: (continued)
Department of Health and Human Services:
Direct Payments:
Head Start 93.600 N/A 1,008,634
Total Department of Health and Human Services 1,008,634
Department of Education:
Pass-through Payments:
Virginia Department of Education:
Title I, Part A Cluster:
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 S010A100046/ 821,577
S010A090046
ARRA - Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies, Recovery Act 84.389 S389A090046 134,855
Total Title |, Part A Cluster 956,432
Special Education Cluster (IDEA):
Special Education - Grants to States 84.027 H027A100107 571,853
ARRA - Special Education - Grants to States, Recovery Act 84.391 H391A090107 217,470
Special Education - Preschool Grants 84.173 H173A090112 18,796
H173A100112
ARRA - Special Education - Preschool Grants, Recovery Act 84.392 H392A090112 15,403
Total Special Education Cluster (IDEA) 823,522
Educational Technology State Grants Cluster:
Education Technology State Grants 84.318 $318X080046 122,937
$318X090046
ARRA - Education Technology State Grants, Recovery Act 84.386 S$386A090046 8,288
Total Educational Technology State Grants Cluster 131,225
School Improvement Grants 84.377 S377A080047 76,476
Safe and Drug Free Schools and Communities 84.186 Q186A090048 4,289
English Language Acquisition Grants 84.365 S365A090046 24,006
T365A080046
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 V048A100046 66,516
V048A090046
ARRA - State Fiscal Stabilization Funds - Education State Grants, Recovery Act 84.394 S394A090047 117,724
ARRA - Education Jobs Fund 84.410 S410A100047 337,755
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 S367A090044 161,320
S367A100044
Total Department of Education 2,699,265
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards - Component Unit School Board 4,758,599
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards - Reporting Entity 10,046,455
Loans and loan guarantees not included in the above as federal assistance:
Environmental Protection Agency:
Pass-through Payments:
State Water Control Board:
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Fund - balance of loan as of
June 30, 2011 66.458 51503-90301 2,638,594

See accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant activity of the
City of Fredericksburg, Virginia under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2011. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position,
changes in net assets, or cash flows of the City of Fredericksburg, Virginia.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian
Tribal Governments, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

(2) Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

Note 3 - Amounts Passed-Through to Subrecipients

Grant proceeds in the amount of $53,712 were were received on behalf of subrecipients for the CDBG - Entitlement
Grants Cluster for the year ended June 30, 2011.

Note 4 - Relationship to Financial Statements

Federal expenditures, revenues and capital contributions are reported in the City's basic financial statements as follows:

Intergovernmental federal revenues per the basic financial statements:
Primary Government:

General Fund $ 49,000
Special Revenue Funds:
Virginia Public Assistance Fund 2,365,665
City Grants Fund 430,321
Capital Projects Funds:
Public Works Construction Fund 340,259
Public Facilities Construction Fund 36,365
Proprietary Funds:
Transit Fund 2,066,246
Wastewater Fund 61,661
Total Primary Government $ 5,349,517
Component Unit School Board:
School Operating Fund $ 1,091,748
School Grants Fund 3,666,851
Total Component Unit School Board $ 4,758,599
Less: Build America Bonds Interest Subsidy $ (61,661)

Total Federal Expenditures per the Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards $ 10,046,455
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Section | - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weaknesses identified? No

Significant deficiencies identified? None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified? No
Significant deficiencies identified? None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Circular A-133, Section .510 (a)? No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA # Name of Federal Program or Cluster
10.553/10.555 Child Nutrition Cluster
14.253/14.218 CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster

93.659 Adoption Assistance

93.659 ARRA - Adoption Assistance

93.658 Foster Care - Title IV-E

93.658 ARRA - Foster Care - Title IV-E

84.410 ARRA - Education Jobs Fund

84.394 ARRA - State Fiscal Stabilization Funds - Education State Grants, Recovery Act

84.027/84.173/84.391/84.392 Special Education Cluster (IDEA)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs: $301,394

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes
Section Il - Financial Statement Findings
There are no financial statement findings to report.

Section Il - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There are no federal award findings and questioned costs to report.
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CITY OF FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

Schedule of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2011

There were no prior year findings or questioned costs.
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